
 

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall  

Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy  

  
www.www.leicestershire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 
  

 

Meeting: Local Pension Board  
 
 

 

Date/Time: Monday, 26 October 2020 at 10.00 am 

Location: Microsoft Teams 

Contact: Miss C Tuohy (0116 305 5483). 

Email: cat.tuohy@leics.gov.uk 

 
AGENDA 

 
Item   Report by   

 
 
1.  

  
Minutes of the meeting held on 10 August 
2020.  
 

 
 

(Pages 3 - 6) 

2.  
  

Question Time.  
 

 
 

 

3.  
  

Declarations of interest in respect of items on 
the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

4.  
  

To advise of any other items which the 
Chairman has decided to take as urgent 
elsewhere on the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

5.  
  

Governance Review.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 7 - 28) 

6.  
  

Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 
2019/20.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 29 - 74) 

7.  
  

Pension Fund Administration Report July to 
September 2020 - Quarter Two.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 75 - 114) 

8.  
  

Pension Section - Employer Risk.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 
 

(Pages 115 - 
118) 

mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy


 
 
 
 

9.  
  

Risk Management and Internal Controls.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 119 - 
134) 

10.  
  

Pensions Section - Complaints Policy.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 135 - 
146) 

11.  
  

Date of the next meeting.  
 

 
 

 

 The next meeting of the Board is scheduled to take place on 8 
February 2021 at 10am. 
 

 

12.  
  

Any other items which the Chairman has 
decided to take as urgent.  
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
TO: 
 
Employer representatives 
 
Mrs R. Page CC 
Cllr E. Pantling 
Mr. R. Shepherd CC 
 
Employee representatives 
 
Ms. C. Fairchild 
Ms. R. Gilbert 
Ms. D. Haller 
 



 

  

 

 
Minutes of a meeting of the Local Pension Board held via Microsoft on Monday, 10 
August 2020 at 10am.  
 

PRESENT 
 

Mrs. R. Page CC (in the Chair) 
 

Online 

Mrs. C. Fairchild (Employee Representative) 

Ms. R. Gillbert (Employee Representative) 

Ms. D. Haller (Employee Representative). 

Cllr. E. Pantling (Leicester City Council)  

Mr. R. Shepherd CC (Leicestershire County Council) 

 

 

 

 
52. Chairman's Announcements.  

 
The Chairman addressed recent comments from the Scheme Advisory Board regarding 
cancellation of pension board meetings. Members were assured that Leicestershire 
Pension Fund scheduled four meetings per year, rather than biannually, to allow for 
exceptional circumstances that resulted in the need to cancel a meeting, such as COVID-
19, Members were kept updated by the Pensions Manager in the meantime.  
 

53. Minutes. 
 
The notes of the meeting held on 3 February 2020 were taken as read, confirmed and 
signed. 
 

54. Question Time.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
34. 
 

55. Urgent Items.   
 
There were no urgent items for consideration. 
 

56. Declarations of interest,.  
 
The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of 
items on the agenda for the meeting. 
 
No declarations were made. 
 

3 Agenda Item 1



 

 

57. Pension Fund Administration Report - April to June 2020  
 
The Board received a report from the Director of Corporate Resources concerning 
administration of Fund benefits, including the performance of the Pension Section against 
its performance indicators. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 5’ is filed with these 
minutes. 
 
Arsing from the discussion the following points were made:-  
 
i. There was concern that despite officers persistence, Aspens (Crown Hills), 

Caterlink, Cleantec and Mellors Catering had outstanding bond or admission 
agreements It was believed the delay was due to lack of prioritisation from the bond 
company. The Pensions Manager would write to each party to remind them of their 
duty to form a bond or admission agreement. 
 

ii. The Pensions Manager had added ‘Transfers Out’ and ‘Refunds’ to the workload 
report. This was due to an expected rise in members requesting transfers out and 
members with under two years membership of the scheme opting out to claim 
refunds as a result of COVID-19 and Government’s furlough scheme due to 
members looking to gain additional income to support them through potential 
financial difficulties. 

 
iii. While most key performance indicators were within normal levels, aggregations had 

exceeded the Fund’s maximum case number. Members were assured that work 
was ongoing and that aggregations were moving towards pre-COVID levels.  
However, as a result of the McCloud ruling, and the potential need to re-aggregate 
cases it was likely to become a higher demand area. It was suggested a training 
session take place following a future meeting of the Board to further explain the 
potential impact the McCloud and Sargeant ruling might have on the Fund. 

 
iv. Three new staff members were due to start in September to aid resource within the 

section. Training would continue to take place with all staff members and involved a 
mixture of online and in-person training dependent on the subject matter. A buddy 
system had also been set up to assist new and existing staff members.  

 
v. In the Board’s role as regulatory body for the Leicestershire Pension Fund Members 

attention was brought to Government’s response to the 95k Exit Cap consultation. 
While the cap was primarily an employer issue it also impacted on the 
administration of the Fund in relation to the pension strain (costs that occurred when 
there is a clear shortfall in the assumed level of funding needed to provide an 
unreduced pension benefit, for example if a member drew their benefit a lot earlier 
than expected). From the Fund’s perspective the concern was that each LGPS 
pension fund set its own actuarial factors for the calculation for valuation exercises, 
if the exit cap was to come into force  it was likely national work would need to be 
undertaken across the four main actuaries to standardise pension strain 
calculations, to reduce inequity between funds.   

 

vi. Ms. Haller raised a concern that the 95k exit cap could affect a lot of public sector 
workers, especially those who may have long service such as nurses and social 
workers if the cap was not linked to inflation. The Pension Manager assured the 
Board that he was aware employers were looking at the implications and that 
Unison were also lobbying against the cap in its current form. Nothing had yet 
changed in statute and any members of the fund who were concerned were 
encouraged to contact their employer.  Leicestershire County Council, for example, 

4



 

 

in its role as employer has responded to Government’s consultation, once set in 
statute a report would be taken to the County Council’s Employment Committee to 
set out any implications. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the contents of the update be noted and that the Board undertake a briefing at the 
conclusion of the next Board Meeting regarding the impact of the McCloud and Sargeant 
rulings. 
 
 

58. Exit Credit Consultation.  
 
The Board considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources that set out the 
proposed changes to the Fund’s Exit Credit policy and the consultation Fund employers. 
A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 6’ is filed with these minutes. 
 
The Board welcomed the proposed changes to the Funding Strategy Statement and 
agreed that it was important to prevent current employers being unfairly impacted into 
paying for the retired former employees of an employer that had left the fund.   
 
The Board noted that the Fund was consulting with employers on the proposed changes 
and that the consultation period was from 20 July until 31 August 2020. The final version 
of the policy would then be considered by the Local Pension Committee on 11 
September 2020. 
 
RESOLVED: 
That the consultation with Fund employers be noted and that the proposed changes be 
supported.  
 

59. Good Governance Phase 2 - Progress Report.  
 
The Board considered a report from the Director of Corporate Resources updating 
Members on progress towards the Good Governance Phase 2 Report.  A copy of the 
report marked ‘Agenda Item 7’ is filed with the minutes. 
 
The Board noted that as a result of COVID-19 parts of the Good Governance Review had 
stalled. Pension funds were awaiting further guidance from Hymans Robertson and the 
Scheme Advisory Board on how some recommendations, such as an independent 
governance review of funds would take place.  
 
RESOLVED: 
That the report is noted. 
 
 

60. Risk Management and Internal Controls.  
 
The Board received a report from the Director of Corporate Resources, the purpose of 
which was to detail any concerns relating to the risk management and internal controls of 
the Fund. A copy of the report is filed with these minutes, marked ‘Agenda Item 8’. 
 
The Pensions Manager updated the Board on progress towards ceasing administration of 
the Firefighter Pension Scheme.  Since the last update the three fire authorities 
(Leicestershire, Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire) had successfully undergone 

5



 

 

procurement for a new administering authority of which West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
had been chosen. A detailed project plan had been put in place and it was hoped the final 
transfer of data would take place by 31st December 2020. This would free up needed 
resource for the Pensions Section to support the risks related to McCloud, the exit cap, 
the cost cap and governance of the Fund.  
 
RESOLVED: 
That the Board note the revised risk register of the Fund. 

 
61. Dates of Future Meetings.  

 
The Board noted that dates of future meetings would be held on the following dates at 
10am.  
 
26 October 2020 
8 February 2021 
24 May 2021 
30 August 2021 
8 November 2021 
.   
 
 

 CHAIRMAN 
10 August 2020 

 
 

6



 

 

 
 

LOCAL PENSION BOARD –  26 OCTOBER 2020   
 

REPORT OF THE  DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

GOVERNANCE REVIEW 
 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to seek the Board’s views on the independent 
governance review of the Leicestershire Pension Fund (Appendix A) and the draft 
Terms of Reference for the Local Pension Committee (Appendix B).  

 
Background 

 
2. Leicestershire County Council is the administering body for the Local Government 

Pension Scheme (LGPS) within Leicestershire and Rutland. Leicestershire County 
Council has a statutory obligation, as defined under the Public Service Pensions Act 
2013, to administer a Pension Fund for eligible employees of all Local Authorities 
within the County boundary and also the employees of certain other scheduled and 
admitted bodies.  In accordance with Section 101 of the Local Government Act 
1972 the County Council has delegated the responsibility for decisions relating to 
investment of the Fund’s assets to the Local Pension Committee. The Committee’s 
principal aim is to consider pensions matters with a view to safeguarding the 
interests of all pension fund members.  
 

3. The role of the Local Pension Board is to assist the Administering Authority as 
Scheme Manager in ensuring the effective and efficient governance and 
administration of the Local Government Pension Scheme including, securing 
compliance with LGPS Regulations, other legislation and the requirements of the 
Pensions Regulator.  

 
 
Governance Review  
 

4. A high-level governance review of the Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 
was undertaken by the Fund’s Independent Adviser Clare Scott to consider the 
Fund’s performance in relation to regulatory requirements in respect of the LGPS, 
the expectations of the Pensions Regulator and the emerging themes from the 
Scheme Advisory Board’s Good Governance Review.  
 

5. In relation to the Board it is worth highlighting the following recommendations: 
 

  
7 Agenda Item 5



 

 

 Ensure clarity of the responsibility of the Local Pensions Board in the 
Governance Compliance Statement (GCS) and the Administration and 
Communications Policy - Officers will ensure that as Fund policies are 
reviewed and all documentation is updated to reflect and highlight the Board’s 
roles and responsibilities in relation to it assisting the Fund achieving secure 
compliance with LGPS responsibilities. 

 To produce an Annual Board Report – Currently the Board’s Terms of 
Reference states that individual members should produce annual reports, it is 
proposed that the proposal to create an Annual Board Report replaces that 
requirement and will highlight the combined work of the Board’s activities over 
the financial year to demonstrate its role in ensuring the effective and efficient 
governance and administration of the Fund, this would then be presented to 
the Fund’s Annual General Meeting.  

 That it considers how it ensures the right balance of skills and experience and 
reviews its effectiveness on an ongoing basis – This will be reviewed as part of 
the annual skills assessment of the Board, to which a training programme 
would follow.  

 That An open invitation be issued to the Chairman of the Board to the Local 
Pension Committee and the Chairman of the Committee to the Local Pension 
Board – With the Board’s consent Officers will extend the invitation for each 
Chairman to the others meeting, this would only be for observation, not to take 
part actively.    
 

6. Recommendations highlighted in Appendix A are set out below alongside officers’ 
responses. 

 

Recommendation Priority Anticipate
d Ease of 

Implemen
tation 

Fund response 

Governance Structure    

Committee Terms of Reference should be 
updated 

High Medium The Committee’s Terms of Reference is 
under review and will be taken to its 

meeting in November.  

Ensure the Fund’s accounts and audits 
are routinely considered by the Local 
Pensions Committee to ensure it has 
visibility of all the issues facing the Fund 

High 
 
 

Medium 
 
 

External Audit report and statutory 
accounts planned to be bought to 

Committee in November 20 
Internal Audit to utilise the quarterly risk 

report to highlight relevant items 

Document who makes decisions in 
relation to LGPS Central, who represents 
the Council at the Joint Committee of 
LGPS Central and which Committee 
should receive updates on the company 

High Low To be included as part of the 
Committee’s revised Terms of Reference  

Rename the ‘Local Pensions Committee’ 
the ‘Pensions Committee’  

Low Low This remains under consideration. 

    

Local Pension Board    

Ensure clarity of the responsibility of the 
Local Pensions Board in the Governance 
Compliance Statement (GCS) and the 
Administration and Communications 

High Low The Committee’s ToR update clarifies its 
responsibility to approve relevant Fund 
policies such as the Administration and 
Communications Policy, while taking 

8



 

 

Policy account of any comments or 
recommendations of the Board. The role 
of the Board will also be clarified within 
the GCS.  
 

Pensions Committee to approve the 
Administration and Communications 
Strategy 

Medium Low This policy will be approved by the 
Committee in line with a policy update 

schedule officers will develop. 

Pensions Committee to oversee pension 
administration performance 

Medium Low Proposal to bring to Committee a report 
(frequency tbc) re admin performance. 
The Board receives quarterly pension 
administration performance and can 

recommend reports to the Committee on 
any areas of concerns. 

Local Pension Board collectively produces 
an Annual Report 

Medium Low Annual report to be taken to the Fund 
AGM. 

Local Pension Board considers how it 
ensures the right balance of skills and 
experience, and reviews its effectiveness 
on an ongoing basis 

Low Medium The Board to consider improvements to 
the current knowledge base as part of 

the skills assessment. 

    

Investments    

Review the way the Fund oversees its 
investments to ensure the appropriate 
level of scrutiny and an effective use of 
governance time 

High Medium/Hig
h 

Officers develop an annual workplan for 
Committee and Investment Sub 

Committee for presentation at the 
January 2021 committee meeting 

Add longer-term performance and net 
new money to external investment 
performance reporting 

Medium Medium Officers are in discussion with the Fund’s 
external provider and expect to include 

this within any improvements 

    

Scheme Advisory Board – Good 
Governance Review 

   

Appointment of the ‘LGPS Senior Officer’ 
(when details of new requirement are 
available) 

High TBC The Director of corporate Resources, as 
Section 151 officer, currently undertakes 
this role. Will review if the guidance from  
the Scheme Advisory Bboard is different 

to expected. 

The relevant areas of the Council should 
be aware of the need to consider policies 
relevant to the needs of the pension fund 
and should not simply apply general 
Council staffing policies to the pension 
function 

High Medium The Fund’s budget is approved by the 
Local Pension Committee and thus 
not restricted by any savings required 
in the County Council’s budget. 
Changes in staffing policies are 
considered by the corporate 
Resources Management team, which 
included the LGPS Senior Officer  

 

    

Operational Matters    

Agenda planning document Medium Low Review of current officers internal 
planning document to include other 
scheduled matters including policy 

updates 

Introduce to the Committee’s business:    

9



 

 

- Progress on business plan 
- Annual ISS review 
- Pension administration 

performance 
- Employer changes and risk 

management 
- Service and cost Benchmarking 

Local Pension Board’s Annual Report. 

 
Low 

Medium 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Medium 
Medium 

 
Low 
Low 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
Potentially 

High 
Low 

 
Officer review and proposals as part of 

the workplan proposed above. 
 

Introduce an open invitation for the chair 
of the Committee to observe the Board’s 
meetings 

Low Low Will propose to chair and vice chair 
where appropriate. Currently they 
receive the agenda alert for each 

meeting. 

Introduce an open invitation for the chair 
of the Board to observe the Committee’s 
meetings 

Low Low Will propose to chair and vice chair 
where appropriate Currently they receive 

the agenda alert for each meeting.  

 
7. The Fund will continue to review its governance arrangements which will include  

conflicts of interest management, training and service planning which are either 
planned for a later date or are awaiting further guidance from the Scheme 
Advisory’s Good Governance Review. 

 
Terms of Reference Review 

 
8. The Local Pension Committee’s existing terms of reference have remained the 

same since a governance review took place in 2010. Following the Local Pension 
Board’s revised Terms of Reference, agreed 16 September 2019 it was considered 
timely to review the Committee’s Terms of Reference to ensure both meetings 
aligned. 
 

9. The review was undertaken having regard to Government legislation, advice 
provided in the Good Governance Project Local Government Pension Scheme 
report, other relevant guidance and terms of reference of other Committees as well 
as the recommendations from the Governance Review undertaken by the Fund’s 
Independent Advisor, detailed in Appendix A.  
 

10. While the main features of the original Terms of Reference have been retained, 
such as the number of times the Committee will meet each year and the number of 
members on the Committee, the revised version, attached as an appendix, offers 
far more detail and clarity about the role and function of the Committee, and the role 
of its members. The Board’s attention is specifically drawn to the following key 
changes: -  

 

 Activity of the Committee, has been expanded to embed what is currently 
reported to the Committee to cover pooling, LGPS Central matters, Responsible 
Investment and the strategies, statements and reports that the Committee has 
oversight and approval of as highlighted as part of the independent governance 
review 
 

 That the Leicestershire Pension Fund is represented by the Committee 
Chairman at the Local Government Pension Scheme Central Joint Committee 
and Shareholders Forum. 

10



 

 

 

 That the Committee will have regard to the advice of the Local Pension Board in 
its role in assisting the Administering Authority ensuring the effective and 
efficient governance and administration of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme including, securing compliance with LGPS Regulations, other 
legislation and the requirements of the Pensions Regulator.  
 

 
11. Due to the Board’s role in assisting the Administering Authority in ensuring the 

effective and efficient governance and administration, it was considered appropriate 
to seek the Board’s views on the matter. Any comments from the Board will be 
considered by Committee at its meeting on 27 November 2020. 
 

12. Once agreed the Terms of Reference will be reviewed at least every three years or 
following any significant change to relevant regulations. 

 
 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
None. 
 
Appendix 
 
Appendix A – Governance Review of the Fund 
Appendix B - Draft Local Pension Committee Terms of Reference 
 
Background Papers 
 
Good Governance in the LGPS – Phase II report from Working Groups to the Scheme 
Advisory Board 
https://www.hymans.co.uk/media/uploads/Hymans_Robertson_Good_governance_in_the_LGPS_Phase_II.pdf 
 
Pension Fund Management Board – Proposed Changes to Governance Arrangements 19 
May 2010 County Council  
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MID=2562#AI25260 

 
 

Officers to Contact 
 
Declan Keegan, Assistant Director of Strategic Finance and Property 
Telephone 0116 3056199 
Declan.keegan@leics.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

11

https://www.hymans.co.uk/media/uploads/Hymans_Robertson_Good_governance_in_the_LGPS_Phase_II.pdf
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MID=2562#AI25260
mailto:Declan.keegan@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (‘the Fund’) 
 
Review of Governance 

 

Introduction 

This Review of Governance is a high-level assessment of where the Fund stands in relation 

to regulatory requirements in respect of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), the 

expectations of The Pensions Regulator and the themes emerging from the Scheme 

Advisory Board’s Good Governance review. 

This report provides high-level recommendations based on: 

- Council governance documentation relating to the Fund;  

- The Terms of Reference of the Local Pension Board. (The operations of the Local 

Pension Board have been excluded from this review.); 

- The Fund’s 2019 Governance Compliance Statement; 

- General observations of the Fund’s practices including Committee meetings and 

information on the Fund’s website; 

- Discussions with officers. 

Further, more detailed operational, matters have been raised with officers.   

At the time of writing, more detailed reviews of the management of conflicts of interest, 

training and service planning is being planned. 

 

1 GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE 

1.1 Remit of Local Pensions Committee 

The Constitution of the Council says the functions delegated to the Local Pensions 
Committee shall be those related to the “maintenance of the Leicestershire Pension Fund”. 
The Terms of Reference for the Pension Fund Management Board (understood to the 
predecessor of the Local Pensions Committee) are dated 2012. The Terms of Reference 
should be updated and reviewed to ensure they cover all aspects of the Fund. A draft set of 
responsibilities is provided in Appendix 1.   
 
Currently the approval of the Pension Fund Accounts is the responsibility of the Council’s 

Constitution Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee has responsibility for 

internal and external audit. These are essential parts of the controls and risk management 

for the Fund. It is recommended that the Committee raises this with the Council to ensure 

these documents are routinely considered by the Local Pensions Committee to ensure it has 

visibility of all the issues facing the Fund.  

Additionally, it is recommended that the Council’s Constitution or the Committee Terms of 

Reference sets out who makes decisions in relation to LGPS Central, who represents the 

13

ctuohy
Text Box
Appendix A 



 

2 

Council at the Joint Committee of LGPS Central and which Committee should receive 

updates on the company. The Fund should be alert to its dual role as ‘shareholder’ of LGPS 

Central and ‘client’ as an investor in LGPS Central’s investment products.  

1.2 Name of Local Pensions Committee 

The name of the Committee is the ‘Local Pensions Committee’. In the LGPS industry, ‘Local’ 

is used for Pension Boards. The common name in the industry is the ‘Pensions Committee’. 

(This is not a significant matter but may avoid potential confusion by those less familiar with 

the LGPS and/or the Fund).  

1.3 Local Pension Board  

The Terms of Reference of the Local Pension Board say is not a Committee of the Authority. 

This is consistent with the recent advice from the Scheme Advisory Board. However, this is 

contradicted in the Fund’s Administration and Communications Policy and the 2019 

Governance Compliance Statement. Documentation should be reviewed to ensure 

consistency and clarity.  

Currently the Administration and Communications Strategy is approved by the Local Pension 

Board. The Board’s role is to assist in the management of the Fund and this is particularly 

relevant and important in relation to the administration service. However, as the Board is 

not a Committee of the Authority and does not have decision making responsibilities, it is 

recommended that the Local Pensions Committee formally approve this strategy after 

consultation with the Local Pension Board. (The draft responsibilities for Committee in 

Appendix 1 include all policies for the Fund).  

Similarly, the Local Pensions Committee should also have oversight of the pension 

administration service, albeit the Pension Board could undertake scrutiny in more detail and 

more frequently.  

It is understood that the employee representatives on the Local Pension Board currently 

produce a report for the Fund’s Annual General Meeting. It is recommended that the Local 

Pension Board collectively produces an annual report to demonstrate that the Board is 

‘assisting in securing compliance with regulations’. This is common practice in the LGPS and 

public sector pensions industry. The report should highlight the Board’s activities over the 

financial year (including meetings, membership, attendance, the work of the Board over the 

year, future plans and training including how it complies with the Fund’s training policy). 

The report should be considered by the Pensions Committee. The report could also be 

included in the Fund’s annual report and accounts, and on the Fund’s website.  

The Pensions Regulator code 14 refers for the requirement for the Local Pension Board to 

have “the right balance of skills and experience… to operate effectively”. Too much change 

in membership can make it difficult to gain the knowledge on the LGPS. However, it is good 

practice for boards to ensure there is turnover of membership to bring fresh perspectives 

and some Local Pension Boards include a maximum tenure for membership. It is also good 

practice for boards to periodically review their effectiveness. It is recommended that the 

14



 

3 

Board considers how it ensures the right balance of skills and experience. The Board should 

also review its effectiveness on an ongoing basis.  

2 INVESTMENT GOVERNANCE 

The investment arrangements of the Fund are complex – the Fund has a large number of 
investment managers, particularly compared to other LGPS funds. The Committee’s papers 
include reports from its investment managers and as a result, papers are very long (papers 
often include more than 400 pages and this has increased to over 800 pages in September 
2020). Arguably, there is insufficient time in the Committee meetings to cover the 
investment issues in any meaningful detail.  

Investment reports for Committee largely cover past performance. A clearer distinction 

between performance and other issues (investment strategy and managers) would be 

helpful. Performance, while interesting, is historic. Although the Fund should learn from 

historic medium/long term performance, decisions of the Committee and Investment Sub-

Committee (ISC) should be focused on future performance, which means looking at broader 

issues affecting investment managers including business, people, philosophy, process and 

risk are far more important.  

The Council’s Constitution outlines the functions delegated to the Investment 
Subcommittee: 

(a) to monitor the performance of investment managers, particularly those whose 
performance is causing concern. 
(b) To assist in the selection of investment managers. 
(c) To determine the timing of changes in asset allocation, within the Investment 
Strategy agreed by the Local Pension Committee. 
(d) To consider changes to the portfolio size of investment managers.  
(e) To determine the management of the ‘opportunity pool’. 
(f) To undertake any other duties as requested by the Local Pension Committee. 

 

However, the ISC typically meets only when changes decisions on investment arrangements 

are needed.   

The governance arrangements of the investments have been changing over recent years as 
assets are being managed by, or under advisory mandates with, LGPS Central. Given the 
timescales for LGPS Central to develop products and the illiquid nature of some assets, it is 
likely that some investments will continue to be held outside of the pool for several years. 
Therefore, it is important for the monitoring of different portfolios to reflect the different 
governance arrangements in place, especially during the transition period.  

o For the assets under Central’s advice, the Fund should oversee Central’s monitoring 
of the investment managers and the activity/added-value which they provide.  

o For the assets which are neither pooled or under Central’s advice, the business, 
people, philosophy, process and risks for each mandate should be monitored and 
reported on to Committee. This is particularly important for the liquid assets 
including Kames index-linked gilts, the currency hedge and JPM credit and open-
ended infrastructure funds. Whilst the options available for private market 
investments (equity, debt, infrastructure and timber) are narrower, monitoring 

15



 

4 

remains important as decisions may be required during their lifetimes (such as 
extending terms or secondary sales), but also for Committee and officers to learn 
from the investments and inform future decision making.  

 

The recommendation is for the Fund to review the way in which it oversees its investments 

(including its investment managers) to ensure the appropriate level of scrutiny and an 

effective use of governance time. For example, options might include: 

- There could be a clearer distinction between the pooled assets, assets under Central 
advice and other assets, to highlight the different governance arrangements and the 
different considerations needed by Committee; 

- Review the frequency of consideration of different aspects of the portfolio, for 
example, quarterly reporting for pooled assets may not be necessary or different 
meetings could focus on different asset classes to allow more time to delve into 
greater detail with presentation(s) from manager(s)/Central (as appropriate); 

- For the assets which are neither pooled or under Central’s advice, more detailed 
consideration of investment managers’ business, people, philosophy, responsible 
investment, process and risk, particularly for higher-risk, liquid assets. Summaries 
could be provided to Committee/ISC; 

- Other investment manager reports and/or ISC papers could be made available to 
Committee members on a central database, rather than including them (all) in 
Committee papers. Providing summaries of ISC meetings for Committee could 
reduce the volume of papers required at Committee; 

- More detailed investment scrutiny could be undertaken by Investment Sub-
Committee (ISC), with more regular meetings.  

 
The Fund utilises an external performance measurement service independent of the 

investment managers. It is recommended that:  

- Performance records should be backdated to provide long-term analysis for the total 
fund and by asset class (ideally for at least 10 years) to provide information on 
volatility of asset class and investment managers’ performance; and 
 

- Inclusion of net new money for each asset class/investment manager is added to the 
report. This should help Committee oversee the efficient implementation of 
investment strategy.  
 

3 SCHEME ADVISORY BOARD - GOOD GOVERNANCE REVIEW 

The Committee will be aware that the Scheme Advisor Board for the LGPS in England and 

Wales has been undertaking a review of governance practices and areas for improvement 

over recent years. The recommendations were published in November 2019. The next stage 

of the review to draft statutory guidance on governance compliance statements and 

establishing key performance indicators is underway, although it is understood that it is 

delayed due to the pandemic.   

16



 

5 

There are several aspects to the Good Governance review which the Fund will need to 

consider.   

One key consideration for the Fund will be the requirement for a single named officer ‘who 

is responsible for the delivery of all LGPS related activity for that fund (‘the LGPS Senior 

Officer’). Overall, the LGPS Senior Officer should be an individual with the appropriate 

technical and leadership skills to provide overall direction for the LGPS function and should 

be of sufficient seniority to represent the fund at a corporate leadership level. They should 

be someone with a strategic view of the fund but also be close enough to all aspects of the 

fund’s business to ensure that no areas are overlooked. Specific considerations highlighted 

in the Good Governance report are:  

- The LGPS Senior Officer may be the Section 151 officer, assuming they have the 

capacity, LGPS knowledge and internal assurance framework to assume the role; 

- Assigned through the Authority’s scheme of delegation and constitution; 

- Signs off the annual governance statement (with the Section 151 officer if that is a 

different person); 

- Management of conflicts of interest (e.g. cross charging, setting employer 

contribution rates, local investment decisions); 

- Requirement for officer training (Section 151 will also be required to undertake 

training, potentially new module from CIPFA or other professional bodies); and 

- Must be satisfied with the resource and budget allocated to the LGPS service. 

The Council as Administering Authority for the Fund should consider the appointment of 

‘the LGPS Senior Officer’ once the details of the new requirement are available.   

The Fund will need to make further changes as the Scheme Advisory Board implements 

other aspects of the Good Governance Review including new policies and/or enhancements 

to existing policies and practices. Specific areas requiring new policies or changes are: 

- Governance Compliance Statement; 

- Conflicts of Interest Policy; 

- Policy on representation; 

- Training Policy;  

- Administration & Communications Strategy; 

- Service delivery including performance standards and reporting. 

The Fund may wish to delay such changes until new regulations and/or guidance are issued  

The Scheme Advisory Board also highlights that the “Administering Authority must give 

proper consideration to the pay and recruitment policies relevant to the needs of the 

pension fund… and …should not simply apply general council staffing policies to the pension 

function”. It is recommended that the Committee ensures the relevant areas of the Council 

are made aware of this. (It is understood that the restrictions on recruitment recently 

implemented by the Council have not been applied to pension fund staffing).  

  

17



 

6 

4 OPERATIONAL MATTERS 
 
It is recommended that a document outlining all regular items for Committee/ISC/Board 

agendas, and the required frequency, is developed. It should cover all the areas in the 

respective terms of reference, including the strategies/polices. Such a document would 

enhance planning and could be tabled at meetings to provide clarity to members and 

stakeholders.   

Consideration should be given to the following amendments to the Committee’s business: 

- Updates on the progress being against the business plan and budget, including the 

award of contracts; 

- An annual (rather than triennial) check on the Investment Strategy Statement, after 

the annual investment strategy review; 

- Pension administration performance; 

- Employers in the Fund (new employers and exits) and associated risk management; 

- Benchmarking of the Fund against peers e.g. investment, pension administration 

service.  

- Annual report from the Local Pension Board.  

Further, it is recommended there is an open invitation for the chair of the Committee to 

observe the Board’s meetings, and vice-versa.   

 
 
I look forward to discussing these recommendations with the Committee and Local Pension 
Board.  
 
 
 
Clare Scott, 
Independent Adviser 
October 2020 
 
This information is issued by Giffordgate Limited. Giffordgate Limited is not authorised and regulated by the 

Financial Conduct Authority or any other regulator. The information provided herein does not constitute 

investment advice and has been prepared solely for information purposes. Any views, opinions or statements 

made in or in relation to this document should not be interpreted as recommendations or advice. Past 

performance is not a guide to future performance. Market and currency movements may cause the value of 

investments, and the income from them, to fall as well as rise, and you may get back less than you originally 

invested. If you are unsure about the implications of any investments, you should seek advice from a regulated 

financial adviser.  

 

 

  

18



 

7 

Appendix 1 - Draft Responsibilities for the (Local) Pensions Committee 

 

a) exercise all functions of the pension fund within the terms of the legislation;  
b) determine the overall policy objectives of the pension fund in accordance with the 

best interests of fund members and employers and within all applicable legislation;  
c) determine the strategy for the investment of the pension fund;  
d) ensure appropriate investment management arrangements are in place for pension 

funds monies including pooling of investments;  
e) functions relating to LGPS Central; 
f) establish and maintain arrangements for the effective management and 

administration of the pension funds including staffing and budgetary arrangements; 
g) approve the allocation of resources to the pension fund for the operation and 

administration of the pension funds from the assets of the pension funds in 
accordance with the applicable pension regulations;  

h) approve responses to consultations relevant to the pension fund issued by 
government and other bodies; and  

i) monitor overall performance of the pension funds in the delivery of services and 
financial performance, consider all matters in respect of the pension funds including:  

• approving the pension fund annual report and accounts;  

• approving strategies and policies;  

• setting standards for service delivery;  

• securing best value in the provision of services ; 

• ensuring appraisal of the control environment and framework of internal 
controls in respect of the Fund to provide reasonable assurance of effective 
and efficient operations and compliance with laws and regulations;  

• ensuring an appropriate risk management strategy and risk management 
procedures;  

• promoting, monitoring and developing continuous improvement.  
 

  

19



 

8 

Appendix 2 - Summary of Recommendations 
 

Recommendation Priority Anticipated Ease 
of 

Implementation 

Governance Structure   

Committee Terms of Reference should be updated High Medium 

Ensure the Fund’s accounts and audits are routinely 
considered by the Local Pensions Committee to ensure it has 
visibility of all the issues facing the Fund 

High 
 
 

Medium 
 
 

Document who makes decisions in relation to LGPS Central, 
who represents the Council at the Joint Committee of LGPS 
Central and which Committee should receive updates on the 
company 

High Low 

Rename the ‘Local Pensions Committee’ the ‘Pensions 
Committee’  

Low Low 

   

Local Pension Board   

Ensure clarity of the responsibility of the Local Pensions 
Board in the Governance Compliance Statement and the 
Administration and Communications Policy 

High Low 

Pensions Committee to approve the Administration and 
Communications Strategy 

Medium Low 

Pensions Committee to oversee pension administration 
performance 

Medium Low 

Local Pension Board collectively produces an Annual Report Medium Low 

Local Pension Board considers how it ensures the right 
balance of skills and experience, and reviews its 
effectiveness on an ongoing basis 

Low Medium 

   

Investments   

Review the way the Fund oversees its investments to ensure 
the appropriate level of scrutiny and an effective use of 
governance time 

High Medium/High 

Add longer-term performance and net new money to 
external investment performance reporting 

Medium Medium 

   

Scheme Advisory Board – Good Governance Review   

Appointment of the ‘LGPS Senior Officer’ (when details of 
new requirement are available) 

High TBC 

The relevant areas of the Council should be aware of the 
need to consider policies relevant to the needs of the 
pension fund and should not simply apply general Council 
staffing policies to the pension function 

High Medium 

   

  

20



 

9 

Recommendation Priority Anticipated Ease 
of 

Implementation 

Operational Matters   

Agenda planning document Medium Low 

Introduce to the Committee’s business: 
- Progress on business plan 
- Annual ISS review 
- Pension administration performance 
- Employer changes and risk management 
- Service and cost Benchmarking 
- Local Pension Board’s Annual Report. 

 
Low 

Medium 
Medium 

High 
Medium 
Medium 

 
Low 
Low 
Low 

Medium 
Potentially High 

Low 

Introduce an open invitation for the chair of the Committee 
to observe the Board’s meetings 

Low Low 

Introduce an open invitation for the chair of the Board to 
observe the Committee’s meetings 

Low Low 

   
 

21



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

LOCAL PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

Introduction 

1. This document sets out the terms of reference for the Local Pension Committee of 

Leicestershire County Council (the ‘Administering Authority) a scheme manager as defined 

under the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 (and any associated legislation). The Local 

Pension Committee (hereafter referred to as ‘the Committee’) is established in accordance 

with Section 4 of that Act. 

Responsibility and Role of the Committee 

2. As a statutory pension scheme the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) does not 

have assigned trustees. Leicestershire County Council has delegated the responsibility for 

decisions relating to the investment of the Fund’s assets to the Local Pension Committee 

in accordance with Section 101 of the 1972 Superannuation Act. The Members who sit on 

the Local Pension Committee act on behalf of the beneficiaries of the LGPS and in this 

way have a similar role to trustees in primarily protecting the benefits of the LGPS 

members, overseeing the direction of investments and monitoring liabilities. 

 

3. The Committee’s principal aim is to consider pensions matters with a view to safeguarding 

the interests of all pension fund members. The specific responsibilities are to: 

a) exercise all functions of the pension fund within the terms of the legislation;  

b) determine the overall policy objectives of the pension fund in accordance with the   best 

interests of fund members and employers and within all applicable legislation;  

c) determine the strategy for the investment of the pension fund;  

d) ensure appropriate investment management arrangements are in place for pension 

funds monies including pooling of investments;  

e) functions relating to LGPS Central;  

f) establish and maintain arrangements for the effective management and administration 

of the pension funds including staffing and budgetary arrangements;  

g)  approve the allocation of resources to the pension fund for the operation and 

administration of the pension funds from the assets of the pension funds in accordance 

with the applicable pension regulations;  

h) approve responses to consultations relevant to the pension fund issued by government 

and other bodies; and  

i) monitor overall performance of the pension funds in the delivery of services and 

financial performance, consider all matters in respect of the pension funds including:  

• approving the pension fund annual report and accounts;  

• approving strategies and policies;  

• setting standards for service delivery;  

• securing best value in the provision of services ;  

• ensuring appraisal of the control environment and framework of internal controls in 

respect of the Fund to provide reasonable assurance of effective and efficient 

operations and compliance with laws and regulations;  

• ensuring an appropriate risk management strategy and risk management procedures;  

23



 

 

• promoting, monitoring and developing continuous improvement.  

 

Membership 

 

4. The Committee shall comprise of ten voting members, as follows: 

 Five County Council members (Leicestershire County Council to ensure the 
membership reflects the political balance of the County Council);  

 

 Two District Council members (appointments to be made by the District Councils); 
 

 Two members of Leicester City Council; 
 

 One University representative (appointment to be made by De Montfort and 
Loughborough Universities). 

 
5. Members should be able to demonstrate their capacity to attend and complete the 

necessary preparation for meetings and participate in training as required. 
 

6. Any substitution for voting Members appointed to the Pension Committee shall follow the 
appropriate council’s procedure. 
 

Employee representatives 
 

7. The Committee shall also comprise three employee representatives that do not have a 
vote. 

 
8. Employee representatives shall be members of the scheme in either an active, deferred or 

retired member capacity. 
 

9. Employee representatives should be able to demonstrate their capacity to attend and 
complete the necessary preparation for meetings and participate in training as required. 

 
10. A total of three employee representatives shall be appointed following a transparent 

recruitment process which is open to all Fund members and be approved by the 
Administering Authority. A vote will be held at the Fund’s Annual General Meeting and 
employee representatives will normally serve a term of three years, provided they remain 
members of the Fund, but shall be free to stand for re-election at the end of that period 
provided they are still a member of the Scheme.  

 

Terms of Office 
 

11. The term of office for County, City, District and University representatives will be one year. 
They may be reappointed following their relevant appointment process. 

 
12. The term of office for employee representatives is three years. The positions will be on a 

rolling basis to ensure that at least one employee representative position will become 
available at each of the Fund’s Annual General Meeting.  

 
13. An employee member may be appointed for further terms of office using the methods set 

out in paragraph 10. 

24



 

 

 
14. Committee membership may be terminated prior to the end of the term of office due to: 

 
(a) An employee representative appointed on the basis of their membership of the 

scheme no longer being a scheme member in the Fund. 
(b) A Committee member no longer being able to demonstrate to the Administering 

Authority their capacity to attend and prepare for meetings or to participate in required 
training. 

(c) The representative being withdrawn by the nominating body and a replacement 
identified. 

(d) A Committee member has a conflict of interest which cannot be managed in 
accordance with the Committee's conflict policy. 

(e) A Committee member becomes a member of the Local Pension Board 
(f) An elected member representative ceases to be an elected Councillor for the local 

authority they represent.  
 

15. All Members (including substitutes) of the Committee are required to undertake induction 
training before taking up their role. Members will also need to adhere to the 
Leicestershire Pension Fund Training Policy.  

 
Chairing the Committee 
 

16. It will be the first business of the Committee to receive nominations of a Chair and Vice-
Chair to sit for the term of one year following Leicestershire County Council’s Full Council 
Annual meeting. 

 

Meetings 

17. The Pension Committee is a committee constituted under section 101 of the Local 

Government Act 1972 therefore key functions and terms of the Committee are as detailed 

in Leicestershire County Councils Constitution: 

 

18. Full meetings of the Committee are usually held five times a year. 

 

19. The Committee’s meetings will be open to the general public (unless there is an exemption 

under relevant legislation which would preclude part (or all) of the meeting from being open 

to the general public). 

 

20. The Committee shall adhere to the Standing Orders of Leicestershire County Council and 

all matters of due process so far as they do not conflict with the Committee’s delegations. 

21. In the event of a tie of votes of any business to be conducted, the Chair will have the 
casting vote. 
 

22. Officers representing the Administering Authority will be expected to produce reports for 

the Committee and provide advice and clarification during the Committee’s meetings. 

 

 

Conflicts of interest 
 

25



 

 

23. All members of the Committee must declare to the Administering Authority on 
appointment and at any such time as their circumstances change, any 
potential conflict of interest arising as a result of their position on the Committee. 

 
24. A conflict of interest is defined as a financial or other interest which is likely to 

prejudice a person’s exercise of functions as a member of the Committee. It does not 
include a financial or other interest arising merely by virtue of that person being a member 
of the Scheme. 

 
25. On each appointment to the Committee and following any subsequent declaration of 

potential conflict, the Administering Authority shall ensure that any potential conflict is 
effectively managed in line with the internal procedures of the Administering Authority, the 
requirements of the Act, the requirements of the Code and the requirements of Relevant 
Legislation on conflict of interest for Committee members. 

 

Independent Advisers to the Committee 

26. The Committee may be supported in its role and responsibilities through the appointment 
of advisers. The Fund may subject to any applicable regulation and legislation from time to 
time in force, consult with such advisers on such terms as it shall see fit to help better 
perform its duties including:  

 

 Officers from Leicestershire County Council’s Finance, HR, Legal and other teams 
as needed;  

 The Independent Advisor;  

 The Fund’s Actuary;  

 The Fund’s Investment Consultant; and  

 Any other appointed advisers.  
 

 
Fund Managers 
 

27. The Fund Managers make their reports available to Committee Members.  Some are 

selected to attend meetings. The majority of the Fund Manager update items take the form 

of booklets submitted by the various Fund Managers.  All of these documents are 

confidential.  

Expenses  

28. The Pension Fund may meet reasonable expenses of the Committee. Such expenses will 

be met by the Fund and have regard to Leicestershire County Council’s Members’ 

Allowance Scheme. 

 

Investment Subcommittee 

29. The County Council appointed the Investment Subcommittee to assist the Committee to 

carry out its functions. It meets occasionally on months when there are no Committee 

meetings. It has significant delegated powers to make decisions on behalf of the 

Committee. Its role is to consider action that is in-line with the strategic benchmark agreed 

by the Committee and to take a pro-active approach to the Fund’s investments. And also to 

deal with ‘tactical’ issues associated with implementing the strategy, such as investment 

manager appointments and the timing of asset allocation changes. 

26



 

 

 

30. The Investment Subcommittee consists of six voting members, the Chairman, Vice-
Chairman, one other elected member of the County Council, the Universities 
representative and one member representing each of the City and district councils, all of 
whom are members of the Local Pension Committee. There is also one nonvoting 
employee representative. 

 
 

 
Annual Meeting 

31. An Annual Meeting of all beneficiaries of the Pension Fund is held each year.  The purpose 
of this meeting is to consider the contents of the Pension Fund Annual Report and a report 
by the Employee Representatives of both Committee and Local Pension Board and to elect 
Employee Representatives for the Committee and Board for the following 12 months.   
 
 

LGPS Central 
 

32. LGPS Central Limited is the company formed by eight partner funds (including the 

Leicestershire Pension Fund) which is authorised as the operator of the Authorised 

Contractual Scheme (ACS), to provide investment services to the partner funds, by the 

Financial Conduct Authority (FCA). The company is therefore subject to the regulator’s 

conduct of business rules and has established its internal governance framework to ensure 

strict adherence both to its regulatory obligations to the FCA and with the Companies’ Acts. 

  

33. The Fund holds dual interest in LGPS Central Ltd as shareholder of the company and as a 

recipient of its investment services, these are managed separately through the 

Shareholders Forum and the Joint Committee.  

 

34. The Shareholders’ Forum acts as a supervisory body which focuses on shareholder 

issues. The Forum meets at least twice a year to agree certain reserved matters as set out 

in the Shareholders Agreement and include: 

 Amending or adopting new strategic plans 

 Admitting new members to the Pool 

 Appointment and removal of Directors 

 Approve accounts and appoint auditors 

 Approving capital expenditure over £5M 

 

35. The Joint Committee deals with the ‘investor’ functions and provides assistance, guidance 

and recommendations to individual councils, taking into consideration the conflicting 

demands and interests of the participants within the pool.  

 

36. The Chairman of the Local Pension Committee will act as the Fund’s representative at both 

the Shareholders Forum and the Joint Committee and will report back to the Local Pension 

Committee as appropriate. 

 
Local Pension Board 

27



 

 

37. In fulfilling its functions the Committee shall have regard to the advice of the Local Pension 
Board established in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Amendment) (Governance) Regulations 2015 in its role in assisting the Administering 
Authority in ensuring the effective and efficient governance and administration of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme including, securing compliance with LGPS Regulations, 
other legislation and the requirements of the Pensions Regulator. 

38. The Chair of the Local Pension Board may attend a Local Pension Committee meeting as 
an observer.  
 

Review of terms of reference 
 

39. These Terms of Reference shall be reviewed on each material change to those parts of the 
Regulations covering Local Pension Committee’s and at least every three years. 

 
 
 
 
Signed on behalf of the Committee 
 
 
 

28



 
 

 
 

LOCAL PENSION BOARD – 26 OCTOBER 2020 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
  

PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2019/20 

 

 Purpose of the Report 

 
1. The purpose of this report is to seek the Board’s comments on the appended Annual 

Report and Accounts of the Pension Fund for the financial year 2019/20. 

 Background 

 
2. There is a statutory requirement for the Annual Report and Accounts to be available 

on or before 1st December 2020.  The Accounts are in the process of being audited 
and the Board and Committee will be updated at the earliest possible opportunity on 
the opinion given by the Auditor once this process has been completed. 

 
3. Due to the Board’s role in assisting the Administering Authority in ensuring the 

effective and efficient governance and administration, it was considered appropriate 
to seek the Board’s views on the report. Any comments from the Board will be 
considered by the Local Pension Committee at its meeting on 27 November 2020.  

 
4. The Annual report and Accounts will go to the Pension Fund Annual General Meeting 

on 14 December 2020. 
 

Appendix 
 
5. Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 

 
6. None Specific 
 

Officers to Contact 
 

Declan Keegan  
Assistant Director of Strategic Finance and Property  

29 Agenda Item 6



 2 

Telephone: (0116) 305 6199 
Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 
 
Ian Howe  
Pensions Manager  
Telephone: (0116) 305 6945 
Email: Ian.Howe@leics.gov.uk 

 

30

mailto:Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk


Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

1 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME LEICESTERSHIRE 

Administered by 

LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

Pension Fund Annual Report 

Year ended 31st March 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A  

31



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

2 
 

CONTENTS 

 
1. INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................... 3 

2.     SCHEME MANAGEMENT AND ADVISORS …………………………………………………………………………………..4 

3.      RISK 

MANAGEMENT…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..6 

4.      FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE………………………………………………………………………………………………………..8 

5.      PENSION SCHEME ADMINISTRATION……………………………………………………………………………………… 10 

6.      INVESTMENT POLICY AND 

PERFORMANCE……………………………………………………………………………….15 

7.      MEMBER TRAINING & PERFORMANCE 

…………………………………………………………………………………….19 

8.      RESPONSIBLE INVESTING………………………………………………………………………………………………………   20       

9.      LGPS CENTRAL 

POOL………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..21 

8.      ACTUARIAL 

STATEMENT…………………………………………………………………………………………………………..25 

9.      FINANCIAL STATEMENTS……………………….…………………………………………………………………………………27 

10.    GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT 

………………………………………………………………………………..28 

11.    APPENDIX A - SUMMARY VALUATION OF FUNDS 

PERFORMANCE………………………………….Attached 

12.    APPENDIX B - PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS……………………………………………………………See link 

 

 
The fund has a number of policy statements that are available on the links below. They have not 
been reproduced within the Annual report, as when taken in combination are sizeable and some 
have previously been seen by the Pensions Committee. 
 
13. Statement of Accounts - https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-
spending/accounts-and-payments 
 
14. Funding Strategy Statement - 
https://leicsmss.pensiondetails.co.uk/documents/Funding_Strategy_Statement_September_2020.p
df?language_id=1 

32

https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-spending/accounts-and-payments
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-spending/accounts-and-payments
https://leicsmss.pensiondetails.co.uk/documents/Funding_Strategy_Statement_September_2020.pdf?language_id=1
https://leicsmss.pensiondetails.co.uk/documents/Funding_Strategy_Statement_September_2020.pdf?language_id=1


Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

3 
 

  
15. Statement of Investment Principles - 
https://leicsmss.pensiondetails.co.uk/documents/Investment_Strategy_Statement_Feb_2020.pdf 
 
16. Administration & Communication Strategy - 

https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2018/9/7/LCC-Pension-Fund-Admin-

and-Comms-Strategy.pdf 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 
Leicestershire County Council is the administering body for the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(LGPS) within Leicestershire and Rutland. Leicestershire County Council has a statutory obligation to 
administer a Pension Fund for eligible employees of all Local Authorities within the County boundary 
and also the employees of certain other scheduled and admitted bodies.  The Fund does not cover 
teachers, police or fire-fighters as they have their own schemes. 
 
This report has been produced in accordance with Section 57 of the Local Government Pension 
Regulations 2013. It sets out the way in which the Pension Fund is managed both in relation to the 
administration of benefits and to the investment of the Fund’s assets. 
 
The benefits within the scheme are determined by regulation and guaranteed by statute.  The 
pension fund exists to help defray the cost of paying pension benefits.  Contributions to the pension 
scheme are made by both employees and employers.  Any new employee is automatically brought 
into the scheme unless they opt out. 
 
 

 
 
 
The Fund’s membership increased by approximately 2,500 during 2019/20 and at the year-end stood 
at just over 95,000. Active employees and Pensioners saw an increase in numbers while deferred 
pensioners saw a decrease in numbers. 

 

 

 

 

 

33

https://leicsmss.pensiondetails.co.uk/documents/Investment_Strategy_Statement_Feb_2020.pdf
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2018/9/7/LCC-Pension-Fund-Admin-and-Comms-Strategy.pdf
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2018/9/7/LCC-Pension-Fund-Admin-and-Comms-Strategy.pdf


Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2. SCHEME MANAGEMENT AND ADVISORS 

The Local Pension Committee is responsible for the management of the Fund, and considers 
pensions matters with a view to safeguarding the interests of all Fund members. The Members who 
sit on the Committee act on behalf of the beneficiaries of the LGPS and in this way have a similar 
role to trustees in primarily protecting the benefits of the LGPS members, overseeing the direction 
of investments and monitoring liabilities. The Committee comprises of five County Council members, 
two from Leicester City Council, two members representing the District Councils, one representative 
of De Montfort/Loughborough Universities and three non-voting staff representatives. In order to 
ensure continuity, staff representatives, who are chosen at the Fund’s Annual General Meeting, are 
appointed to the Committee for a three year period but arrangements have been made to ensure 
that at least one staff representative place becomes available each year. The Local Pension 
Committee sets the overall investment strategy for the Fund and will deal with all investment 
governance issues. The Committee meets quarterly and also has a separate annual meeting to 
consider strategic issues relevant to the Fund. 

 
The Investment Subcommittee consists of six voting members (the Chair, Vice Chair, one other 
elected member of the County Council, the Universities representative and one member 
representing each of the City and District Councils, all of whom are members of the Local Pension 
Committee) and one non-voting staff representative. Its role is to consider action that is in-line with 
the strategic benchmark agreed by the Board and to take a pro-active approach to the Fund’s 
investments, and also to deal with ‘tactical’ issues associated with implementing the strategy, such 
as investment manager appointments and the timing of asset allocation changes. 

 
The Committee and Subcommittee receive investment advice from Hymans Robertson LLP and are 
supported by Independent Advisor, Clare Scott. Other consultants will also be utilised if there is felt 
to be an advantage to this. 
 
The Local Pension Board was established by the Administering Authority under Regulation 106 of the 

Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended) and operates independently of 

the Local Pension Committee. The Board’s role is to assist the County Council as the Administering 

Authority as Scheme Manager in ensuring the effective and efficient governance and administration 

of the Local Government Pension Scheme. The Administering Authority retains ultimate 

responsibility for the administration and governance of the Scheme. 

Membership of the Local Pension Board consists of six voting members. Three employee 

representatives elected in the same manner as those employee representatives on the Local Pension 

34



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

5 
 

Committee, and three employer representatives comprising two elected members of Leicestershire 

County Council and one elected member from Leicester City Council.  

There is a statutory requirement for the Fund to maintain a Governance Compliance Statement, 
and this is replicated in full in section 10. 
 
At a national level the LGPS is governed by the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local 
government (MHCLG) and the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board (SAB). The LGPS also takes account of 
guidance issued by the Pensions Regulator and Pensions Ombudsman determinations. 
 
The role of the Scheme Advisory Board is to help and support MHCLG and administering 
authorities fulfil their statutory duties and obligations. SAB aims to be both reactive and 
proactive. It will seek to encourage best practice, increase transparency and coordinate technical 
and standards issues. 
Scheme Management and Advisors 

Local Pension Committee  

Leicestershire County Council  Leicester City Council 

Mr. P. C. Osborne CC (Chairman) Cllr. D. Bajaj 

Mr. T. Barkley CC (Vice-Chairman) Cllr. R. Govind 

Mr. P. Bedford CC   

Dr. S. Hill CC District Council Representatives 

Mr. M. Hunt CC Cllr. C. Frost  

  Cllr. M. Graham MBE 

 
Employee Representatives 

 
University Representative 

Ashley Wilson (from November 2019) Mr. Z. Limbada 
Mr. R. Bone (to November 2019) 
Mr. N. Booth  

  

Ms. J. Dean   

Local Pension Board 

Employer Representatives Employee Representatives 

Mr. R. Shepherd Ms. C. Fairchild (Vice- Chair) 

Mrs. R. Page CC (Chair) Ms. D. Haller 

Cllr. E. Pantling 
Ms. D. Stobbs (to November 2019) 
Ms. R. Wilson (from November 2019) 

Officers responsible for the Fund 

Finance Pensions Administration 
Chris Tambini - Director of Corporate Resources - 
Leicestershire County Council  

Ian Howe - Pensions Manager - Leicestershire County 
Council 

Investment Managers 

Investments managed by LGPS central Pool   
LGPS Central  
 Global equities (Harris, Schroders & Union), 
Emerging market equities multi-managers fund (BMO, 
UBS, Vantabel), LGPS Central PE Partnership 2018LP   

Others:   

Adams Street Partners Aegon Asset management (formerly Kames Capital) 

Ashmore Kravis Kohlberg Roberts 

Aspect Capital Legal & General Investment Management 

La Salle Investment Management Macquarie Investments 

Catapult Venture Managers Partners Group 

Colliers Capital UK Permal (formerly Fauchier Partners) 

Cristofferson, Robb & Company Pictet Asset Management 

35



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

6 
 

Industry Funds Management M&G Investments 

Internally Managed Ruffer LLP 

JP Morgan Asset Management Stafford Capital Partners 

 
Standard Life Aberdeen 
 

    

Pooled investments 

LGPS Central 

Fund Custodian Legal Advisor 

JPMorgan, Bournemouth County Solicitor, Leicestershire County Council 

Independent Investment Advisor Actuary and Investment Consultant  

Clare Scott Hymans Robertson LLP, Glasgow 

Auditor AVC Provider 

Grant Thornton LLP Prudential, London 

Banker Scheme Administrator 

National Westminster Bank, Leicester Leicestershire County Council 

  

 

3. Risk management 

There are many risks associated with the Local Government Pension Scheme, covering both the 

investment of the assets and the administration of the benefits payable. It is almost impossible 

to create a definitive list of these risks and many of the on-going risks are monitored by Officers. 

Regular reports are brought to the attention of the Local Pension Committee and Local Pension 

Board to provide the latest position on key risks. 

The biggest risk for the Fund is that the value of assets held will ultimately be insufficient to pay 

for all the benefits due. This risk is quantified by a triennial actuarial valuation, which compares 

the value of assets to the accrued liabilities and sets employer contribution rates that are 

considered appropriate to ensure that all benefits can be paid; the Fund is currently in deficit 

(i.e. the value of assets is less than the accrued liabilities) so the employer contribution rates, at 

a whole Fund level, include payment for not only future service as it accrues but also 

contributions towards the deficit. Given that many benefits will not become payable for a long 

time, and taking into account the financial strength of most employers, the actuary is able to 

take a long-term approach to recovery of the deficit. 

The performance of the assets of the Fund is an important element in helping to maintain 

affordable employer contribution rates – the higher the long-term investment return achieved, 

the more of the benefits will be funded by investment returns rather than employer and 

employee contributions. A long-term approach is taken to agreeing an asset allocation 

benchmark, with both return and risk considered. The Fund’s asset allocation policy is reviewed 

annually. 

Individual investment manager performance is of lower importance than the asset allocation 

benchmark, but individual manager performance does have an impact and their performance is 

considered and reviewed regularly. When there are doubts about a manager’s ability to 

generate future performance that is in line with the Fund’s requirements/expectations 

appropriate action will be taken, and this may include the release of a manager. It is not 

generally optimal to change managers on a frequent basis due to the associated costs (which are 

36



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

7 
 

mainly the impact of bid/offer spreads and charges within markets), and as a result changes are 

considered very carefully before they are agreed. 

The Local Pension Committee receives advice from the investment practice of Hymans 

Robertson and is supported by an independent investment advisor, and this assists in making 

decisions in respect of both overall investment policy, manager selection/retention and good 

governance. 

The Fund employs a large number of investment managers, and all of these invest in a specific 

asset class and can be termed ‘specialist’. Many of these managers are required to have external 

assessments of their systems and operations and these are reviewed to ensure that there are no 

issues which put the Fund’s investments at risk. 

Other investment managers that the fund employs are appointed by LGPS Central Ltd, a 

company which pools together pension fund assets from various pension funds across the 

Midlands. Leicestershire County Council along with 8 other pension funds is a joint owner of the 

company.  The company has its own governance and risk management structures in place. 

Under the Pensions Regulations all employers must pay over contributions deducted from 

employees, plus the required employer contributions, to the administering authority within 

certain timescales. These payments are monitored closely, and immediate action is taken in the 

event of a late payment. Late payment does not put the benefits of individuals at risk. 

Many of the risks associated with providing efficient and cost-effective Pensions Administration 

are mitigated by ensuring that officers involved in LGPS are knowledgeable and well-trained on 

an on-going basis. Ensuring that employers understand their responsibilities to the Fund and 

fulfil them efficiently is also crucial, and an on-going programme of support for them is in place. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

37



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

8 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

38



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

9 
 

4. Financial Performance 

Non-investment cash inflows for the fund come via contributions from Employers.  There were a 

small number of incidences of late payment of contributions by employers over the year, and 

these were exclusively because of administrative failings on their part. On each occasion the 

employer was reminded of their responsibilities, and it was not felt necessary to levy interest on 

overdue contributions.  Employer contributions ranged from 15% to 32.0% with the average 

employer rate being 24.5%. 

 

Administrative costs were at £40.1m for the year compared to £36.0m in the previous year 

(2018/19). This increase was largely due to additional investment manager costs based on the 

assets under management and transitioning investments to LGPS central. Investment 

management fees are variable as they are based on market values that are impossible to predict 

in advance. Action was taken during the year to reduce investment management costs where 

there was opportunity to do so.  There were no material movements in non-investment assets 

and liabilities.  

 

The general trend of overall net cash flows is monitored, whether these are derived from 

investment or non-investment related sources. Non-investment cash flows were positive by 

almost £44.1m in 2019/20, compared to £25.9m in 2018/19. In addition, the Fund received 

investment income of £36m. In the context of the funds, £4 billion of assets, the cash flow 

movements are not material. Any short-term cash surpluses or shortfall can be managed through 

the funds passive investments that have good levels of liquidity. 

 

Cash flows are unlikely to reduce in the near future, despite cuts to budgets within Local 

Authorities that could reduce membership (and hence employee/employer contributions). Whilst 

benefits paid are increasing, due to increasing numbers of pensioners and inflation-linked annual 

increases, the value of this increase is offset by the increasing rate of employers’ contribution. In 

future years this could result in a reduction in the available cashflow and will require monitoring.  

The Fund also has significant investments in accumulation funds where the investment income is 

reinvested rather than distributed, and these could, if required, be changed to income producing 

funds with the generation of an extra £30m+ cash flow p.a. 

 

The overall impact of a strong positive cash flow is that the Fund has flexibility in the selection of 

investments and fewer restrictions due to liquidity concerns. There are strong controls in place 

for ensuring that all income due is received and that benefits are not overpaid. A monthly 

automated check of pensioners is carried out through a reliable tracing agency to ensure that 

pensions cease upon death, and the Fund has a very low incidence of overpayments that occur 

either as a result of fraud, late notification or error. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

39



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

10 
 

 
 

Details of contributions in and payments out of the fund are shown below: 
 

2018/19   2019/20 

£m Payments in: £m 

(149.5) Employer Contributions (167.9) 

(39.9) Member Contributions (42.7) 

(10.3) Transfers in From Other Pension funds (12.3) 

(199.7) Total Inflows (222.9) 

  
 

  

  Payments out:   

124.8 Pensions 127.8 

32.5 Lump Sum Retirement Benefits 32.9 

4.6 Lump Sum Death Benefits 3.1 

11.9 Payments to and on Account of Leavers 15.0 

173.8 
 

178.8 

  
 

 

(25.9) Net Cash (inflows) (44.1) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

40



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

11 
 

 

5. Pension Scheme Administration 

The number of scheme members who are either receiving a benefit or who have a future 
entitlement to one increased by 2355 over the course of the year. This figure excludes the 4,000+ 
members who have no entitlement to a benefit from the fund but do retain the right to either a 
refund of contributions or a transfer to an alternative pension arrangement. 
 
Active membership increased by 1367 from 34,412 to 35,779.  
Pensioners increased by 1063 from 27,973 to 29,036.  
Preserved membership decreased by 75 from 30661 to 30586.6.  
 
The Fund’s employers have completed the auto enrolment process, with many of the larger 
employers completing this prior to 2017/18. The auto enrolment process forces employing 
bodies to bring almost all employees that are eligible to join the LGPS but are not currently 
scheme members into the scheme. This is reflected by the increase in active members over the 
past 5 years.  
 

The number of pensioners has been increasing at a rate of 2% per annum over the past 5 years, a 

trend that is expected to continue. 

 

Membership numbers over the last 5 years are shown in the graph below:- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20,000

22,000

24,000

26,000

28,000

30,000

32,000

34,000

36,000

38,000

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Contributors

Pensioners

Preserved Benefit

  % increase over 5 years 
Contributors 8.3% 
Pensioners 20.5% 
Preserved Benefit 4.1% 

41



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

12 
 

 

 

Leicestershire Pension Fund contributions: 

 

 

The Leicestershire Local Government Pension Fund provides services in line with the requirements of 

a fund of this nature. This includes the correspondence with members, calculation of benefits, 

maintenance of members records and data and Pension payments through the payroll service.  A 

service is also provided for members to log onto the online member site and a service for employers 

to upload member data monthly. 

The fund has 28.3 full time equivalent working in Pension Scheme Administration. Scheme 

membership is 95,000 equating to 3,371 members per FTE. 

The fund has several performance indicators in respect of administration performance, which are 
split between speed of processes and customer satisfaction. These are reported on a quarterly basis 
to the Local Pension Board.  
 
 

42



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

13 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Leice

sters

hire 

Pensi

on 

Fund key administrative Performance Statistics 

Full Year - 1 April 2019 to 31 

March 2020 

       

Business Process Perspective 

Targe

t 

    
Customer Perspective - 

Feedback 

Targe

t 

    

Retirement Benefits notified to 

members within 10 working days 

of paperwork received 92% 

94

% ▲ 

Establish members 

understanding of info 

provided - rated at least 

mainly ok or clear 95% 

99

% ▲ 

Pension payments made within 

10 working days of receiving 

election 95% 

90

% ▼ 

Experience of dealing with 

Section - rated at least 

good or excellent 95% 

90

% ▼ 

Death benefits/payments sent to 

dependant within 10 working 

days of notification 90% 

91

% ▲ 

Establish members thoughts 

on the amount of info 

provided - rated as about 

right 92% 

95

% ▲ 

    

Establish the way members 

are treated - rated as polite 

or extremely polite 97% 

99

% ▲ 

Good or better than target ▲ 

  

Email response - 

understandable 95% 

91

% ▼ 

Close to target ► 

  

Email response - content 

detail 92% 

92

% ▲ 

Below target ▼ 

  
Email response - timeliness  92% 

95

% ▲ 

 

 

Accuracy of Data Common Data 99.20% 

  Scheme Specific (Conditional Data) 90.40% 

Average Cases Per Member of Staff Average per FTE (Completed tasks) 608 

Complaints 
6 stage 2 IDRP complaints in 
2019/20 

Less than 
0.5% 

Types of cases dealt with (only KPI 
tasks) Deaths 928 

  Pension Estimate 999 

  CETV Estimate 312 

  Retirement 3,222 

  Deferred Benefits 2,723 

  Transfers in and Out 87 

  Calculate and Pay a Refund 812 

  Formal notification of Joining 8,142 

43



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

14 
 

Other fund information: 

Help desk arrangements and information are as follows: 

Contact Type From To Contact 

MSS Helpdesk Phones 8:00am 17:00pm 
0116 
3057886 

Benefits Helpdesk 
Phone 8:00am 17:00am 

0116 
3054000 

Pensions Benefits Queries Pensionsbenefits@leics.gov.uk 

Email MSS Queries PensionsMSS@leics.gov.uk 

General Pensions Queries Pensions@leics.gov.uk 

  Address Pensions Section 

 
Leicestershire County Council 

 
County Hall 

 
Glenfield 

 
Leicester 

 
LE3 8RB 

 

Internal Disputes 

If you are not satisfied with any decision given by either the Pension Section or your employer/ 

former employer, relating to your Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) benefits, you may 

appeal in writing under the Internal Disputes Resolution Procedure (IDRP). You must write within 6 

months of receiving the decision.  

Any points of difference should firstly be addressed with the Pensions Office on an informal basis. 

You can write to: 

The Leicestershire County Council Pension Section, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicester, LE3 8RB 

Or, contact the Pensions Officer who has dealt with your case. Their name and contact details will be 

on your correspondence. 

We will then try to resolve the matter for you. Should you still be unhappy and wish to take the 

matter further you can request an information sheet and form to complete. This will contain the 

name and address of the ‘Specified Person’ nominated by your employer or former employer who 

would formally investigate your complaint. 

Following this, if you are still dissatisfied with their decision, a ‘second stage’ of complaint can be 

requested, which will be looked at by the Legal Services team at Leicestershire County Council in 

most cases. 

Should you be dissatisfied with the outcome of this, further details of the next stages of complaint 

would be provided at the time, should this be necessary. 

Further advice can be found at the following: 

44

mailto:Pensionsbenefits@leics.gov.uk
mailto:PensionsMSS@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Pensions@leics.gov.uk


Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

15 
 

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

45



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

16 
 

6. INVESTMENT POLICY AND PERFORMANCE  

The Fund’s strategic asset allocation benchmark at the year end was as follows: 

  Weighting  Benchmark Difference 

Equities 46.50% 46.75% -0.25% 

Real Income Fund 26.90% 24.75% 2.15% 

Alternatives 24.20% 27.50% -3.30% 

Cash and hedge Collateral 2.40% 1.0% 1.40% 

  100.00% 100.00% 0.00% 

 

The setting of the strategic benchmark is the most important decision that the Committee makes. It 

is this decision that will have by far the most significant impact onto the investment return achieved 

and approximately 90% of the Fund’s overall risk is encompassed within the choice of benchmark. 

Individual investment manager choices are important as they can produce added value by 

outperforming their benchmarks, but their influence is small in comparison to the choice of 

benchmark. 

Although some investments have moved over to LGPS central as part of asset pooling, the Local 

Pension Committee still retain full responsibility for asset allocation and will continue to be 

accountable for the majority of the Fund’s investment performance. 

A comprehensive analysis of investment holdings by manager and their associated performance is 

provided in Appendix A.  A summary is provided below: 

  1 Year %p.a. 3 Years %p.a. 

  Fund Benchmark Fund Benchmark 

Equities -11.5 -8.8 -0.9 0.5 
Private 
Equity 

11.1 -6.2 11.3 2.2 
Real 
Income 

2.7 2.6 5 4.6 

Alternative 0.7 4.2 1.4 4.2 
TOTAL 
FUND 

-4.3 -2.3 1.8 2.5 

46



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

17 
 

 

The Fund has a large number of investment managers and it is inevitable that some of them will 

have periods of disappointing performance – sometimes this disappointing performance can last 

multiple years, and can be the result of a particular investment ‘style’ not being in favour with 

market sentiment. It is important to understand why managers are performing as they are – 

regardless of whether this is above or below their benchmark – and to assess whether this is of 

cause for concern. Knee-jerk reactions that are based on relatively short periods of poor 

performance are not sensible, and understanding the reasons for poor performance is vital. It is 

implausible to believe that all managers appointed by the Fund can simultaneously perform well, the 

Fund needs to have a reasonable spread of management styles and asset classes and occasionally a 

manager is chosen specifically because they are different to other managers. 

The Local Pension Committee and Investment Subcommittee will continue to monitor the 

performance of managers and make changes when it is deemed appropriate, although the pooling 

of investments within the Local Government Pension Scheme mentioned earlier in this report means 

that there needs to be a greater awareness of when action is appropriate and when it is not and 

indeed action will be taken at a pooled level rather than an individual pension fund level. Since 1st 

April 2014 all investment performance has been measured net of investment management fees and 

the figures quoted above are, therefore, after taking these into account. 

The management of the individual asset classes is carried out as follows:  
 
Equities  
 
The Fund has a global passive equity manager (Legal & General) that manages against both market 
capitalisation benchmarks and also against alternative benchmarks. The Fund has two active equity 
investments with LGPS Central (the pooling company), a global equity multi manager investment and 
an active emerging market multi manager product. 
 
Within equities the Fund also has private equity investments (i.e. investment in unquoted 

companies), the vast majority of which is managed by Adams Street Partners.  

Real Income Fund 
 
Property - Colliers Capital UK manage a directly owned property portfolio but have scope to invest in 
specialist pooled property funds which are in areas that they find attractive but would not be 
practical to buy directly, usually due to the size of individual investments (for example leisure 
complexes based around multiplex cinemas or Central London offices).  
La Salle Investment Management manage a portfolio of pooled property funds, which includes some 
covering a wide range of property types and some which are specialist in nature. Via their ability to 
research the underlying holdings and the skills of the property managers, it is expected that they will 
add value to the Fund.  
The Fund has also invested in two stand-alone property ‘recovery’ funds, managed by Kames Capital.  
 
Inflation-linked  
UK inflation is one of the Fund’s biggest risks, due to the direct link to benefits and the less-direct 
link to salary growth of active members. Protecting against this risk is, therefore, sensible but it is 
also very expensive – it would involve taking money out of assets that are seeking investment 

47



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

18 
 

growth (e.g. equities) and investing it in safer, and therefore lower-returning, index-linked bonds. 
This would push up employers’ contribution rates to levels which are unaffordable, so cannot be 
implemented in a large scale manner.  
The most natural asset for protecting the Fund against its inflation risk is UK Government index-
linked bonds, but these are expensive as there are a number of price-insensitive buyers and a lack of 
supply. As a result the Fund has a three-pronged approach to obtaining some protection against 
inflation – investment in infrastructure and timberland (both of which have a good historic link to 
inflation, and also good return prospects), and also a global government index-linked portfolio.  
Kames Capital manages a portfolio of global index-linked stocks. The Fund has three global 
infrastructure managers - IFM, KKR and JPMorgan - whilst the timberland investment is managed by 
Stafford Timberland 
 
Alternative Assets  
 
Targeted return - The Fund’s targeted return exposure can generally be categorised as investments 
that are seeking to make a return of 4% p.a. more than could be achieved by an investment in cash 
(i.e. only slightly below the expected long-term return from equities), and with the expectation that 
the return will be achieved with relatively low volatility. There are many different ways of achieving 
this goal and the Fund has three different managers in this area - Aspect Capital Partners, Ruffer and 
Pictet Asset Management. 
 
Credit - The major exposure within credit is in a private debt fund managed by Partners Group, 
although there are also modest exposures to a ‘best ideas’ bond fund managed by JPMorgan .The 
Fund’s exposure to Emerging Market Debt is in a pooled fund manged by emerging market specialist 
manager Ashmore. 
 
Other opportunities Fund - The ‘Other’ weighting is often referred to as the ‘opportunity pool’. The 
broad principle of these investments is that they will offer the prospect of excellent returns, but they 
will not generally fit neatly into the Fund’s strategic benchmark. The high returns will often be 
available as a result of a market disconnection or a misunderstanding of the risks and this situation 
will not last indefinitely, and hence the opportunities cannot be considered for inclusion within the 
strategic benchmark. At the year-end the opportunity pool consisted of three different funds 
managed by M & G that have virtually identical investment aims. The intention is for the manager to 
utilise their expertise in restructuring the balance sheets of companies that are stressed, to the 
advantage of bond holders.  
 
Other portfolios  
The Fund also has a currency portfolio that looks to profit from relative movements in currency 

values, which is managed by Millennium. No ‘cash backing’ is required, and this portfolio is not 

included within the strategic asset allocation benchmark. 

Foreign Exchange hedging is undertaken by Kames Capital to reduce the impact of currency 

fluctuations, rather than being held for an investment return. 

 

 

 

 

48



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

19 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7. Member training and attendance 

The Fund’s Training Policy was adopted in November 2019 and applies to all members of the Local 

Pension Committee, Local Pension Board and senior officers involved in the management and 

administration of the Fund. In relation to training for those involved in the governance and the day 

to day management and administration of the Fund. The Training Policy has regard to relevant codes 

of practice and guidelines issued by the Pensions Regulator, CIPFA, the training needs of the 

Committee and Board and the Fund’s current priorities.  

All Members are required to take induction training prior to taking up their role and are provided 

with an Information Pack including all relevant reading material to keep up to date with pensions 

issues.  

Members of the Committee and Board complete self-evaluation forms on an annual basis assessing 

their General Understanding, and knowledge on Funding, Investment and Pension Administration. A 

personal Training Plan is then developed for each Member based on the results of these 

assessments and is supplemented, where appropriate, to cover matters arising in the course of 

managing the Fund as part of reports to the Board and Committee and following meetings delivered 

by officers or the Fund’s providers such as the Actuary,  independent advisers and investment 

managers.   

Given there have been a number of recent changes both within the LGPS , and externally in the 

broader pensions environment all Board and Committee Members are encouraged to complete The 

Pension Regulator’s online training and other external training as held by the Scheme Advisory 

Board, Local Government Association, Hymans Robertson as well as LGPS Central’s at its Annual 

Stakeholder Day. Members of the Committee and Board also attended the Annual LGPS Governance 

Conference held on the 23-24 January 2020.  

 

 

 

 

 

49



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

20 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8. Responsible investing 

The Fund’s responsible investing (RI) policy is contained within the investment strategy statement 

alongside the Fund’s view of environmental social and governance (ESG).  The Fund is continually 

developing it’s RI policies with the support of LGPS Central’s in house team.  Fund’s launched by 

LGPS Central ensure ESG credentials of managers are tested during the procurement phase.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

50



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

21 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9. LGPS Central Pool 

As mentioned earlier in the report the Fund is an investor in LGPS Central Ltd, a company which 

pools together pension fund assets from various pension funds across the Midlands. Leicestershire 

County Council along with eight other funds is a joint owner of the company.  The company has its 

own governance and risk management structures in place.  The aim of the Company is to use the 

combined buying power of its partner funds to reduce costs, improve investment returns and widen 

the range of available asset classes for investment – all for the benefit of local government 

pensioners, employees and employers. 

LGPS Central ltd is based in Wolverhampton and their details can be found below: 

Address: 
LGPS Central Ltd,  
Mander House,  
Mander Centre,  
Wolverhampton,  
WV1 3NB 
 
Website: https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk 
e-mail: enquiries@lgpscentral.co.uk 
 
During the 2019/20 financial year, the following emerging markets investments were made via the 
pool by the Leicestershire Fund as follows: 

  
Value at 

31st March 2020 
LGPS Central  £m 
BMO 48.6 
UBS 49.9 
Vontabel 53.7 
Total 152.2 

 
A further £308.1m of assets are managed by the pool from investments made in previous years.  As 
at 31st March 2020 all other assets held by the fund were held outside the Pool.  

 
There are also advisory and executions mandates held with the pool for the following assets: 

  

  Assets under 
management 

51

https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/
mailto:enquiries@lgpscentral.co.uk


Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

22 
 

  £m 
Targeted Return          465.5  
Property           400.2  
Fixed Income          94.5  
 

 
 

 

 

Post Pooling report 

The information request set out below reflects the information required by Partner Funds to meet 

the CIPFA Annual Report Pooling Disclosures in 2019/20.  Please note that the information request 

reflects the start-up nature of LGPSC, and the level and complexity of the disclosures required will 

increase in later years.   

The analysis provided by LGPS Central (LGPSC) relates to the Leicestershire Pension Fund.  The 

provision of the information by LGPSC to each Partner Fund should ensure consistent reporting 

across Partner Funds, and allow LGPSC to aggregate, and reconcile back the individual Partner Fund 

disclosures, to the Company’s financial statements. 

 
Set up costs 
Leicestershire’s share of the set-up cost associated with the pool were as follows: 
£000 Cumulative 

2014/15 to 
2018/19 Total  

Set Up Costs  

Recruitment 0 

Procurement 27 

Professional Fees 2 

IT 187 

Staff Costs 97 

Other Costs  142 

 Premises 49 

 Staffing-Related Costs 5 

 Travel and Expenses 1 

 Training and Events 1 

 FCA Fees 1 

 General Admin Costs 2 

Set-Up Costs Before Funding 514 

Share Capital 1315 

Debt 685 

Other Costs  

Set-Up Costs After Funding 2514 

  

 
 

52



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

23 
 

£000 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Cumulative 

Total 

Set-Up Costs Before Funding 95 419 - 514 

Set-Up Costs After Funding 95 2,419 - 2,514 

Transition Costs     

 
 
 
 
Recharges By Partner Funds to LGPSC in respect of Set-Up Costs 

£000 At 1 April-
18 

Recharges in  
Year 

Settled in 
Year 

At 31 March-
19 

Set-Up Cost Recharges 502 - (502) - 

 
Governance, Operator and Product Development Charged by LGPSC to Partner Funds 
£000 At 1 April-19 Charges in Year Settled in 

Year 
At 31 March-20 

Total 151 898 (774) 275 

 
Other Transactions between Partner Funds and LGPSC 
£000 At 1 April-19 Charges in Year Settled in 

Year 
At 31 March-20 

Interest Payable 43 36 (43) 36 

Total 43 36 (43) 36 

 
 
The following Investment management costs have been charged by the pool to the Leicestershire 
Fund. 
 
LGPSC Investment Management Expenses Charged to Partner Funds 

 £000 Direct Total Bps Charge 

1 Ad Valorem 1,325  1,325  26.08  

2 Performance -  -  -  

3 Research -  -  -  

4 PRIIPS Compliance -  -  -  

5 Other (provide details) -  -  -  

 Management Fees 1,325  1,325  26.08  

6 Commissions 192  192  3.78  

7 Acquisition/issue costs 29  29  0.57  

8 Disposal costs -  -  -  

9 Registration/filling fees -  -  -  

10 Taxes and Stamp Duty 172  172  3.39  

11 Other (provide details) -  -  -  

 Implicit Costs 1,500  1,500  29.53  

 Transaction Costs 1,893  1,893  37.26  

      -  

12 Custody/Depositary 49  49  0.96  

13 Other (provide details)     -  

53



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

24 
 

  Fund Accounting 13  13  0.26  

  Transfer Agent 4  4  0.08  

  External Audit 4  4  0.08  

 Performance Reporting 6  6  0.12  

 Total Costs 3,294  3,294  64.84  

Note: The total of the analysis should reconcile to request (6) below 

 
*BPS= Basis points charged based on Assets under Management 

54



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

25 
 

£000  1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 Total 
2019/20 

Costs 

  AUM At 
31 March 
2020 £m 

2019/20 
Bps 

Charge 

Global Multi-Manager  
836          151        

11
8  

1,436  36  11  2,588      307  71.29 

GEMS  482          41  29      54  64  13  16  699      152  51.78 

ACS Sub-Funds  1,3
18  

-  -  -  -  192  29  -  -  
17

2  
1,500  49  27  3,287      459    

                                      

Private Equity 2018 V’tage  7                          7      10  7.00 

Alternative Vehicles   7  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  7      10    

                    

Total  1,3
25  

-  -  -  -  192  29  -  -  
17

2  
1,500  49  27  3,294      469  64.84 

 
 
Items 1 – 13 relate to the categories highlighted in the management costs table. 

Asset Under Management & Performance by Product / Service 

£000  AUM At  
1 April-19 £m 

AUM At  
31  March-20 £m 

 One Year Gross 
Performance % (*) 

One Year Net 
Performance % (*) 

Passive Benchmark 
Used 

One Year Passive 
Index % (*) 

Global Multi-Manager  340  307    - N/A FT: All World - 

GEMS  -  152      N/A    

ACS Sub-Funds  340  459           

               

Private Equity 2018 Vintage  10 10          

Alternative Vehicles   10  10           

         

Total  350  469       

 

(*) Inception to 31 March 2019

55



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

26 
 

56



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

27 
 

8. Actuarial Statement 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (“the Fund”) Actuarial 

Statement for 2019/20 
This statement has been prepared in accordance with Regulation 57(1)(d) of the Local Government Pension 

Scheme Regulations 2013.   It has been prepared at the request of the Administering Authority of the Fund for 

the purpose of complying with the aforementioned regulation.  

Description of Funding Policy 

The funding policy is set out in the Administering Authority’s Funding Strategy Statement (FSS), dated March 

2020.  In summary, the key funding principles are as follows: 

 to ensure the long-term solvency of the Fund using a prudent long-term view.  This will ensure that 

sufficient funds are available to meet all members’/dependants’ benefits as they fall due for payment; 

 to ensure that employer contribution rates are reasonably stable where appropriate; 

 to minimise the long-term cash contributions which employers need to pay to the Fund, by recognising 

the link between assets and liabilities and adopting an investment strategy which balances risk and 

return (this will also minimise the costs to be borne by Council Tax payers); 

 to reflect the different characteristics of different employers in determining contribution rates.  This 

involves the Fund having a clear and transparent funding strategy to demonstrate how each employer 

can best meet its own liabilities over future years; and 

 to use reasonable measures to reduce the risk to other employers and ultimately to the Council Tax 

payer from an employer defaulting on its pension obligations. 

The FSS sets out how the Administering Authority seeks to balance the conflicting aims of securing the 

solvency of the Fund and keeping employer contributions stable.  For employers whose covenant was 

considered by the Administering Authority to be sufficiently strong, contributions have been stabilised to have 

a sufficiently high likelihood of achieving the funding target over 17 years.  Asset-liability modelling has been 

carried out which demonstrate that if these contribution rates are paid and future contribution changes are 

constrained as set out in the FSS, there is at least a 75% likelihood that the Fund will achieve the funding target 

over 17 years. 

Funding Position as at the last formal funding valuation 

The most recent actuarial valuation carried out under Regulation 62 of the Local Government Pension Scheme 

Regulations 2013 was as at 31 March 2019. This valuation revealed that the Fund’s assets, which at 31 March 

2019 were valued at £4,312 million, were sufficient to meet 89% of the liabilities (i.e. the present value of 

promised retirement benefits) accrued up to that date. The resulting deficit at the 2019 valuation was £537 

million. 

Each employer had contribution requirements set at the valuation, with the aim of achieving their funding 

target within a time horizon and liability measure as per the FSS. Individual employers’ contributions for the 

period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023 were set in accordance with the Fund’s funding policy as set out in its 

FSS.   

Principal Actuarial Assumptions and Method used to value the liabilities 

Full details of the methods and assumptions used are described in the 2019 formal valuation report. 

57



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

28 
 

Method 

The liabilities were assessed using an accrued benefits method which takes into account pensionable 

membership up to the valuation date; and makes an allowance for expected future salary growth to 

retirement or expected earlier date of leaving pensionable membership. 

Assumptions 

A market-related approach was taken to valuing the liabilities, for consistency with the valuation of the Fund 

assets at their market value.  

The key financial assumptions adopted for the 2019 valuation were as follows: 

Financial assumptions 31 March 2019 

Discount rate 3.8% 

Salary increase assumption 2.8% 

Benefit increase assumption (CPI) 2.3% 

The key demographic assumption was the allowance made for longevity. The life expectancy assumptions are 

based on the Fund's VitaCurves with improvements in line with the CMI 2018 model, an allowance for 

smoothing of recent mortality experience and a long-term rate of 1.25% p.a.  Based on these assumptions, the 

average future life expectancies at age 65 are as follows:  

        

Males Females 

Current Pensioners  21.5 years  23.8 years 

Future Pensioners*  22.2 years  25.2 years 

*Aged 45 at the 2019 Valuation. 

Copies of the 2019 valuation report and Funding Strategy Statement are available on request from the 

Administering Authority to the Fund.  

Experience over the period since 31 March 2019 

Markets were disrupted by COVID 19 which resulted in difficult market conditions towards the end 

of the financial year. As a result, the funding level of the Fund as at 31 March 2020 has reduced 

versus that reported in the previous formal valuation.  

The next actuarial valuation will be carried out as at 31 March 2022. The Funding Strategy Statement 

will also be reviewed at that time. 

 

Tom Hoare FFA  

10 June 2020 

For and on behalf of Hymans Robertson LLP 

 

58



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

29 
 

 
9. Financial Statements  
 
The funds financial statements can be found on the link below. The financial statements are 
currently being audited. 
 
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-spending/accounts-and-payments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

59

https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-spending/accounts-and-payments


Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

30 
 

10.             GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This is the governance compliance statement of the Leicestershire Pension Fund. The Fund 

is a statutory one that is set up under an Act of Parliament and the administering authority 

is Leicestershire County Council (the Council). This statement has been prepared as 

required by the Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) (No. 3) Regulations 

2007. 

2.0 FUNCTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

2.1 Leicestershire County Council has delegated the responsibility for decisions relating to the 

Leicestershire Pension Fund in accordance with Section 101 of the 1972 Superannuation 

Act This delegation to a specialist committee is in line with guidance from the Chartered 

Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA). The Committee’s principal aim is to 

consider pensions matters with a view to safeguarding the interests of all pension fund 

members. 

2.2 The LPC meets five times a year and its members act in a quasi-trustee capacity. One of 

these meetings is specifically used to focus entirely on investment strategy. No substantive 

issues of investment policy will be carried out without the prior agreement of the LPC or, in 

extreme circumstances and where it is impractical to bring a matter to the LPC, following 

consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair. 

2.3 The LPC may delegate certain actions to the Director of Corporate Resources. It is the 

expectation of the LPC that some of the more administrative matters relating to 

investment management, such as the appointment of a custodian, are carried out by the 

Director of Corporate Resources. 

2.4 An Investment Subcommittee, with its members drawn from the LPC, is a decision-making 

Subcommittee and will generally deal with more technical aspects of investment (such as 

looking at potential new investment opportunities or dealing with the appointment of new 

investment managers), any decisions made by the Subcommittee are reported at the 

following LPC 

2.5 The  Local Pension Board was established in accordance with the Local Government 

Pension Scheme (Amendment) (Governance) Regulations 2015 to assist the Administering 

Authority in ensuring the effective and efficient governance and administration of the 

Fund, including securing compliance with LGPS Regulations, other legislation and the 

requirements of the Pensions Regulator. The LPC, in fulfilling its functions, will have regard 

to advice of the Board.   

2.6         The Director of Corporate Resources oversees the implementation of Fund policy and the 

management of the day-to-day operational functions through the Fund’s service areas. 

3.0 REPRESENTATION 

60



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

31 
 

3.1 The LPC is made up of 13 members – five members representing Leicestershire County 

Council, two representing Leicester City Council, two jointly representing the District 

Councils, one jointly representing De Montfort/Loughborough Universities and three non-

voting staff representatives. The ten voting members are appointed using the due political 

process or, in the case of the two universities, by joint arrangement. There will be at least 

one staff representative position available annually and a vote will be held to fill any 

vacancies at the Annual Meeting of the Fund. 

3.2  The LPB is made up of six voting members – three employer representatives (two elected 

Members of Leicestershire County Council and one elected Member from Leicester City 

Council) and three employee representatives. There will be at least one employee 

representative position available annually, as well as for a reserve employee 

representative,  and a vote will be held to fill any vacancies at the Annual Meeting of the 

Fund. 

4.0 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 

4.1 An Annual Meeting of the Pension Fund is held annually,  to which all employee members 

and other interested parties are welcome. The purpose of the meeting is to present the 

Annual Report of the Fund and to report on current issues, as well as to elect employee 

representatives for any vacant positions on the LPC and the LPB. 

4.2 A number of other initiatives to involve stakeholders also take place, including: 

- Presentations by the Fund/Actuary to employing bodies; 
- Pensions roadshows at various venues; 
- The Annual Report and Account of the Pension Fund; 
- Other communications to members. 
 

5.0 REVIEW AND COMPLIANCE WITH BEST PRACTICE 

5.1 This statement will be kept under review and will be revised and published following any 

material change in the governance arrangements of the Pension Fund. 

                 5.2 The regulations require a statement as to the extent to which the governance 

arrangements comply with guidance issued by the Secretary of State. This guidance 

contains a number of best practice principles and these are shown below with the 

assessment of compliance. 

Principle Compliance/Comments 

Structure  

                               The strategic management of fund assets clearly rests with the main 

committee established by the appointing council. 

Fully compliant 

61



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

32 
 

                                  That representatives of participating LGPS employers, admitted 

bodies and scheme members are members of the committee. 

Fully compliant 

                                 That where a secondary committee has been established, the 

structure ensures effective communication across both levels. 

Fully Compliant 

                                  That where a secondary committee has been established, at least 

one seat on the main committee is allocated for a member of the 

secondary committee 

                           All Investment Subcommittee 

will be full LPC members, 

so Fully Compliant 

Representation  

                             That all key stakeholders are afforded the opportunity to be 

represented within the main committee structure (including 

employing authorities, scheme members, independent professional 

observers and expert advisors) 

Fully Compliant 

                                     That where lay members sit on a main committee, they are treated 

equally and are given full opportunity to contribute to decision 

making, with or without voting rights 

Fully Compliant 

Selection and Role of Lay Members  

                               That committee members are fully aware of their status, role and 

function they are required to perform. 

Fully Compliant 

Voting  

                                   The policy of the administering authority on voting rights is clear and 

transparent, including the justification for not extended voting rights 

to certain groups 

Fully Compliant 

Training/Facility Time/Expenses  

                          That the policy applies equally to all members of committees Fully Compliant 

Meetings (frequency/quorum)  

That the main committee meet at least quarterly Fully Compliant 

                              That secondary committees meet at least twice a year and the 

meetings are synchronised with the main committee 

                          The Investment 

Subcommittee meets 

regularly, so Fully 

Compliant 

                                 If lay members are not included in formal governance arrangements, 

a forum is available outside of these arrangements by which their 

interests can be represented 

                                Lay members are included 

on main committee, so 

Not Relevant 

62



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

33 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Access  

                                          That, subject to any rules in the Council’s constitution, all 

members have equal access to committee papers, documents and 

advice that falls to be considered by the main committee 

Fully Compliant 

Scope  

                                         That administering authorities have taken steps to bring wider 

scheme issues within the scope of the governance arrangements 

Fully Compliant 

Publicity  

                                    That the administering authority have published details of their 

governance arrangements in such a way that stakeholders with an 

interest in the way in which the scheme is governed can express an 

interest in wanting to be part of those arrangements 

                            Fully Compliant. A copy of 

this statement has been 

sent to all employing 

authorities. 

63



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

34 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

64



Specialists in Investment Risk and Return Evaluation 

Quarterly Risk and Return Analysi

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

s  

  Period ending 31st March 2020

65



 

 

 

 
                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                Specialists in Investment Risk and Return Evaluation  
 

 

Portfolio Evaluation Ltd Market Commentary Q1 2020 (Sterling) 
Over the last few years we have commented on rising equity markets and positive asset class returns despite a slowing of global economic growth. Unfortunately the 
end of February 2020, despite new equity market highs early on, saw a ‘black swan’ event due to the global spread of coronavirus from China to the rest of the world 
resulting in havoc in investment markets towards the end of February and much of March. In equity markets nobody escaped. Global equities had their fastest decline 
ever and the cash market for riskier bonds, like in 2008, became illiquid. The oil price reached new lows and property companies were confronted with both rising 
financing costs and falling revenues as customers defaulted on paying rent. Even ‘safe’ government bonds initially only offered limited protection due to the dash for US 
cash and gold. It was only after both governments and central banks launched monetary and budgetary programs to protect companies and employees did some calm 
return to the markets and bank yields settled down and equity markets recovered a significant part of the negative returns. However lockdowns are impacting local 
economies hard as factory output and consumer demand falls due to concerns over jobs and the ‘marketplace’ not being open. The leisure sector will be impacted 
throughout 2020 as it will probably be the last are to be released from lockdown. Looking forwards market commentators are cautious as we are dependent on central 
banks and government policies and the implications and timings of monetary policy, budgetary policy, lockdown relaxation policies and their support of health systems. 
 

 
 

-35

-30

-25

-20

-15

-10

-5

0

5

10

15

UK
Equities

UK Large Cap UK Mid
Cap

UK Small Cap UK
Value

UK
Growth

US
Equities

Europe ex UK
Equities

Japan Equities Emerging
Market
Equities

Global
Equities

Global Value Global Growth UK
Gilts

UK Long dated
gilts

UK Index
Linked Gilts

UK Non Govt Cash Global High
Yield Hedged

EM Debt
Hedged

Property Commodities GBP / $ GBP / Euro GBP / Yen

%

Quarterly Investment Returns for the period ended 31st March 2020

1

66



 

 

 

 
                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                Specialists in Investment Risk and Return Evaluation  
 

 

In terms of performance Japan was the best performing equity market. The UK equity market appears particularly hard hit but this is partly due to sterling weakness 
increasing non UK equity returns. Typically in market crashes we expect value stocks to outperform growth stocks but that has not been the case this time. The energy 
sector was the worst performer, due to the persistent drop in the oil price. Financials, facing a jump in non-performing loans and dividend payment cancellations plus 
commodity and property stocks were also bad performers. On the other hand, the healthcare sector and consumer staples, two key industries in this crisis, outperformed. 

Technology also did well; this sector is cash-rich and may benefit from structural trends enhanced by the current crisis.  

 
Risk within asset classes and multi asset class portfolios will have increased as the risk levels between asset classes has increased as market risk has more than doubled 
and correlations between asset classes have increased. This is not unusual in these types of circumstances. However we would expect a decrease in volatility and 
correlations over the next six months as markets and the world stabilises. 
 
For further information If you would like further information about the topics contained in this newsletter or would like to discuss your investment performance requirements please 
contact Nick Kent or Deborah Barlow    Tel: +44 (0)1937 841434 (e-mail: nick.kent@portfolioevaluation.net) or visit our website at www.portfolioevaluation.net.   Please note that all numbers, 

comments and ideas contained in this document are for information purposes only and as such are not investment advice in any form. Please remember that past performance is not a guide to future performance. 

-35

-30

-25

-20

-15

-10

-5

0

5

10

15

20

UK
Equities

UK Large Cap UK Mid
Cap

UK Small Cap UK
Value

UK
Growth

US
Equities

Europe ex UK
Equities

Japan Equities Emerging
Market
Equities

Global
Equities

Global Value Global Growth UK
Gilts

UK Long dated
gilts

UK Index
Linked Gilts

UK Non Govt Cash Global High
Yield Hedged

EM Debt
Hedged

Property Commodities GBP / $ GBP / Euro GBP / Yen

%

Investment Returns for the Year 
ended 31st March 2020

2

67

mailto:nick.kent@portfolioevaluation.net
http://www.portfolioevaluation.net/


Client: Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

Manager: Multi-manager

Mandate: Total Fund

Asset Class: Combined Assets

Benchmark: LCC - Total Fund Index

Inception: 31-Mar-2016

Mkt Val: £4.1bn

Total Fund Overview

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

Report Period: Quarter Ending March 2020

0.1

5 Yr Since Mar 16 (p.a.)Fin YTD 1 Yr 3 Yr 10Yr

-8.4 -2.3 -2.3 2.5

Excess Return Analysis (%)

6.4

QTR

6.5

-2.0 -0.7

1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr Mar 16

Portfolio Return -11.2 -4.3 -4.3 1.8

Benchmark Return

Excess Return -2.8 -2.0

Active Risk 2.1 1.9 1.8

Portfolio Risk 9.7 6.9 7.1

Benchmark Risk 7.8 6.1 6.2

All returns for periods in excess of 1 year are annualised. The portfolio return is net.  

-4.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

% % 

%%
Aggressive

Active Plus

Active

Core

Indexed

Active Risk

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

Ex-Post Active Risk Analysis (%)

Expected Active 
Risk Ranges

Ex-Post Active Risk measures the volatility of the actual excess returns achieved by the Portfolio/Fund.
Excess Return Consistency Analysis measures the frequency of the Portfolio/Fund’s outperformance (Blue) and underperformance (Red) versus its benchmark, calcula ted using monthly (or quarterly if indicated) returns since inception.

4.2%

6.3%

16.7%

12.5%

37.5%

8.3%

6.3%

8.3%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

< -0.75 -0.75 to -0.51 -0.50 to -0.26 -0.25 to -0.01 0.00 to 0.25 0.26 to 0.50 0.51 to 0.75 > 0.75

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 %

Range of Excess Returns - Since inception

Excess Return Consistency Analysis

3

68



Market Value: £4.1bn

4.0

-0.3

-0.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1 0.0-0.4 -0.3

Total Liquid 

Multi Asset 

Credit

-1.1

0.0

1.1

0.6

0.7

4.0

Total 

Infrastructure

0.6

1.7

1.1

9.1

10.4

3.0

11.2 0.0

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 31st March 2020

84.5

84.5

-2.0

-1.6

-0.4

Total Fund ex 

Hedge 

(Gross)

-2.0

-9.9

-7.9

0.0

0.0

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.5

0.0-0.3

-0.3

3.0

Cash

0.1

0.3

0.1

1.0

0.5

0.710.0

Total 

Alternatives

-4.4

0.5

-4.9

2.3

Total Glb 

Credit Priv 

Debt

12.6

10.0

-2.5

Total Inv 

Grade Credit

0.0

2.4

Total 

Targeted 

Return

-3.4

1.1

-17.0

-6.4

-4.5

10.4

-10.6

-0.4

27.5

-0.2

22.7

24.2

-0.3

0.0

27.5 2.5

2.5

-1.1

0.3

7.5

-1.5

5.0

5.0

5.3

9.7

24.8

26.9 6.85.9

4.8

-2.8

98.8

0.0

44.9

27.0

42.2

42.5

-1.3

-0.2

-0.1

98.3 98.3

-17.3

Asset Allocation 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess Return (%)

-1.3

42.5

Excess Return

27.0 10.0

0.2

-2.3

40.6100.0

98.8

0.8

4.8

46.1

-18.0

Excess Return

100.0

-11.2 -22.4-11.3

-8.4

Total Fund 

(Net)
Total Equity

-4.3

Benchmark Return -7.9

-2.8

Total Fund ex 

Hedge (Net)

-2.0

Total Fund 

(Gross)

Total Real 

Income

-2.8 -2.3

0.3

100.0 25.0

-2.8

-1.5

0.3

-19.6

-1.6

Portfolio Return

Benchmark Start

Benchmark End 100.0

Portfolio Start

100.0Portfolio End

-8.4

100.0

-0.6

-1.9

-1.3

8.8

0.1

-0.1

10.0

24.8

9.8

9.8

0.0 0.0

0.7

2.4

1.6

7.1

-0.3

-15.9

15.7

0.6

Returns 

Summary (%)

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary (%)

100.0

100.0 7.5

Stock Selection

84.5

84.5

-9.9

-1.2

-0.4

-1.1 0.8

Total EMM 

Debt

-2.0

0.0

Total Private 

Equity

Total 

Property

-0.1

-0.1 -0.1

Total Equity 

ex Hedge

Total 

Inflation 

Linked

-0.3

9.2

1.1

-1.1

0.0

10.5

10.5

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

-20.0

-10.0

0.0

10.0

20.0

%%

-10.0

0.0

10.0

20.0

Net Exposure Start

The Returns Summary details the Portfolio, Benchmark and Excess Returns. The Excess Returns are plotted. The Asset Allocation Summary details the weights held by the portfolio and benchmark in each asset class/manager. The green plots are the over/underweightexposures of the Fund (v Fund benchmark) at the beginning and end of the period.  The Attribution to Excess Return, identifies how each asset class/manager 
has contributed to the overall excess return of the Total Fund.  It is broken down into Asset Allocation (how successful the decision to over/underweight each asset class was) and then into Stock Selection (how well each manager/s decisions have performed).  The Asset Allocation plus the Stock Selection excess returns are all additive and equal the Total Excess Return of the Fund.

Net Exposure End

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

%%%% %%

4

69



Market Value: £4.1bn

15.0

15.0

0.7

0.7

0.0

LGPSC - 

Multi 

Factor

14.4

0.0

-14.4

0.0

0.0

0.0-0.3

LGPSC - 

Global

-2.9

-18.8

-15.9

8.1

-0.3

LGPSC - 

EMM

0.9

-18.1

-19.0

0.00.0

4.0

3.7

4.0

4.0

0.0

-0.4

27.5

27.5

-1.5

7.4

Kames 

Currency 

Hedge

-120.8

-120.7

0.1

1.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.5

0.5

0.0

0.0

-2.3

Cash 

0.1

0.3

0.1

1.0

24.2 0.7

Total 

Alternative

s

-4.9

-1.1

Millennium 

Currency

0.0

0.0

0.0

7.3

0.0

Total 

Equity

42.2

-4.3

26.91.7

1.0

1.0

-1.1

24.8

24.8

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.5

22.7

Total Real 

Income

0.3

0.6

0.3

25.0

-4.4

L&G - EMM 

Equity

0.2

0.0

1.3

1.3

-0.2

-0.2

0.0

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

2.3

1.3

L&G - 

Japanese 

Equity

-22.4

-18.0

46.1

0.00.3

Total 

Equity ex 

Hedge

Total 

Private 

Equity

L&G - 

European 

Equity

0.1

-20.7

-20.8

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

L&G Pacific 

ex Japan 

Equity

0.0

-21.3

-21.3

-2.3

0.0

-1.9 0.0

0.0-2.0

0.1

-0.6

-11.0

2.6

15.7

-0.3

-15.9

5.9

0.5

Total Fund 

(Gross)

L&G - UK 

Equity

L&G - 

Total 

Passive 

Equity

0.2

100.0

Portfolio Return

5.3

4.8

-18.3

1.9

1.7

-18.2

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

7.5

-1.3

Excess Return

100.0

Benchmark End 100.0

-2.8

100.0

Portfolio Start

Portfolio End

Excess Return

Asset Allocation -1.6

Stock Selection -1.2

-2.8

-11.3

-8.4

-0.6

3.5

Benchmark Start

Benchmark Return

-19.9

42.5

40.6

42.5

-25.1-20.2

6.829.5

3.5

-0.1

5.3

2.5

-0.1

32.8

15.5

15.5

7.4

-0.1

7.5

0.0

0.0 0.8-0.8

1.3

-0.4

6.0

-0.7

4.8

-0.7

Attribution to Total Equity Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 31st March 2020

L&G - North 

American 

Equity

0.5

-18.5

-19.0

0.8

0.5

-0.8

-24.9

-11.0

5.4

2.3

-1.3

-0.2

2.5

2.5

-0.3

0.00.0

27.0

-19.6

-17.3

44.9 12.9

11.1

-1.5

6.0

27.0

-20.0

-10.0

0.0

10.0

20.0

-20.0

-10.0

0.0

10.0

20.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

Net Exposure 
Start
Net Exposure End

5

70



Market Value: £4.1bn

0.0

0.4

-0.1

2.5

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.0

-0.1

10.4

9.8

9.8

0.0

1.1

0.5

0.0-2.3

27.5

27.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.5

Cash 

0.1

0.3

0.1

1.0

0.7

Millenniu

m 

Currency

0.0

0.0

0.0

7.3

0.0

-0.4

-1.10.8

42.5

26.9

24.8

24.8

0.2

0.1

1.1

-1.50.8

Total 

Alternativ

es

-4.9

-4.4

0.5

22.7

Total 

Equity

-4.3

-22.4

Total 

Private 

Equity

15.7

24.25.9

-18.0

46.1

42.2

-0.1

-0.3

-15.9

5.3

4.8

4.842.5

0.2 0.2

2.3

1.5

-1.3

0.0

0.0

0.5

0.0

-1.1

0.3

5.0

0.0

2.5

0.00.0

5.0

0.0

1.0

0.0

Total Real 

Income

0.3

0.6

-0.1

0.8

0.0-0.1

0.3

25.0

-0.8

-1.3

1.0

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

9.7

10.0

5.0

0.4

0.5

0.5

1.7

1.1

Kames 

Capital 

0.0

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

-0.1

0.0

0.1

-15.1

0.7

-1.2

Colliers 

Direct 

Property

2.4

1.6

0.7

7.1

6.8

Total 

Infrastruc

ture

0.6

Kames 

Capital IL

-1.2

2.1

Aviva

-1.7

10.0

-2.4

-1.3

4.9

JPM Infra

Total 

Fund 

(Gross)

Portfolio Return

-2.8

100.0

Portfolio Start

Portfolio End

Benchmark Return -8.4

Excess Return

Benchmark Start

-1.2

Total 

Property

-1.9

-1.3

-0.6

8.8

-0.1

100.0

-11.3

Excess Return -2.8

100.0

Benchmark End 100.0

Asset Allocation -1.6

Stock Selection 0.0

2.7

0.0

0.0

-0.1

0.0

2.7

0.8

0.0

1.5

0.2

0.0

0.20.1 -0.10.1

5.0

-0.1

Total 

Inflation 

Linked

5.0

6.8

2.3

2.3 0.6

0.5

-1.3

-0.5

4.5

1.0

0.0

0.7

7.1

1.1

5.0

-2.9

2.3

2.4

1.6

0.3

2.5

13.0

1.1

11.9

1.4

1.8

-1.83.7

9.1

Attribution to Total Real Income Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 31st March 2020

3.5

3.0

3.0

0.0

0.5

1.1

3.1

2.2

IFM Infra
Kames 

Capital II

0.5

KKR Infra Infracapital

-13.2

1.8

Stafford 

Timberlan

d

-3.6

-1.3

-2.4

-0.3

-1.3

Colliers 

Indirect 

Pooled 

Property

-1.52.6

1.9 0.7

-2.5

-20.0

-10.0

0.0

10.0

20.0

-10.0

-5.0

0.0

5.0

10.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

6

71



Market Value: £4.1bn

-0.3

0.0

4.0

-2.5

1.2

9.2

10.0

10.5

-0.4

10.5

-0.3

0.0

Total 

Liquid 

Multi 

Asset 

Credit

-1.1

0.0

1.1

0.6

0.7

4.0

-0.3

-0.1

-0.3

-0.1

0.8

0.0

-0.1

Total 

Alternativ

es

-4.9

-4.4

0.5

22.7

24.2

Total Real 

Income

0.3

0.6

0.3

25.0

26.9

-2.3

-1.3

-1.1

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.8

-0.3

-15.9

5.3

5.9

24.8

24.84.8

0.0

0.0

Total 

Equity

-4.3

-22.4

-18.0

46.1

42.2

Total 

Private 

Equity

15.7

Cash 

0.1

0.3

0.1

1.0

Millenniu

m 

Currency

0.0

0.0

0.0

7.3

M&G DOF

-3.1

-1.9

1.1

2.1

2.1

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

-0.2

0.0

27.5

-1.5

-0.4

2.32.3

Ashmore 

EMM Debt

-16.3

-6.4

-9.9

2.4

0.7

Christoffer

son Robb 

& 

Company

5.9

1.8

4.1

0.0

2.5

2.5

-0.2

0.0

0.5

0.5

2.5

2.5

-0.1

0.0

2.5

2.5

-0.3

0.5

0.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

42.5

5.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

-0.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

-1.5

3.6

Total 

EMM Debt

-17.0

-6.4

-10.6

2.4

EnTrust 

Permal

6.5

1.1

-0.4

0.0

0.0

0.3

0.3

0.0

4.0

4.0

-0.4

0.0

0.0

Pictet

-10.0

1.1

-11.1

3.6

3.5

-0.3

Aspect 

Capital 

Partners

3.7

Ruffer

-0.4

1.1

Excess Return -2.8

100.0

Portfolio Start

4.0Portfolio End

-0.4 0.0

0.3 0.0

-1.2

Asset Allocation -1.6

Stock Selection -1.1

Total Fund 

(Gross)

Portfolio Return

Benchmark Return

Benchmark Start 42.5 4.8

-11.3

-8.4

0.8

-4.5

Excess Return -2.8

100.0

Benchmark End 100.0 7.5

100.0

11.2

27.5

-0.2

-3.4

1.1

Total 

Targeted 

Return

1.1

3.5

10.4 3.1

3.5

7.5

0.0

1.0

1.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

-0.1

7.0

-0.4

7.0

1.1

1.2

Total Inv 

Grade 

Credit

-1.1

0.0

1.1

JPM 

Global 

Credit

-1.1

Total Glb 

Credit 

Private 

Debt

-3.7

-4.2

0.0

0.0

3.0

3.0

-0.3

0.0

1.1

0.6

0.7

Partners 

Group 

Private 

Debt

-5.3

Attribution to Total Alternative Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 31st March 2020

-0.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.1

6.1

6.7

-20.0

-10.0

0.0

10.0

20.0

-10.0

-5.0

0.0

5.0

10.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

7

72



Market Value: £4.1bn

1,749.4

1,680.6

1,221.2

280.7

461.7

95.8

217.9

96.1

69.0

307.3

152.2

N.A.

68.8

246.1

225.7

20.4

1,114.3

282.8

282.8

431.2

90.9

103.6

76.0

144.9

15.8

400.2

29.3

96.8

203.5

24.4

46.2

1,003.8

465.6

145.9

151.8

167.8

0.2

94.5

94.5

N.A.

28.4

28.4

415.3

49.8

88.0

277.5

30.0

4,074.9

4,143.7

4,074.9

4,143.7

CLIENT SPECIFIC:

7.00% FTSE All Share

6.50% FTSE AW North America 70% GBP Hedged 

6.50% FTSE RAFI AW 3000 North America 70% GBP Hedged

2.50% FTSE Developed Europe Ex UK 70% GBP Hedged

2.50% FTSE RAFI 3000 Developed Europe Ex UK 70% GBP Hedged

2.50% FTSE AW Japan 70% GBP Hedged

2.50% FTSE Developed Asia Pacific Ex Japan 50% GBP Hedged

-3.83.7 7.5-17.5 0.0 0.0 0.0-15.1 -10.0 7.5 -17.5 -10.0 7.5

3.8 4.5 -0.8

Infracapital Infrastructure Fund Absolute Return +7.5% Nov-17 0.4 -13.2 1.8

-4.1-4.7 0.0 4.7 -4.7 0.5 4.6

17.7

Stafford Timberland Fund LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Mar-16 3.5 -0.3 1.1 -1.5 0.0 4.7

22.2 4.527.1 15.4 4.6 10.811.9 31.8 4.7 27.1 31.8 4.7

14.5 6.5 8.0

KKR Global Infrastructure Fund LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Mar-16 1.8 13.0 1.1

7.4-2.9 8.0 4.7 3.3 8.0 4.7

5.1 4.5 0.5

IFM Global Infrastructure Fund LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Dec-13 2.5 -1.8 1.1

-1.77.0 7.0 4.7 2.3 2.9 4.6

1.7 1.1 0.6

JPMorgan Infrastructure Fund LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Jun-16 2.2 3.7 1.1 2.6

0.00.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

10.9 10.4 0.5

Total Infrastructure Fund LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Dec-19 0.0 1.7 1.1

0.32.8 2.2 0.6 2.8 2.2 0.6

2.4 1.6 0.7

Kames Capital Index-Linked Fund FTSE All Stocks Index Linked Index Dec-13 6.8 2.4 1.6 0.7

0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0Total Inflation-Linked Fund Client Weighted Index Dec-19 6.8 2.4 1.6

6.9 3.7 3.30.0 0.0 0.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-0.3 -15.9 15.6

Aberdeen Standard Private Equity Fund Absolute Return +7.5% Sep-19 0.5 0.0 1.8 -1.8

0.0 0.0 0.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 -14.4

Private Equity Fund (Adams, LGPSC, Catapult) FTSE All World Index Jan-20 5.4 -0.3 -15.9 15.6

0.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-3.7

LGPSC Central Multi Factor Fund FTSE AW Climate Balanced Jan-00 #VALUE! 0.0 -14.4 0.0 0.0 0.0

-2.5 1.20.0 0.0 0.0 0.0-3.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 1.1 -1.1

Total Global Credit Private Debt Client Weighted Index Dec-19 10.0 -2.5 1.2

0.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

1.1 0.0

Total Liquid Multi Asset Credit LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Dec-19 0.7 0.0 1.1 -1.1 0.0

0.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.01.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-17.0 -6.4 -10.6

Total Investment Grade Credit LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Dec-19 #VALUE! 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0-10.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0Total Emerging Market Debt Fund LCC - Ashmore EMM Debt Dec-19 2.3 -17.0 -6.4

Adams Street: Data is on a 4 month lag

Catapult: Data is on a quarterly lag

JP Morgan: Awaiting data.

Christofferson & Entrust have been lagged by 1 month wile awaiting data 

-18.2 -18.5 0.20.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0LGPSC Central Emerging Market Active fund FTSE All World Emerging Markets Index Jul-19 3.7 -18.1 -19.0 0.9 0.0 0.0

Notes:          

Q1 2020:  Total Fund has been restructured with current assets moving into different pools, the introduction of new pools and some pools have 

ceased.  Given this, the longer term attribution is now longer available as the interpretation of this would be quite misleading given the 

restructuring.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

6.8 0.3-1.0

-4.3 -2.3 -2.0

-1.7 1.9

-2.8 -4.1 -2.3 -1.8

-1.9

Total Fund Benchmark

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund ex Hedge (Gross)

Net & Gross - Currently we have not received all the necessary manager data to complete this, therefore please use with caution. If you require additional 

information please contact us.

7.0

-3.3 -9.5 -6.2 -3.3

-1.7 -3.6 -1.9Mar-16 98.3 -9.9 -7.9 -2.0 -3.6

-10.0

7.2

2.9

5.4

4.6 -6.1

0.0

-1.7 -12.2 -1.7 -12.2 3.9 1.5

LGPS Global Active Equity Fund FTSE All World Index Feb-19 7.4 -18.8 -15.9

Ashmore Emerging Markets Debt Fund LCC - Ashmore EMM Debt Jan-14 2.3 -16.3 -6.4 -9.9 -13.9-13.9

Total Targeted Return Fund LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Apr-16 11.2 -3.4 3.2 4.7

-5.8

4.6

2.8 4.6 -1.812.1

4.7

1.4 4.2 -2.8Client Weighted Index Mar-16 24.2 -4.4 0.5 0.7

7.414.9 7.50.06.6 14.0

-2.8 1.9 4.7 -2.8 4.5 2.6-1.6

Absolute Return +7.5% Dec-17 1.2 5.9 1.8

4.6

7.5 6.6 0.0

4.7LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Mar-16 2.1 -1.9 1.1 -3.1

4.6 -2.6-5.6 -0.9 2.04.7 -5.6

1.9 3.0

3.1

2.8 4.5 -1.7

4.5 -1.5-4.2 1.1 -5.3 -0.9 4.7

3.6 4.7

4.1 14.0 7.5

-1.0 3.6 4.7 -1.0

Manager Summary-Total Fund

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Period Ended 31st March 2020

0.9 3.1 -2.3

4.5 1.3

4.6 -2.7

5.0

1.9

4.5 0.5

5.8

3.9 4.7 -0.9

2.6 4.5 -2.0

-10.9 4.6 -15.5

4.6 -1.92.7

-3.9 0.7 -4.6

0.0

2.2 4.6 -2.4

-3.5

4.7 -10.5 -1.6

1.1

1.3

4.7

13.6 4.7 8.9

4.7

13.6 4.7 8.9

6.06.0 4.7 1.3

-5.8 4.7 -10.5

12.1 4.7 7.4

4.2

7.4

-3.5

-1.5 3.2 -1.5

-3.5 0.7 4.2

-2.9 -9.5

0.1 -0.5 6.66.7 3.3-0.5 0.1-0.4 5.6 1.1

0.7

1.7

0.0 1.1 -1.1

-150.3 0.7

5.02.6

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

Sep-15

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

3.5

4.0

3.7

0.0

Apr-15

Apr-07

Mar-16 0.1 -120.8-120.7

Dec-13

3.7 5.6

5.5

0.1

9.9

3.7

8.4

6.2

Since Inception

5.0 5.1 -0.1

10.5

6.3

9.2

6.1 2.3

5.414.6

0.5 -176.8-176.3

-4.5 -5.5

0.0

PF BM

6.6

0.1

1.4 0.11.4

10.5

-0.2

3.8 3.5

5.0

0.3

7.87.7 -0.1

ER

0.0

0.2

-0.3

6.4

4.8

4.03.8

5.6

0.1

0.1 -3.0

3.0 2.7

0.0 0.0

12.0 4.6

0.4

-1.9

0.1

-0.1

-17.6

1.4

-4.3

4.6

5.7

0.0 0.0

-13.2 0.8

-0.1

-2.1 -0.1 0.0

0.0

0.6 -196.5

-12.4

-12.4 -0.2-1.0

-2.5

-6.2

0.7

17.4 11.3

-24.9 -25.1

-151.0

-1.1

-2.6

-19.0

-18.3

-18.5

FTSE All World Japan Index 2.3

Dec-13

-11.0

-18.2

Dec-13

MSCI Emerging Markets Index Dec-13

3 Year

-4.3

Benchmark
Incep

Date

Weight 

%

Market 

Value 

(£m)

PF BM ER

QTR

BM ERPF

Year To Date

ER

1 Year

-196.0

5.6

2.2 9.1

-0.9

2.7

-3.1

-1.1

-2.9

0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1

3.3

-0.5

-2.90.1

-2.9

0.3

-0.9

-1.2

0.1

-1.1

0.1

-3.0

2.6

-2.9

-0.4

2.7

-3.1

0.0

0.0

4.7 2.3

-2.4

-0.6

15.7

-150.3-151.0

-8.0

0.8

17.4 11.1

0.1

Mar-16

-6.211.1

4.9

Client Weighted Index

Dec-13

Mar-16

0.7

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP)

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Mar-16

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP)

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Mar-16

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

Dec-13

Mar-16

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP)

-1.3

-3.6 -1.3

-1.3

-1.9

-1.7

-2.4 -1.3

-0.3 -15.95.9

9.7 -1.3

0.626.9 0.3

6.8

1.7

2.3

Dec-13

Client Specific Index

LIBOR 1 Month

Client Specific Index

Dec-13

11.1

FTSE All Share Index

BM

-18.5

-0.1 -2.2

0.1

0.6

PF

1.90.6

1.4

-12.4

-12.6

0.50.5

-8.0 -8.5

-18.0

-2.1

-8.5

-18.5

FTSE All World Index

ERBMPF

-18.0

-13.2

-11.9 0.4

-3.5

FTSE Developed Asia Pacific Ex. Japan Index Mar-13 -21.3 -21.3

-11.0

-10.0

-4.9

-1.2-1.3

1.1

2.3

6.5

-1.5

-4.5

-0.3

1.1 5.4

0.8

-0.4

1.1

1.1

1.1

0.5

-11.1

0.3

-17.7 -17.6

0.2

1.4 0.1

0.0

-0.1

0.2

-2.2

0.0

0.5

-11.5

-12.8

-11.5

-0.9 0.5

-9.3

-11.5 -8.8 -2.7

-9.3 -3.5 1.1

-11.9

6.4-0.5

-2.7

Client Weighted Index Mar-16 42.2 -22.4 -18.0 -12.8

Client Weighted Index Mar-16 0.4

-4.2

-0.9 0.1-0.829.5 -19.9 -20.2

0.1

1.6 0.2

5.1

-0.1

-4.2

-1.6

-1.4

5.1

-1.4

1.1

5.3 -20.7 -20.8 0.1 -12.4

Total Equity Fund

L&G UK Equity Fund

L&G North American Equity Fund

L&G Japanese Equity Fund

L&G Total Passive Equity Fund

L&G European Equity Fund

Total Equity Fund ex Hedge

-4.1

Client Weighted Index

1.1 -0.8

L&G Pacific Ex Japan Equity Fund

L&G Emerging Markets Equity Fund

-17.7

-12.6 0.1 -0.1

EnTrustPermal Fund

Kames Capital Property Fund

-6.2

Kames Currency Hedge Fund

Total Private Equity Fund

Total Real Income Fund

Colliers Pooled Property

Total Alternatives Fund

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Nov-16Kames Capital II Property Fund

Colliers Direct Property Fund

Aviva Property Fund

Total Property Fund

Aspect Capital Partners Fund

Ruffer Fund

Pictet Fund

Cash Fund

Partners Group Private Debt Fund

JPMorgan Global Credit Fund

Christofferson Robb & Company Fund

M&G DOF Fund

Mar-16

LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Mar-16

0.7

6.7

LIBOR 1 Month 0.3 0.1 0.1 3.4 0.7 2.7 3.4 0.7 2.7 1.4 0.6 0.8 1.2 0.5 0.6

1.2 1.4 0.1 1.2 5.4 5.6 -0.1 5.8 6.1 -0.2

Mar-16 0.6 -2.5 -1.5 0.1 -1.7 -1.5 0.1 -1.7 5.3 5.6 -0.3 6.2 6.6 -0.4

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (Gross) Client Weighted Index Mar-16 100.0 -11.3 -8.4 -4.1 -2.3 -1.8 2.1 2.5 -0.4 6.9 6.4 0.5

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (Net) Client Weighted Index Mar-16 100.0 -11.2 -8.4 -2.8 -4.3 -2.3 -2.0 1.8 2.5 6.5 6.4 0.1-0.7

Mar-16 40.6 -19.6 -17.3 -2.3 -11.5 -8.8 6.5 7.6 -1.0

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund ex Hedge (Net) Client Weighted Index Mar-16 98.3 -9.9 -7.9 -2.0 -3.9 -1.9 -2.0 -3.9 -1.9 -2.0 1.5 2.9 -1.4 -0.16.7 6.8

32.00% Libor 1 Month +4%

10.00% IPD UK Monthly Property Index

2.50% Ashmore Specific Index

7.50% FTSE All Stocks Index Linked

6.00% MSCI EMM 50% GBP Hedged

8.00% FTSE All World 70% GBP Hedged

4.00% FTSE All World

PF = Portfolio Return     BM = Benchmark Return     ER = Excess Return   

8

73



Total Equity 

Total Equity Ex Hedge

Total Passive Equity -L&G

UK Equities

North American Equities

Japanese Equities

European Equities

Pacifix ex Japan Equities

Emerging Markets Equities

LGPSC Global

LGPS Central Emerging Markets Eq Active

LGPS Central Multi Factor Fund

Kames Other (Currency Hedge)

Total Private Equity

Total Private Equity ex Aberdeen Standard

Aberdeen Standard

Total Real Income

Total Inflation-Linked

Kames Capital IL

Total Infrastructure

JPMorgan Infrastructure

IFM Global Infrastructure

KKR Infrastructure

Stafford Timberland

Infracapital

Total Property

Colliers Indirect Pooled Property

Colliers Direct Property

La Salle Aviva

Kames Capital I 

Kames Capital II

Total Alternatives

Total Targeted Return

Aspect Capital Partners

Pictet

Ruffer

Entrust Permal

Total Emerging Market Debt

Ashmore EMM Debt

Total Investment Grade Credit

Liquid Multi Asset Credit

JPMorgan Global Credit

Total Global Credit Private Debt

Christofferson

M&G

Partners Group Private Debt

Millenium Currency (gain/loss not mk value)

Cash

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund ex Hedge

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

0.0

44,919 1.0 0.5 0 30,030 0.7

277,540 6.7

340,665 7.3 7.3 0 0

281,853 6.1 -0.9 -11,411

97,606 2.1 -0.4 -1,896 88,048 2.1

10.0

49,755 1.1 0.1 2,758 49,752 1.2

429,215 9.2 -1.2 -10,550 415,340

28,353 0.6 0.1 0 28,353 0.7

28,353 0.6 -3.4 0 28,353 0.7

0 0.00 0.0 -3.0 0

2.3

94,544 2.3

94,544113,751 2.4 -0.1 -19,334

11 174 0.0

113,751 2.4 -0.1 -19,334

10.4

103,603 2.5

225,680

3,290

26.9

6.8

282,824

185,803 4.0 0.0

307,268-71,358

-33,613

0.7

9.7

152,190

90,894 2.2

1.8

282,824

8,585

29,310

3,295

75,993

-1,876

-1,102

0.415,843

142,845 3.1 -472 3.5

-2,415

0.1

1.465,928

105,438 2.3

431,209

0.5

421,516

89,048 1.9

6.8

20,433 0.4

9.1 -0.7

1,160,306 25.0

329,534 7.1

5.4

3,290

329,534 7.1

1.2

226,350 4.9

5.3

53,967

0

246,113

-686

-686

0

246,783

-522,4024,645,465 100.0

-15.0

100.04,143,668

68,795

-51,651

1.7

1.7

7,117

5.9

252,462

120,802 2.6

87,132

378,627 8.2

118,214 2.5

5.4

29.5

(%)

Market Val

(£000s)

Exposure

6.8280,697

461,669-108,738

0.0

-27,756 2.396,129

7.4

1.3

0.9

-13,559 95,798

(%)

46.1

44.9

12.9

2,140,664

598,097

2,086,697

-476,966

1,522,268 32.8

(£000s)

1,221,170

345,561 7.4

1,749,423

-411,794

(£000s)

Total Fund Reconciliation

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 31st March 2020

Market Value: £4.1bn

Market Val ExposureGain/Loss

31st December 2019

42.2

Total

-306,823

-84,290

-65,172

217,924

68,953-20,829

0 20,433-0.1

1,396 1,114,2780.2

2.1

96,845 2.3

18,258 0.4

99,275 2.1

-3,575 203,470

144,876

-9,011 400,245

-2,430

30,412 0.7

8.8409,256 -1.2

4.9

25,318 0.5 -878 24,440 0.6

207,045 4.5

1.147,206 1.0 -1,025 46,1800.0

168,406 3.6

164 0.0 0.0

11.2481,475 10.4

1,052,794 22.7 -4.0

144,279 3.1 145,867

168,627 3.6 -16,852

0.0

3.9

1.9

6.9

1.4

2.9

0.6

0

40.6

-635 167,770 4.0

24.2

3.7

-46,146 1,003,824

1,213

-16,263 465,587

3.5

151,775

11.1

5.3

3.7

2.3

0.0

31st March 2020

Net Exp

(%)

3.6

2.9

17.3

1,680,628

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.6

2.9

2.1

-0.4

-0.4

3.6

-0.2

-0.5

-0.6

0.0

-0.1

-0.1

-0.5

4,074,873 98.34,591,499 98.8 0.2 -457,231

9

74



 

 

  
 

 

 
LOCAL PENSION BOARD - 26 OCTOBER 2020   

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
PENSION FUND ADMINISTRATION REPORT  

JULY TO SEPTEMBER 2020 - QUARTER TWO  
 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Board of relevant issues in the 
administration of Fund benefits, including the performance of the Pensions Section 
against its Performance Indicators.  

 
 Background 
 
2. The Pensions Section is responsible for the administration of Local Government 

Pension Scheme benefits of the Leicestershire Pension Fund’s 98,000 members. 
  
 Performance Indicators 
 
3.  Attached as an appendix to this report are the performance indicators for the 

Pensions Section, which form part of the Section’s Service Plan and have been 
agreed by the Director of Corporate Resources. These indicators are split into two 
broad categories – how quickly processes are carried out and how customers feel 
they have been kept informed and treated by staff. 

  
  Performance of Pensions Section 
 
4. The results for the July to September 2020 quarter are detailed within Appendix A. 

Whilst the Section continues to work from home, the Pensions Manager is pleased 
with the overall results. 

 
Administration 

  
 General Workloads 

 
5.  The tables show the position in the key work areas, July to September 2020. 

 
 
 

 

75 Agenda Item 7



 

 

July 2020 
 

Area Cases 
completed in 
the period 

Remaining 
cases at the end 
of the period 

Maximum Number of 
Cases at Month End  

Preserved benefits 48 922 900 

Aggregations 8 1,154 450 

Interfunds in 18 132 200 

Retirements 385 415 500 

Deaths 106 128 100 

Transfers Out 
(excluding 
interfunds) 

35 28 100 

Refunds  76 222 400 

 
August 2020 
 

Area Cases 
completed in 
the period  

Remaining 
cases at the end 
of the period 

Maximum Number of 
Cases at Month End 

Preserved benefits 9 1,110 950 

Aggregations 120 1,094 450 

Interfunds in 28 141 200 

Retirements 300 509 600 

Deaths 76 134 100 

Transfers Out 
(excluding 
interfunds) 

25 35 100 

Refunds  51 221 400 

 
September 2020 
 

Area Cases 
completed in 
the period  

Remaining 
cases at the end 
of the period 

Maximum Number of 
Cases at Month End 

Preserved benefits 133 1,080 1,000 

Aggregations 345 838 800 

Interfunds in 8 154 200 

Retirements  312 557 500 

Deaths 53 149 100 

Transfers Out 
(excluding 
interfunds) 

11 57 100 

Refunds  84 197 400 

 
6. The main points to note; 

Year-end was completed in August so in September resource was moved back to 
preserved benefits and aggregations. 
 

76



 

 

7. Transfers out and refunds remain stable and the Section has not seen the 
anticipated rise in cases since the Covid-19 pandemic, which is currently positive. 
 

 
 Year-End 2019/20 
 
8. Annual benefits were provided to 64,844 active and preserved members by the 

statutory deadline of the 31 August 2020. 
 

9. 11 employees at Cleantec and Mellors did not receive their active benefit 
statements because their previous employer Beacon Academy, who outsourced 
their staff, and Cleantec and Mellors have still not signed the legal admission 
agreement, permitting these members to remain active members in the 
Leicestershire Fund.  
 

10. The Pension Section wrote to these members to explain why they had not received 
an annual benefit statement. Once the legal agreements are signed the Pension 
Section will then provide statements to these members. 
 

11. The Pension Manager is pleased to report to the Board there were no material 
breaches with this years’ annual benefit statements. 
 

12. The Pension Section completed the statutory HMRC Taxation Pension Saving 
Statements by the 6 October 2020 deadline. 70 statements were provided. 

  
 
 McCloud/Sargeant and the Cost Cap 
 

13. When the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) changed from a final salary 
to a career average (CARE) pension scheme in April 2014, protections for older 
scheme members were introduced. Similar protections were provided in other 
public sector pension schemes.  
 

14. The Court of Appeal ruled that younger members of the Judges’ and Firefighters’ 
Pension schemes were discriminated against because the protections did not apply 
to them.  
 

15. The Government has confirmed that there will be changes to all main public sector 
schemes, including the LGPS, to remove this age discrimination. This ruling is often 
called the ‘McCloud/Sargeant judgment’.  

  
16. The Government is considering exactly what changes need to be made to remove 

the discrimination from the LGPS and a consultation exercise is taking place. 
However, it is already known scheme members hour changes and breaks in service 
will be needed from April 2014 as part of the remedy. 
 

17. Members benefits will be reassessed to see if the final salary benefits are higher 
than the CARE benefits. If so, revised benefits will be paid. 
 

77



 

 

18. The Pensions Manager has written to all the Fund’s employers to make them aware 
of the remedy and has provided a national template and notes to assist employers 
provide the missing data.  
 

19. The Local  Pension Committee approved the Fund’s consultation reply in 
September 2020 and this is included as Appendix B. 
 
 
Reforming Local Government Exit Pay (known as the £95,000 Exit Cap) 

 
20. On the 7 September 2020 Government published their consultation on reforming 

Local Government Exit Pay. This followed several consultations in this area going 
back four years. 
 

21.  Proposals were principally aimed at senior managers, and sought to limit exit 
packages to £95,000, however there are further measures included that are far 
more reaching.  
 

22. On the 30 September 2020 the House of Commons approved the Exit Cap 
changes and we understand these were then signed by Government officials on the 
1 October 2020. On the 21 October 2020, or very soon afterwards, these changes 
became law.  
 

23. This law change has created an issue for employers and the Pension Fund as the 
Exit Cap Regulations and the LGPS Regulations currently do not align. The 
Pensions Manager believes the intention is that the LGPS Regulations will be 
amended to align these with the Exit Cap Regulations in future and should be 
backdated. 
 

24. Currently under the LGPS Regulations; when a scheme member retires on either 
redundancy or efficiency grounds age 55 or over in the LGPS this creates a 
pension strain cost, paid by the employer to the Pension Fund, requiring the 
scheme member benefits to be paid unreduced.  
 

25. The Exit Cap changes require the Pension Fund to reduce the pension strain by the 
redundancy payment, so the scheme member receives an element of their pension 
reduced. There are other options for scheme members including preserving their 
pension benefit. This option means the members pension will not be paid until a 
date in future when the member chooses to claim payment. Actuarial reductions will 
be applied if this is paid before their normal retirement age. 
 

26.  MHCLG are aware of the discrepancy between the Exit Cap Regulations and the 
LGPS Regulations and plan to provide guidance to Funds on how to proceed. 
 

27. In Pensions Bulletin 14, The Pensions Manager has written to all the Funds 
employers making them aware of the change, informing them they must need to 
contact any staff impacted. This is included as Appendix C 
 

78



 

 

28. Hymans, the Leicestershire Fund Actuary has produced a useful document 
covering how the proposals would impact on employers, scheme members and the 
Fund. This is included as Appendix D. 
 

29. The Pension Fund and Leicestershire County Council (as the employer) plan to 
send separate replies to the consultation. 

 
 

 Governance Items 
 
 Complaints – Internal Disputes Resolution Procedure 
 
30. The Pension Section deals with complaints through the Local Government Pension 

Scheme’s formal Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP). However, 
complaints are usually resolved informally, avoiding the need for the IDRP to 
commence. Initial complaints are often caused by misunderstandings or human 
error and can quickly be resolved. 

 
31. In the period July to September 2020 there were no new IDRP stage 2 appeals. 

 
32. There was development on one Stage 2 case; 

 

 Following receipt of new medical evidence, the member’s previous employer 
reconsidered their previous decision made at Stage 1 and decided to amend 
their earlier decision, granting a higher level of benefits to the member.  

 
 
Implementation of monthly posting 
 
 

33. The Pension Section continues a phased implementation of monthly postings using 
I-Connect, as part of the Leicestershire Fund’s data improvement plan.  

 
34. Having completed the year end work and ensured the Fund’s largest employers 

have up-to-date information posted, Officers have been able to turn their attention 
to the outstanding employers waiting to go live. The main developments in recent 
months include: 

 

 Two employers from the priority 1 list have gone live and been handed over: 
Rawlins Academy and WQE and Regent College Group. 

 

 DMU is due to be handed over at the end of October. Given its size, after the 
handover, Officers will continue to monitor and give greater support to this 
employer. 

 

 Leicestershire Firefighters and Fire Civilians have moved payroll providers from 
East Midland Shared Services to Warwickshire County Council (WCC). 
Resources have been required to communicate the i-Connect requirements and 
WCC is generating a new draft report for checking. Due to the change in payroll 
provider, there are likely to be delays in uploading the monthly data.  

79



 

 

 

 Training has been carried out with two colleagues to assist with onboarding 
priority 2 and 3 employers. 

 

 The Pension Section is continuing to upload the following employers reports to 
control the timing and ensure the quality of data: Leicester City Council, 
Leicestershire County Council and LCC Academies.  

 
 

35. As at the 14 October 2020, 111 of the 191 employers are using i-Connect covering 
32,250 active members.  

 
36. Going forward the focus remains getting priority 1 employers live on i-Connect, as 

these account for over 75% of the outstanding members due to go live (approx. 
3,250 of 4,250 members outstanding).  

 
37. The Fund’s position as at October 2020 is attached as Appendix E. 

 
 

 Reducing Employer Risk and Outstanding Transfer of Undertakings Protection of 
Employment (TUPE) 
 

38. Officer continue to monitor employer risks. This has greater emphasis following the 
Regulation change from September 2020, details of which are included in a 
separate report.  
 

39. The Pension Fund usually required a full bond to be in place for TUPE transfers 
that took place prior to 1 April 2019. This allows the Pension Fund to claim the bond 
value from the bond provider should the contractor fail to make payment of their 
pension costs to the Pension Fund. 

 
40. Since the 1 April 2019 with the introduction of pass-through, the need for a full bond 

has been negated because much of the pension liability moves back to the 
outsourcing employer (the letting employer) at the end of the contract. This has 
significantly reduced the bond value needed by the Fund as security, as there is 
only now a requirement for a capital cost bond to cover the pension strain for the 
members age 55 or over, if they are made redundant and entitled to immediate 
payment of their pension. In some pass-through cases no bond is required. 
 

41. Officers monitor the bond values and the contract dates, working closely with the 
employers to maintain the required security, but unfortunately some employers do 
not maintain the bonds and allow these to lapse. Officers continue to work hard to 
reintroduce bonds as part of the overall employer risk scoring for the valuation and 
to protect the Fund. 
 

42. The Fund employers are regularly reminded to contact the Pensions Manager as 
quickly as possible if they are considering TUPE transfers out. They are made 
aware all pension issues should be resolved before the staff transfer.  
 

43. As at the 14 October 2020, cases outstanding are detailed in the tables below: 

80



 

 

Bonds Outstanding 
 

Pre April 
2019 or 
pass-
through 

Letting 
employer 

Contractor Full or 
Capital 
Cost 
Bond 

Bond value 
and 
provisional 
end date 

Comments 

Pre April 
2019 

City Council Aspens 
(Crown Hills) 

Full £160,000 – 
31/12/2023 

Document signed by Aspens and 
the Bank. Sent to City for 
completion on 9/9/20 

Pre April 
2019 

Mowbray 
Education 
Trust 

Caterlink Full £59,600 – 
31/7/2021 

Document signed by MET. Awaiting 
confirmation of signature from 
Caterlink and the Bank.  
 
On 1/10/20 Caterlink confirmed 
they will complete this asap 
 

Pre April 
2019  
 
(contract 
extended to 
31/3/2022) 

Tudor Grange 
(Samworth) 

CSE Ltd Full £58,000 – 
31/3/2022 
(previous 
bond lapsed 
on 31/3/2020 
when original 
contract was 
due to end)  
 

Bond agreement sent to Tudor 
Grange and CSE Ltd October 2020 

Pre April 
2019 
 
(contract 
extended to 
31/3/2022) 

Tudor Grange 
(Robert 
Smyth) 

CSE Ltd Full £50,000 – 
31/3/2022 
(previous 
bond lapsed 
on 31/3/2020 
when original 
contract was 
due to end)  
 

Bond agreement sent to Tudor 
Grange and CSE Ltd October 2020 

 
 

Admission Agreement Outstanding (some also have bonds) 
 
 

Pre April 2019 
or pass-
through 

Letting 
employer 

Contractor Full or 
Capital 
Cost 
Bond 

Bond value 
and end date 

Employee 
informed 
of the 
delay 

Comments 

Pass-through 
– date of 
transfer 1 
September 
2019 

Beacon 
Academy 

Cleantec Capital 
Cost 

£33,000 – to 
the end of the 
contract on 31 
March 2021  
 

Yes Document has 
been signed 
electronically but 
LCC Legal 
Services require 
“wet signatures”.  
 
This is being 
resolved by legal 
colleagues. 

81



 

 

Pass-through 
– date of 
transfer 1 
September 
2019 

Beacon 
Academy 

Mellors 
catering 

Capital 
Cost 

£22,000 to the 
end of the 
contract. The 
Fund is 
awaiting clarity 
of the contract 
end date from 
Beacon 
Academy 

Yes Mellors remain 
unable or 
unwilling to co-
operate with Fund 
Officers.  
 
A warning letter 
has been issued 
by the Pensions 
Manager and 
Chair of the Local 
Pension Board to 
Mellors in 
September 2020. 
 

Pass through 
1 May 2020 

Mowbray 
Education 
Trust 

Aspens N/A Contract end 
date 31 July 
2021 – no 
bond required 

No but 
under 
review 

Document signed 
by LCC and MET. 
 
Currently awaiting 
confirmation from 
Aspens. 
 

Pass through 
1 January 
2020 

Hinckley & 
JCC 
Academy 

Caterlink Capital 
Cost 

Not known at 
this stage 

No but 
under 
review  

Academy have 
been reluctant to 
provide the Fund 
with details and 
initially hinted the 
contract would not 
transfer.  
 
The Fund has 
now established it 
has transferred 
and has 
requested details 
from both parties 
to establish the 
type of transfer 
(pass-through or 
not).  
 
Officers have 
chased for the 
pass-through form 
again in 
September 2020. 
 

82



 

 

Pass through 
4 April 2020 

David Ross 
Education 
Trust 

Caterlink Capital 
Cost 

£12,000 (3-
year contract 
with an 
additional 2 
years optional)  

No but 
under 
review 

This is a second 
stage transfer 
from Chartwells. 
 
Fund Officers 
have chased the 
David Ross ET for 
the pass-through 
form again in 
September 2020 
 

Pass through 
1 August 2020 

Tudor 
Grange 

Caterlink N/A Contract end 
date August 
2023 – no 
bond required  

No (recent 
transfer) 

Documents have 
been signed 
electronically but 
LCC legal require 
a wet signature.  
September 2020 

Pass through 
17 September 
2020 

Police MITIE Capital 
Cost 

£190,000 to 
the end of the 
contract 

No (recent 
transfer) 

Bond has yet to 
be approved by 
the Bank. 
 
Documents are to 
be issued shortly, 
just awaiting final 
clarification on the 
scheme employer  
 
(Police and Crime 
Commissioner 
and Chief 
Constable of 
Leicestershire 
Police have 
different 
functions) 
 

 
One case was completed in the quarter is listed below;  

 

 Ashby Hill Top Primary School to Coombes Catering 
 
44. Officers are in regular contact with the employers to ensure all outstanding 

agreements and bonds are completed as quickly as possible. This continues to be 
regularly monitored.  
 
 

  Recommendation 
 
 
45. It is recommended the Board notes all areas of the report. 
 

83



 

 

 
 
  Equality and Human Rights Implications 

 
None specific 
 
Appendix 
 
Appendix A – Key Performance Indicators July to September 2020 
 
Appendix B – Fund’s reply to the consultation on McCloud 
 
Appendix C – The Funds Bulletin to Employers on the £95K Exit Cap 
 
Appendix D – Hymans document – on the £95K Exit Cap  
 
Appendix E – Fund’s position on the role out of monthly postings (October 2020) 
 
 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Ian Howe  
Pensions Manager  
Telephone: (0116) 305 6945 
Email: Ian.Howe@leics.gov.uk 
 
 
Declan Keegan  
Assistant Director of Strategic Finance and Property  
Telephone: (0116) 305 6199 
Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 
 
 
 

84



APPENDIX A – Key Performance Indicators July to September 2020 
 

 
 

*Previous quarters results were temporarily suspended 

due to Covid and the move to home working. 

         

 

Quarter - July to September 2020

Business Process Perspective Target

This 

Quarter

Previous 

quarter
Customer Perspective - Feedback Target

This 

Quarter

Previous 

Quarter

Retirement Benefits notified to members within 

10 working days of paperwork received 92% 95% ▲ 94%

Establish members understanding of info 

provided - rated at least mainly ok or clear 95% 100% ▲ 100%*

Pension payments made within 10 working days 

of receiv ing election 95% 95% ▲ 94%

Experience of dealing with Section - rated at 

least good or excellent 95% 97% ▲ 94%*

Death benefits/payments sent to dependant 

within 10 working days of notification 90% 86% ▼ 95%

Establish members thoughts on the amount of 

info provided - rated as about right 92% 99% ▲ 100%*

Establish the way members are treated - 

rated as polite or extremely polite 97% 100% ▲ 98%*

Email response - understandable 95% 93% ► 94%

Good or better than target ▲ Email response - content detail 92% 92% ▲ 95%

Close to target ► Email response - timeliness 92% 97% ▲ 96%

Below target ▼

85



This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 

Local Government Finance Stewardship 
MHCLG 
2nd floor, Fry Building 
2 Marsham Street 
London 
SW1P 4DF 

Date: 1 September 2020 
My Ref: Pen/IH/McCloud  
Your Ref:  
Contact: Ian Howe 
Phone: 0116 305 6945 
Fax:  
Email: Ian.howe@leics.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
Dear Sirs 
 
Leicestershire Local Government Pension Fund 
Consultation Reply – Amendments to the Statutory Underpin  
LGPS (McCloud/Sargeant) 
 
I write in reply to the consultation on the amendments to the Statutory Underpin. 
The reply is on behalf of the Leicestershire Local Government Pension Fund. 
 
I reply to the 29 questions; 
 
Question 1 – Do you agree with the proposal to remove the discrimination found 
in the McCloud and Sargeant cases by extending the underpin to younger 
scheme members? 
 
Answer 1– Yes 
 
 
Question 2 – Do you agree that the underpin period should end in March 2022? 
 
Answer 2 – Yes 
 
  
Question 3 – Do you agree that the revised regulations should apply 
retrospectively to 1 April 2014?  
 
Answer 3 – Yes 
 
 
Question 4 – Do the draft regulations implement the revised underpin which we 
describe in this paper? 
 

87

ctuohy_1
Text Box
Appendix B



Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 

Answer 4 – Yes 
 
 
Question 5 – Do the draft regulations provide for a framework of protections which 
would work effectively for members, employers and administrators? 
 
Answer 5 – The Fund feels the draft regulations provide for a framework of 
protections which work for members. However, the Fund is concerned about the 
impact on employers and administrators.    
 
Employers need to check and provide hours and service breaks between 1 April 
2014 and 31 March 2022. In this period some employers will have left the Fund, 
merged with other employers (especially Academies joining Multi Academy Trusts) 
and changed payroll providers. For some employers, providing the data will be 
problematic and a pragmatic solution will be required that should be adopted 
nationally for those scheme members where the data is unavailable. 
 
Administrators have the added burden this proposal brings. These will be 
expanded upon later in the consultation reply. 
 
 
Question 6 – Do you have other comments on technical matters related to the 
draft regulations? 
 
Answer 6 – No 
 
 
Question 7 – Do you agree that members should not need to have an immediate 
entitlement to a pension at the date they leave the scheme for the underpin 
protection to apply? 
 
Answer 7 – Yes, this seems reasonable given actuarial factors that could be 
applied when a member claims payment. These factors could decrease or 
increase a member’s benefits depending on their age and membership, at the 
point benefits are paid. 
 
We also agree this extends the protection to include members that previously 
were not covered. 
 
 
Question 8 – Are there any other comments regarding the proposed underpin 
qualifying criteria you would like to make? 

88



Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 

 
Answer 8 – No 
 
 
Question 9 – Do you agree that members should meet the underpin qualifying 
criteria in a single scheme membership for underpin protection to apply? 
 
Answer 9 – Yes, whilst the Fund accepts there are administrative issues in opening 
the aggregation window for a new 12 months (from the date of the regulations) 
for a set group of members, the Fund feels this is eminently more sensible than 
trying to deal with underpins covering more than one scheme if the proposal was 
reversed. 
 
The Fund wishes to raise concern about the increased risk reopening the 
aggregation window could have on employer strain costs. 
 
Because of the increased financial pressure on employers due to Covid-19, some 
Fund employers are looking at potential staff reductions through redundancy 
exercises. The Fund has concern, if a member is being considered for redundancy 
(age 55 plus) and is now able to transfer in earlier service (because of the 
reopened 12 month aggregation window in the proposal), which they previously 
had not transferred, but would now be attractive to do as the member would 
then be able to include this service unreduced with immediate payment, this 
could significantly increase the redundancy capital cost value that the employer 
has to pay to the Fund. 
 
This would be an unintended consequence of the proposals resulting in a 
significant cost increase. This could make cases, that could have been 
considered for early release unviable, which makes the necessary staff reductions 
more difficult for the employers to resolve. 
 
A proposed remedy is for any pension release granted in the next 12 months to 
only apply to the service originally held with the employer. It should also only 
apply to actives and preserved members when the Regulations change, it should 
not include pensioners. 
 
The Fund is also concerned that members who have rightly decided not to 
aggregate previously, often because their pay with PI is significantly higher with 
their previous Fund, may now question their decision given they are having a 
second opportunity to aggregate. This generates the risk that members could 
make a bad decision based upon their perceived benefits of McCloud. The 

89



Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 

communications must be very clear to members, otherwise this could lead to 
future complaints and appeals.  
 
 
 
Question 10 – Do you agree with our proposal that certain active and deferred 
members should have an additional 12 months period to decide to aggregate 
previous LGPS benefits as a consequence of the proposed changes? 
 
Answer 10 – Yes, as detailed in answer 9, but with employer protection for 
additional pension release against the increased risk detailed. 
 
 
Question 11 – Do you consider that the proposals outlined in paragraphs 50 to 52 
would have “significant adverse effects” in relation to the pension payable to or 
in respect of affected members, as described in section 23 of the Public Service 
Pensions Act 2013? 
 
Answer 11 – No, the Fund’s view is that, it is very unlikely to impact adversely on 
pensions payable to current pensioner members. 
 
 
Question 12 – Do you have any comments on the proposed amendments 
described in paragraphs 56 to 59? 
 
Answer 12 – The Fund feels the paragraphs 56 to 59 are reasonable and designed 
to benefit scheme members and their surviving partners and provide a consistent 
and effective approach. 
 
 
Question 13 – Do you agree with the two-stage underpin process proposed? 
 
Answer 13 – Having reviewed Annex C and the examples in Annex D (pages 62 to 
69) the Fund accepts a two stage underpin is required to guarantee the member 
receives the higher “protected benefit” from either the 60th 2008 scheme or the 
49th CARE 2014 scheme.  
 
The Fund does have concerns about the calculations of the comparisons and 
wishes to stress that the pension system providers will need to ensure their systems 
calculate the options correctly, to ensure the higher option is provided to the 
member. The Fund feels communication to members must be simply and clear, 
otherwise members may become confused, when or if, the protection applies. 

90



Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 

  
 
Question 14 – Do you have any comments regarding the proposed approaches 
outlined above? 
 
Answer 14 – No, the Fund has no comments on the proposed approaches in 
Sections 64 to 102. 
 
 
Question 15 – Do you consider there to be any notable omissions in our proposals 
on the changes to the underpin? 
 
Answer 15 – No 
 
 
Question 16 – Do you agree that annual benefit statements should include 
information about a qualifying member’s underpin protection? 
 
Answer 16 – The Fund agrees the annual benefit statement is the most important 
information a scheme member receives whilst in active or deferred membership. 
However, the Fund feels many members are a little overwhelmed by the 
calculation of their pension already and usually head for the “total annual 
pension” figure and compare this to last year’s value. If the latest value in higher, 
the Fund’s general experience is, the member will accept this without question. 
 
Whilst the Fund does appreciate the proposal, to include the underpin on the 
annual benefit statement, the Fund’s view is this will only add another layer of 
unnecessary confusion to the majority of member’s, especially given this may not 
apply to many members, and if it does, it is only at a future point in time.  
 
However, the Fund does appreciate some members will be aware of McCloud, so 
they may have an expectation this is included. The Fund feels simple 
communication is key to this, probably in terms of agreed wording that explains 
the underpin, rather than including figures that may or may not apply.  
 
The Fund is concerned about administrative costs increasing due to McCloud and 
feels that including the underpin will generate more phone calls and enquiries 
from members, that will take time to answer. This comes at a time of heightened 
financial pressures on Councils, increased further by the Covid-19 crisis, where 
Councils need to be reducing costs.  
 
 

91



Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 

Question 17 – Do you have any comments regarding how the underpin should be 
presented on annual benefit statements? 
 
Answer 17 – If it is decided the underpin value is to be included on annual benefit 
statements, the system providers will need to capture this value and write it back 
to the member’s record annually.  
 
The Fund suggests if the value must be included it should be shown as a separate 
value with simplistic wording applied. If a member wants greater information, then 
a link to a more detailed explanation can be provided.  
 
 
Question 18 – Do you have any comments on the potential issue identified in 
paragraph 110? 
 
Answer 18 – The Fund agrees the impact of the underpin should only take effect 
on the members annual allowance pension growth calculation from the year the 
member reaches their “underpin crystallisation date”. The Fund accepts this 
approach, meaning a member’s pension input amount in this year is higher than 
in previous years.  
 
The Fund recognises there may be a very small group of people impacted by this 
approach (members with low career average earnings 1 April 2014 to 31 March 
2022, but a high final salary over the same period), but the Fund accepts this risk is 
extremely small, and the approach is reasonable. 
 
 
Question 19 – Do the proposals contained in this consultation adequately address 
the discrimination found in the “McCloud and Sargeant” cases? 
 
Answer 19 – Yes 
 
 
Question 20 – Do you agree with our equalities impact assessment? 
 
Answer 20 – Yes 
 
 
Question 21 – Are you aware of additional data sets that would help assess the 
potential impacts of the proposed changes on the LGPS membership, in 
particular for the protected characteristics not covered by the GAD analysis (age 
and sex)? 

92



Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 

 
Answer 21 – No 
 
 
Question 22 – Are there other comments or observations on equalities impacts you 
would wish to make? 
  
Answer 22 – No 
 
 
Question 23 – What principles should be adopted to help members and 
employers understand the implications of the proposals outlined in this paper? 
 
Answer 23 – The Fund agrees members and employers need to understand the 
implications of the proposals.  
 
The Fund’s view is there will need to be targeted communications for the different 
groups of members affected, in the main pensioners, deferred and actives and 
the communications will need to be tailored to suit the individual’s circumstance 
and this should be done at Fund level. However, the Fund is aware the Local 
Government Association has a communication sub group working on McCloud 
and intends to use agreed wording that is provided nationally. 
 
The Fund agrees employers need to be made aware of the implications it has on 
them. This includes providing and checking for missing data (hours and service 
breaks), but they also need to be aware of the impact on them financially. 
 
The Pension Fund’s Actuary is likely to provide guidance on the financial impact 
on future employer rates, at the next Fund valuation, but also for noting in their 
accounts and FRS notices, where applicable.    
 
Question 24 – Do you have any comments to make on the administrative impacts 
of the proposals outlined in this paper? 
 
Answer 24 – The Fund has plans to set up a McCloud Team in the Pension Section 
to deal with the administrative impact. 
 
The Fund has written to all its employers making them aware of McCloud and the 
likelihood they will need to provide any missing data between April 2014 and 
March 2022. 
 

93



Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 

The Fund is represented on the Local Government Associations McCloud working 
party so has been involved in the work to produce a national data template and 
notes to assist employers. The Fund will be reliant on the system provider 
backloading the data into the system and revising the calculations to provide the 
“best of” results.  
 
Revision of pensions in payment will be time consuming, especially if the member 
has been in receipt of their pension prior to the latest annual pensions increase. 
The Fund is planning on working on the priority order of cases, to determine case 
that are most likely to need revision. 
 
The Fund is concerned about the complexity of the communications to members, 
especially to those members who will have the aggregation window reopened for 
12 months. It is expected this will generate phone calls and enquiries. 
 
There is clearly an additional administrative cost to this work, both in times of 
resource and systems. 
 
The Fund is concerned about the administrative impact on the employers 
extracting the hours and service breaks between April 2014 and March 2022. This 
will be challenging and costly for the employers. Some of the Fund’s employers 
have already asked if the additional charges they incur can be passed back to 
the Fund. 
 
The Fund is pleased there is no recommended date for completion of the exercise 
and should therefore be able to set its own timeframe to complete the work. 
 
 
 
 
Question 25 – What principles should be adopted in determining how to prioritise 
cases? 
 
Answer 25 – The Fund believes the priority order should be – pensioners, deferred 
members and then active members. Within the pensioners the Fund suggests 
there should then be further prioritisation based on the likelihood of recalculation. 
The initial priority cases are likely to be “best of the last 3-year cases and average 
3 in 13 cases” as it is anticipated these are more likely to require revised benefits. 
The age or the retirement date of the pensioners should also be considered, 
maybe starting with those who retired first. 
 

94



Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 

The deferred members could be prioritised by age. Those nearing, or at age 55 
and over, should be treated with greater priority. 
 
Other groups including deaths and transfers out may require greater prioritisation, 
but guidance should be provided nationally on this. 
 
The reopening of the 12-month aggregation window will appear to run alongside, 
if the 12 months starts for the amendment of the regulations.  
 
 
Question 26 – Are there material ways which the proposals could be simplified to 
ease the impacts on employers, software systems and scheme administrators? 
 
Answer 26 – The Fund’s view is the remedy has to deal with the legal age 
discrimination challenge. Given the complexity of the current scheme, the 
proposal was always going to be extremely challenging for employers, system 
providers and administrators.  
 
The Fund accepts for there to be clarity to satisfy the legal requirements of the 
age discrimination challenge, and therefore a check needs to be made for each 
member, however the impact administratively seems to be completely 
disproportionate to the resolution. 
 
The Fund suggests an idea to address the challenge more easily but accepts it 
does not provide complete clarity from the legal challenge, but feels it better 
solves the administrative and employer impact. 
 
The idea is to pay a compensation value to members impacted. Rather than use 
each individual member’s hours for the period April 2014 to March 2022 (which 
employers will need to extract from their systems and the administrator backload 
into their pensions administration system), instead, use full time hours for all.  
 
For cases that show an underpin applies, then collect the correct hours from the 
employers and if the underpin still applies, pay them a single value compensation 
payment to these members. This could be set at a national level for all members 
impacted. Given only a small number of members are likely to be impacted, this 
seems a fair and pragmatic solution. 
 
The Fund also feels a level of pragmatism must be applied. From liaison with some 
of the Fund’s employers already, it seems likely not all employers will be able to 
extract all service changes and breaks, especially for employers that have either 

95



Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 

moved payroll provider or amalgamated with other employers during the period 
in question.  
 
 
Question 27 – What issues should be covered in administrative guidance issued by 
the Scheme Advisory Board, in particular regarding the potential additional data 
requirements that would apply to employers? 
 
Answer 27 – The Fund believes the work already taking place by the Local 
Government Association adequately addresses this. This includes the data 
template, notes and guidance. 
 
 
Question 28 – On what matters should there be a consistent approach to 
implementation of the changes proposed? 
 
Answer 28 – The Fund feels the prioritisation of the different groups is required so all 
Fund work consistently. 
 
The Fund does not believe there should be a set time limit on the completion of 
the work as Fund’s will have differing levels of resource available to work on the 
exercise. 
  
 
Question 29 – Do you have any comments regarding the potential costs of 
McCloud remedy, and steps that should be taken to prevent increased costs 
being passed to local taxpayers? 
 
Answer 29 – The Fund is concerned that the McCloud remedy could appear to 
some local taxpayers, as “Public Sector pension changes, guaranteed, to provide 
an even better pension”. This is at a time of significant financial crisis throughout 
the economy and when people are losing their jobs after Covid-19.  
 
Therefore, the Fund strongly supports preventing increased costs being passed to 
local taxpayers. The Fund has no comment on how this should be achieved, but 
by linking the McCloud remedy to the cost cap exercise, it is expected this will 
limit the burden on tax payers.  
 
The Fund also took account of McCloud in the recent Fund valuation exercise 
and included an expectation of increased costs that were factored into the 
valuation results and the employer rates which came into effect from 1 April 2020. 
 

96



Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 

The Fund stresses no deadline for completion of the work is very helpful. Having a 
deadline will add extra pressure and potentially increase administration costs. 
 
 
Please treat this letter as the official reply of the Leicestershire Local Government 
Pension Fund. 
 
As required, my details are as follows; 
 
Ian Howe, Pensions Manager 
Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicester LE3 8RB 
 
 
 
 
Ian.howe@leics.gov.uk 
Tel 0116 3056945 
  
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 

Ian Howe  
 
 
Ian Howe 
Pensions Manager   
 

97



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Appendix C 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reforming Local Government Exit Cap – Key Update 

Following on from Bulletin 13 highlighting the consultation about the proposed changes, 

there have been some further developments, and this is our latest understanding. 

On the 30 September 2020 the House of Commons approved the Exit Cap legislation. 

Government officials then need to sign the legislation and then 21 days later it becomes law. 

We understand Government wish to do this immediately and may have already done so. 

Assuming this was signed on the 1 October 2020, any age 55 plus redundancy or efficiency 

retirements you have where the member retires 21 days afterwards (from the 21/10/2020) 

will fall under the revised calculations. We are currently awaiting guidance from MHCLG 

(which is expected shortly), but we believe any previous calculations are invalid. You will 

need to contact any staff impacted. 

Our actuary Hymans have produced examples of the exit cap restriction based on their 

current understanding of the government’s intentions as set out in the consultation 

document. The scenarios shown should not be relied upon for retirement planning and may 

not reflect the reality of legislation and/or GAD guidance when they are finally issued. These 

examples can be found in a PDF document alongside this bulletin.  

The LGA recently hosted a webinar detailing their understanding of the exit payment reform 

and the effects it will have. The slides and video recording of this webinar can be viewed at: 

https://www.local.gov.uk/exit-payment-reform-webinar-23-september-2020 

At this time, the examples provided by Hymans and the LGA are for Local Authority (Council 

workers) and Police and Fire Civilian employers. Further guidance for Academies, Higher 

Education employers will be distributed when it comes out. It is unclear if these admission 

bodies are impacted, and we hope MHCLG’s guidance will address this. 

As a reminder the briefing and consultation documents for “reforming local government exit 
pay” can be found on: https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/reforming-local-
government-exit-pay 
Regards, Ian Howe – Pensions Manager 

Pensions Bulletin 14 

 

2020

19                                                                          

Issue  
5th October 2020 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

99

https://www.local.gov.uk/exit-payment-reform-webinar-23-september-2020
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/reforming-local-government-exit-pay
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/reforming-local-government-exit-pay


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Briefing Note 01 

 

Reform of local government exit pay 

 

On 7 September 2020, MHCLG published a consultation on restricting exit payments in local government in England and Wales. The consultation goes wider than 

delivering the government’s previously stated aim of ensuring that no public sector workers will receive a 6-figure severance package; these proposals will affect all 

local government workers who are retiring from age 55 on redundancy or efficiency grounds. Our 60 Second Summary provides further detail about the consultation.  

**BREAKING NEWS** 

• The £95k cap element of the changes is expected to come into force mid-October 2020: LGA have asked for urgent clarification from Government on 

transitional aspects, and the lack of necessary changes to LGPS regulations to accommodate this. 

• The Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) has issued draft factors and instructions showing how the exit reforms (including the £95k cap) will 

be calculated and applied. 

 

The purpose of this Briefing Note is to explore some worked examples to demonstrate the ‘before and after’ impact of the reforms on employees, and the new options 

that will be available post reform. The examples are illustrative only and are based on our current understanding of the government’s intentions as set out in the 

consultation document. The scenarios shown should not be relied upon for retirement planning and may not reflect the reality of legislation and/or GAD guidance when 

they are finalised.   

• Our examples in this Briefing Note suggest that the reforms may significantly reduce the value of exit packages for all English & Welsh LGPS members 

(not just high earners) who are made redundant from age 55. Employees will face difficult choices between pension and cash.  

• Funds should urgently contact employers and HR departments to ensure that the impending reforms are reflected in potential early retirement and 

redundancy exercises. The implementation date is uncertain but may be before the end of this year, with further uncertainty created by the gap between 

the legislation on the £95k cap and the changes required to LGPS Regulation in order to accommodate it. 

• Actuarial guidance from GAD, including standardised early retirement strain factors, needs to be built into software administration systems to feed into 

employee option packages. 101

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/916615/Reforming_local_government_exit_pay_consultation.pdf
https://www.hymans.co.uk/media/uploads/LGPS_exit_payment_cap_consultation.pdf
ctuohy_2
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX D



 

 Briefing Note 02 

 

Note on legislation quoted and expressions used 

The Compensation Regulations referred to are The Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) (England and Wales) 

Regulations 2006 available here.  NB these regulations are due to be replaced following the end of this consultation.  

The Restriction of Public Sector Exit Payments Regulations 2020 Introduce the £95k cap and can be found here.  These regulations come into force 21 days 

after they’re ‘made’ which at the time of writing appears to be 29 September 2020, thus implying an effective date of mid-October 2020. 

Pension Strain refers to the additional cost of paying LGPS benefits before Normal Pension Age with no (or with a lesser) reduction. For the purposes of this reform, 

this strain needs to be calculated by GAD: we have reviewed their draft factors and guidance and these appear to give pension strain amounts not too dissimilar to the 

amounts we see for most funds at present. 

Statutory Redundancy Payment refers to the minimum redundancy amount that must be paid under the Employment Rights Act 1996 

Discretionary Compensation refers to any payment made under the replacement to the Compensation Regulations that is in excess of the statutory redundancy 

limit.  

Exit payment reform   

Who is affected? 

English & Welsh employers covered in an as-yet-to-be published set of updated compensation regulations.  Based on the current (out of date) Compensation 

Regulations that will be; 

• Council workers  

• Police and fire civilians  

• Academies (possibly) 

• FT and HE colleges (possibly) 
  

102

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/cy/uksi/2006/2914/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2020/9780348210170/schedule


 

 Briefing Note 03 

 

What does it mean? 

Currently a worker retiring from the LGPS on redundancy grounds from age 55 will typically get; 

• Immediate payment of LGPS benefits unreduced 

• Statutory redundancy payment  

• Discretionary compensation (decided by their employer based on limits within the Compensation Regulations) 

Paying benefits early and unreduced creates a pension strain that the employer must pay. 

The proposal is that from now on an employee aged 55 or over would not be able to get both an unreduced pension and redundancy payment (whether statutory or 

discretionary). This is because: 

• In order to receive an unreduced pension, the member must make a payment towards the pension strain, equal to their statutory redundancy payment, thus in 

effect giving up their SRP (although technically the SRP must be paid). 

• The proposals explicitly state that if pension is being paid immediately but not fully reduced then the employer may not arrange for any discretionary 

compensation.   

  

103



 

 Briefing Note 04 

 

Example 1 (typical case where discretionary compensation < strain cost) 

Full strain cost = £50k 

Statutory redundancy = £5k 

Discretionary compensation = £10k 

Existing regulations  

 Pension payable  Pension strain paid by 

the employer  

Statutory redundancy  Discretionary 

compensation  

Value of package to 

member  

 Full unreduced pension £50k £5k £10k £65k 

New regulations 

Options 

available to 

member 

Pension payable  Pension strain paid by 

the employer  

Statutory redundancy  Discretionary 

compensation  

Value of package to 

member  

A Full unreduced pension  £45k Member receives £5k but 

must contribute £5k of own 

money to top up the strain 

cost to the full £50k 

0 £50k 

B Pension paid with some 

reduction 

£45k £5k 0 £50k 

C  Pension paid with full 

reduction  

0 £5k £10k £15k 

D  Deferred Pension  0 £5k £10k  £15k 

Comment on example 1: options A and B are clearly more valuable than options C and D. Nonetheless members who desire immediate access to cash may find C 

and D attractive.  

104



 

 Briefing Note 05 

 

Example 2 (less common case where discretionary compensation > strain cost) 

Full strain cost = £10k 

Statutory redundancy = £5k 

Discretionary compensation = £15k 

Existing regulations  

 Pension payable  Pension strain paid by 

the employer  

Statutory redundancy  Discretionary 

compensation  

Value of package to member  

 Full unreduced pension £10k £5k £15k £30k 

New regulations 

Options 

available to 

member 

Pension payable  Pension strain paid by 

the employer  

Statutory redundancy  Discretionary 

Compensation 

Payment to member 

(Discretionary compensation 

less strain cost) 

Value of 

package to 

member 

A Full unreduced pension  £5k Member receives £5k but must 

contribute £5k of own money 

to top up the strain cost  

0 £5k £15k 

B Pension paid with some 

reduction 

£5k £5k 0 £5k £15k 

C  Pension paid with full 

reduction 

0 £5k £15k 0 £20k 

D  Deferred Pension  0 £5k £15k 0 £20k 

Comment on example 2: taking full or partially reduced pension under options A or B is financially detrimental to the member. Options C and D are more attractive in 

terms of overall value and immediate access to cash.   

105



 

 Briefing Note 06 

 

The £95k Cap 

Who is affected? 

English & Welsh employers covered in the Schedule to the Restriction of Public Sector Exit Payment Cap Regulations 2020, essentially all public service employees.  

In the LGPS world this will include  

• Council workers  

• Police and fire civilians  

• Academies  

But not FT and HE colleges, or admission bodies. 

 

What does it mean? 

Public sector redundancy packages should be limited as follows; 

• A maximum of three weeks’ pay per year of service;  

• A maximum of 15 months of pay on the amount of a redundancy payment;  

• A maximum salary of £80,000 on which an exit payment can be based;  

• A £95k cap on the total of all forms of compensation, including redundancy payments, pension strain, compromise agreements and special severance 

payments.  

LGPS staff are especially affected because the £95k cap includes pension strain caused by releasing pension benefits early on redundancy – this means not just high 

earners are affected. 

 

  

106



 

 Briefing Note 07 

 

Example 3 (Cap exceeded and MHCLG restrictions applied)  

Full strain cost = £150k 

Statutory redundancy = £15k 

Discretionary compensation = £30k 

Existing regulations 

Options 

available to 

member 

Pension payable  Pension strain paid by 

the employer  

Statutory redundancy  Discretionary 

compensation   

Value of 

package to 

member  

 Full unreduced pension £150k £15k £30k £195k 

New regulations 

Options 

available to 

member 

Pension payable  Pension strain paid by 

the employer  

Statutory redundancy  Discretionary 

compensation   

Value of 

package to 

member 

*Additional payment by 

member to ensure no 

pension reduction 

A Full unreduced pension  £80k Member receives £15k but 

must contribute £15k of own 

money to top up the strain cost  

0 £95k £55,000 

B Pension paid with some 

reductions  

£80k £15k 0 £95k 0 

C  Pension paid with full 

reductions  

0 £15k £30k £45k 0 

D   Deferred Pension  0  £15k  £30k £45k  0 

*There will be practical issues around how the employer and fund can be sure that the member’s share of pension strain has been recovered before benefits are put into payment.   

107



 

London  |  Birmingham  |  Glasgow  |  Edinburgh                           T 020 7082 6000  |   www.hymans.co.uk   |   www.clubvita.co.uk 
 

This communication has been compiled by Hymans Robertson LLP, and is based upon their understanding of legislation and events as at date of publication. It is designed to be a general information summary and may be subject to change. It is not a definitive analysis of the subject covered or specific to 
the circumstances of any particular employer, pension scheme or individual. The information contained is not intended to constitute advice, and should not be considered a substitute for specific advice in relation to individual circumstances. Where the subject of this document involves legal issues you may 
wish to take legal advice. Hymans Robertson LLP accepts no liability for errors or omissions or reliance on any statement or opinion.  

Hymans Robertson LLP (registered in England and Wales - One London Wall, London EC2Y 5EA - OC310282) is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and licensed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries for a range of investment business activities. A member of Abelica Global.  
© Hymans Robertson LLP.  

  

 

Comment on example 3 – the cap has a big impact on what the member receives: 

• Option A – due to the cap the member has to pay a total of £70k from their own money (of which £15k comes from SRP) to get an unreduced pension 

• Option B – the cap again bites and, in the absence of their own money, the member receives a partially reduced pension plus SRP 

• Options C and D – less valuable than options A and B but may appeal to members who desire immediate access to higher cash. 

Conclusion  

There is no question that these changes will increase the complexity of the redundancy process for members, employers and LGPS funds, and the situation has not 

been helped by the disjointed way that the legislation is being brought forward. Of particular concern is the fact that the £95k cap is likely to be on the statute books 

(mid-October?) well before the changes needed to the LGPS and Compensation Regulations required for it to take effect in the LGPS. We urge MHCLG to issue 

formal guidance on how LGPS funds should deal with this situation; LGA have also made a similar request. 

As ever, we will be keeping a close eye on the situation and continuing to issue communications as things develop.  In the meantime, if you wish to discuss the matter 

further please speak to your usual Hymans’ contact. 

 

108



EMPLOYER (191 total) Category of 

Employer

Live on 

iConnect?

Priority Work 

Underway?

Current Status Handed 

over to ER

Provider Recent Notes

Live on i-Connect (111)

Rawlins Academy Large ER Yes 1 Yes Live Yes District Live and handed over to ER

WQE and Regent College group Large ER Yes 1 Yes Live Yes District Live and handed over to ER

SLM Everyone active (NW Leisure) Large ER Yes 1 Yes Live Yes SLM Live and handed over to ER

SLM (Oadby and Wig) Small ER Yes 1 Yes Live Yes SLM Live and handed over to ER

SLM (Blaby DC 2019 contract) Small ER Yes 1 Yes Live Yes SLM Live and handed over to ER

SLM (Blaby DC 2016 contract) Small ER Yes 1 Yes Live Yes SLM Live and handed over to ER

De Montfort University Large ER Yes 1 Yes Live No District Handover due 28/10 >> Delayed progress 

FIRE SERVICE CIVILIANS iConnect Large ER Yes Yes Live Yes WCC New payroll provider from 01/07/20 - work in progress

Leics Firefighters Large ER Yes Yes Live Yes EMSS New payroll provider from 01/07/20 to 31/12/20 - work in progress

ASHBY WOULDS TOWN COUNCIL Small Yes Yes Live Yes District

Avanti School Trust Medium Yes Yes Live Yes Dataplan

Barwell Parish Council Small Yes Yes Live Yes District

Bellrock Management Small Yes Yes Live Yes District

Blaby DC Large Yes Yes Live Yes District

BRAUNSTONE TOWN COUNCIL iConnect Small Yes Yes Live Yes District

Brookvale High School Large Yes Yes Live Yes District

Broughton Astley PC City Yes Yes Live No City

Charnwood BC Large Yes Yes Live Yes District

COUNTESTHORPE PC iConnect Small Yes Yes Live Yes District

David Ross Education Trust Medium Yes Yes Live Yes Dataplan

Diocese of Leicester AT  (SAAF payroll) MAT Yes Yes Live Yes District

East Midland Shared Services EMSS Yes Yes Live Yes EMSS

Enderby Parish Council Small Yes Yes Live Yes District

ESPO EMSS Yes Yes Live Yes EMSS

GLEN PARVA PARISH COUNCIL Small Yes Yes Live Yes District

Govindas (Avanti Schools) Small Yes Yes Live Yes Dataplan

Harborough DC City Yes Yes Live No City

Hinckley & Bosw'th BC Large Yes Yes Live Yes District

Learn Academy Trust Medium Yes Yes Live Yes Dataplan

Leicester City Council City Yes Yes Live No City

Leicestershire CC (payroll 10 & 23) EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS

Leics Forest East PC Small Yes Yes Live Yes District

LIONHEART MAT Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad / EPM

Long Field Academy Medium Yes Yes Live Yes Dataplan

Lough University Large Yes Yes Live Yes District

Loughborough College Large Yes Yes Live Yes District

LUTTERWORTH T C Small Yes Yes Live Yes District

MARKET BOSWORTH PARISH COUNCIL Small Yes Yes Live Yes District

Melton B C City Yes Yes Live No City

Melton Learning Hub Small Yes Yes Live Yes District

Mountsorrel PC Small Yes Yes Live Yes District

MOWBRAY EDUCATIONAL TRUST Medium Yes Yes Live Yes Dataplan

North West Leics D C Large Yes Yes Live Yes District

Oadby and Wigston BC iConnect EMSS Yes Yes Live Yes EMSS

OAK MAT Medium Yes Yes Live Yes Dataplan

109



EMPLOYER (191 total) Category of 

Employer

Live on 

iConnect?

Priority Work 

Underway?

Current Status Handed 

over to ER

Provider Recent Notes

Scraptoft PC Small Yes Yes Live Yes Disctrict

The Chief Constable & The OPCC Large Yes Yes Live Yes District

The Mead Educational Trust Medium Yes Yes Live Yes Dataplan

THURMASTON PARISH COUNCIL iConnect Small ER Yes Yes Live Yes District

Apollo Partnership Trust Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Asfordby Hill Primary School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Ash Field Academy Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Ashby Hill Top Primary School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Ashby School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Attenborough Learning Trust Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Barwell CofE Academy Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Battling Brook Primary School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Better Futures MAT (Gateway) / GATEWAY 6TH FORM COLL Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Birkett House School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Bottesford CofE Primary School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Bradgate Education Partnership Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Castle Donington College Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Church Hill CofE Junior School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Cobden Primary School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

DISCOVERY SCHOOLS MAT Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Dorothy Goodman School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Falcon Primary School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad / City

Forest Way School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Frisby CE Primary School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Gartree High School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Hall Orchard Primary School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Hastings High School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Herrick Primary School Acad - City Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad / City

Holywell Primary School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Ibstock Community College Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Inspiring Primaries Academy Trust Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Ivanhoe College Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

King Edward VII S&S College Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Kirby Muxloe Primary School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

LIFE Academy Trust Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Loughborough CofE Primary Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Lutterworth High School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Measham CofE Primary School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Mountfields Lodge School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Odyssey Education Trust Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Old Dalby CofE Primary School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Outwoods Edge Primary School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Oval Learning Partnership Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

OWLS MAT Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Queniborough CofE Primary Sch Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Redmoor Academy Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Robert Bakewell Primary School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

110



EMPLOYER (191 total) Category of 

Employer

Live on 

iConnect?

Priority Work 

Underway?

Current Status Handed 

over to ER

Provider Recent Notes

Rothley CofE Primary School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Scholars Academy Trust Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

South Charnwood High School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

South Wigston High School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

St Mary & St John Rutland Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

St Michael & All Angels CofE Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

St.Peters CofE Primary Academy Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Stanton under Bardon Primary Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Stonebow Primary School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Success Academy Trust Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Symphony Learning Trust Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

The Kibworth School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

The Learning without Limits AT Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

The Market Bosworth School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

The Pastures Primary School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Thringstone Primary School Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Thrussington CofE Primary Sch Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Townlands CofE Primary Academy Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad

Welland Park CC Acad - EMSS Yes Yes Live No EMSS - Acad Payroll move from EMSS to Dataplan 01/09/20 - work in progress

Outstanding Employers - Priority level 1 (16)

BEAUCHAMP (part of Lionheart) EPM No 1 Yes In progress EPM / EMSS Acad

Brooke Hill Academy Trust EPM No 1 Yes In progress EPM

CASTERTON B&EC AT EPM No 1 Yes In progress EPM

LEAD ACADEMY MAT EPM No 1 Yes In progress EPM

Rutland CC (paid by EPM) EPM No 1 Yes In progress EPM / District

St Therese of Lisieux / St Gilbert of Sempringham EPM No 1 Yes In progress EPM

The Rutland Learning Trust EPM No 1 Yes In progress EPM

Tudor Grange Academies Trust EPM No 1 Yes In progress EPM

UPPINGHAM COMMUNITY COLLEGE EPM No 1 Yes In progress EPM

Embrace AT (incl. Brockington College) Large ER Yes / No 1 Yes Live / In progress District Moved from EMSS Acad to Strictly Ed payroll provider 01/04/20

Rutland CC (paid in-house) Large ER No 1 Yes In progress Disrict

Leicester College Large ER No 1 Yes In progress Disrict

St Thomas Aquinas CMAT Large ER Partly 1 Yes In progress Disctrict/EMSS-Acad

Stephenson Melton Brooksby Group (SMB) Large ER No 1 Yes In progress District Further delay due to payroll merge pushed back

The Vines Academy Trust Large ER N/A 1 Yes In progress EMSS - Acad

Wigston Academies Trust EMSS No 1 Yes Await FFTF EMSS EMSS - await FFTF project / report

Outstanding Employers - Priority level 2 (20)

BEACON ACADEMY MAT Medium ER No 2 District

Capita IT City of Leicester Medium ER No 2 Capita

Capita IT City Rushey Mead Medium ER No 2 Capita

Capita Services ex Charnwood Medium ER No 2 Capita

Hinckley Academy Medium ER No 2 Yes In progress District

Humphrey Perkins School Medium ER No 2 District Part of Lionheart

Lady Jane Grey Primary School Medium ER No 2 District Payroll moved from EPM to in-house 

Limehurst Academy Medium ER No 2 Yes In progress District

Lutterworth Academies Trust / Lutterworth College Medium ER No 2 Yes In progress District

Martin High School, The Medium ER No 2 District Part of Lionheart

111



EMPLOYER (191 total) Category of 

Employer

Live on 

iConnect?

Priority Work 

Underway?

Current Status Handed 

over to ER

Provider Recent Notes

Midland Academies Trust Medium ER No 2 Yes In progress District

Nova Ed Trust (Melton Vale) Medium ER No 2 Yes In progress District

Priory AT Belvoir Academy, The New ER No 2 Yes In progress District

Queensmead Primary Academy Medium ER No 2 Yes In progress District

Rendell Primary School Medium ER No 2 Yes In progress Disctrict

Rutland & District Schools' Federation, The Medium ER No 2 Yes In progress District

SOUTH LEICS COLLEGE Large ER No 2 Yes In progress District

Turning Point (City Council) Medium ER No 2 District

Turning Point (County Council) Medium ER No 2 District

Woodbrook Vale School Medium ER No 2 District

Outstanding Employers - Priority level 3 (44)

A B M Catering Ltd Small ER No 3 District

ANSTEY PARISH COUNCIL Small ER No 3 Yes In progress District

ASHBY TOWN COUNCIL Small ER No 3 District

Aspens (City Crown Hills) Small ER No 3 Yes In progress District

Aspens (Lutterworth AT) Small ER No 3 Yes In progress District

Aspens (Mowbray Ed Trust) Small ER No 3 Yes In progress District

Aspens (Nova ET) Small ER No 3 Yes In progress District

Bagworth & Thornton PC Small ER No 3 District

Blaby Parish Council Small ER No 3 District

Bradgate Park Trust Small ER No 3 Await FFTF District EMSS - await FFTF project

Caterlink (Fulhurst CC) Small ER No 3 Caterlink

Caterlink (Mead ET Primaries) Small ER No 3 Caterlink

Caterlink (Mead ET Sec) Small ER No 3 Caterlink

Caterlink (Mowbray Ed Trust) Small ER No 3 Caterlink

Caterlink (WQE1 Group) Small ER No 3 Caterlink

Chartwells Small ER No 3 Yes In progress District

Churchill Contract Services Small ER No 3 Yes In progress District

CSE (Robert Smyth Tudor Grange) Small ER No 3 Yes In progress District

CSE (Samworth Tudor Grange) Small ER No 3 Yes In progress District

Coombes Catering Ldt Small ER No 3 Yes In progress District New ER/TUPE Oct 20

East Goscote Parish Council Small ER No 3 Yes In progress District

East West Community Centre Ltd Small ER No 3 District

EMH Homes (East midlands homes/housing) Small ER No 3 District

Foxfield Acad / CIT Academy Small ER No 3 Yes In progress District New acad joining LG 01/09/20

Fusion Lifestyle Small ER No 3 Yes In progress District

G4S (City Council) Small ER No 3 Yes In progress G4S

G4S (Constabulary) Small ER No 3 G4S

Groby Parish Council Small ER No 3 Yes In progress District

Kirby Muxloe PC Small ER No 3 District

MCS Cleaning Small ER No 3 Yes In progress District

Oakham TC Small ER No 3 District

Quadron Services Small ER No 3 District

Ridge Crest Cleaning Small ER No 3

Rushcliffe Care Ltd Small ER No 3 District

Ryhall CE Academy Small ER No 3 District

Waterloo Housing Group (WHG, was Seven Locks / Platform Housing Group)Small ER No 3 District

112



EMPLOYER (191 total) Category of 

Employer

Live on 

iConnect?

Priority Work 

Underway?

Current Status Handed 

over to ER

Provider Recent Notes

SHEPSHED TOWN COUNCIL Small ER No 3 Yes In progress District

SILEBY PARISH COUNCIL Small ER No 3 Yes In progress District

Solo Service Group (Leics CC) Small ER No 3 District

Stephenson Studio School Small ER No 3 District

SYSTON TOWN COUNCIL Small ER No 3 Yes In progress District

Thurcaston & Cropston PC Small ER No 3 Yes In progress District

Vol Action Leicester Small ER No 3 Yes In progress District

Whetstone PC Small ER No 3 Yes In progress District

Inactive EE's / joined another ER / Left LGPS

Age Concern District No active members

AXIS Property Services (Melton BC) District No active members

BARROW UPON SOAR PC District No active members

Brocks Hill Primary EMSS - Acad Moved under Lionheart MAT or still under EPM????

Capita IT Crown Hills District No active members

Capita IT Judgmeadow CC District No active members

CORPUS CHRISTI MAT District No active members

Countesthorpe Leysland CC District CLCC moved from EMSS to LIFE Acad Trust

Derbys Firefighters District Fire has moved PS

Future Cleaning Services District No active members

G Purchase Construction LTD District No active members

I Care District No active members

Mercenfeld Primary School EMSS - Acad Moved under Bradgate Ed Partnership

Notts Firefighters District Fire has moved PS

Oakthorpe D & A PC District No active members

Pinnacle Group District No active members

Prospects Services District Left LGPS

Spire Homes Limited District No active members

St Thomas Aquinas CMAT EMSS - Acad / DisctrictLeft EMSS payroll Jul-19

Stafford Leys Comm Primary EMSS - Acad Moved under Bradgate Ed Partnership

113



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

 
LOCAL PENSION BOARD - 26 OCTOBER 2020   

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
PENSION SECTION – EMPLOYER RISK  

 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. To inform the Board of the new Regulations regarding employer risk.  
 
  
 Background 
 
2. Pension Fund Officers already monitor employer risk and these were 

considered at the last Pension Fund Valuation. 
 
3. At the valuation employers were grouped by risk and this was used to 

determine some factors used in assessing their contributions and deficit 
recovery repayment terms. 

 
4. The Pension Fund also manages the risk of employers by requiring them to 

have a bond. In the unlikely event that an employer is unable to make 
payment of its deficit to the Fund, the Fund can action the bond. The bond will 
then be paid to the Fund to cover the value required. This acts as a security 
for the Fund. 

 
5. Officers monitor the bond values and their termination dates and arrange 

extensions or changes to the bond values, as required. 
 
6. There are five closed Community Admission Bodies (CABs) in the Fund. 

These tend to be older Fund employers without a guarantor or security, have 
no remaining actives members, but still retain a Fund deficit. 

 
7. At the valuation the CABs were offered opportunity to crystallise their deficit 

positions and set up repayment plans with the Pension Fund. One CAB chose 
to do this and is making its repayment contributions. On receipt of the final 
payment, this employer will then be able to “walk away” from the Fund having 
fully met its Fund responsibilities. 

 
8. The CABs that did not chose to crystallise their deficit plans will be assessed 

again at the next valuation. 

115 Agenda Item 8



 

 
Changes 

 
9. On the 23 September 2020 new Regulations regarding employer risk came 

into force. These Regulations are named - Local Government Pension 
Scheme (Amendment) (Number 2) Regulations.  

 
10. It is useful to note, some of the Regulations changes support what the Fund 

already does. These Regulations effectively fall into three areas; 
 

(i) Review of employer contributions 
 

11. Currently officers monitor the risk of the Funds employers. However, the 
Regulations now require the Fund to have a policy on when a review of 
employer contributions is necessary (outside of the formal Fund valuation 
process) and the process the Fund will take in doing so.  

  
12. Officers are aware Central Guidance is due on this specific point from the 

SAB and CIPFA and this is expected in early 2021.  
 

13. Officers are awaiting the guidance to help determine what situations may 
trigger a review. Officers work closely with the Actuary at each valuation and 
assess the employer risks, so the likelihood of the Fund requesting a review 
of an employer’s rate prior to the next valuation is low, unless a major change 
in risk occurs. Examples of when the Fund may decide to do so, could 
include; if Government changed funding for Colleges thereby increasing the 
risk of in this sector, if an employer’s security lapsed (e.g. a bond) or if there 
was material change in payroll following a large exit of active members.  

  
14. The amended Regulations now also give some power to employers to 

approach the Fund to request a review of their rates. Employers may be 
keener to request a review of their rates if they thought it was possible to 
reduce their rates. The Regulations indicate that, while the Fund should 
consult with the employer on any requests, volatile markets or positive 
investment performance are not suitable grounds for an interim review.  
Therefore, in general, an employer would likely only be able to successfully 
approach the Fund if there had been a material (and positive) change in its 
financial covenant or operations. For this reason, Officers maintain the 
position this is not likely to happen. It should also be noted; if an employer did 
request a review of its employer rate this cost is charged to the employer and 
not the Fund.   

  
15. Once the guidance is available Officers will consider this and draft a policy 

within the FSS that will be shared with the Pensions Committee. Employers 
will then be consulted on the policy, prior to having this approved by Pension 
Committee. If any employer makes a formal review request in the intervening 
period, the Fund would consult with the employer and its Actuary on an 
appropriate course of action. 

116



 

16. It is important to note; no Leicestershire Fund employers have requested a 
break or help with payment of their contributions during the Covid-19 financial 
situation.  
 

  
(ii) Spreading exit payments 

 
17. Officers already allow this to happen in exceptional circumstances and this 

Regulation change supports this action. Officers will review the Funding 
Strategy Statement to make this more explicit considering the Regulation 
change. 
  

18. For example; as mentioned earlier, at the last valuation the Pensions 
Manager wrote to some of the higher risk employers (closed Community 
Admission Bodies) asking them if they wished to crystallise their deficit at the 
valuation and set up an agreed repayment plan. One of the employers chose 
to do so, with payments to be completed in this valuation cycle.  
 

 
  
(iii) Deferred Debt Agreements (DDA) 
 

19. This introduces a new “deferred employer status” and deferred debt 
agreements for exiting employers. This formally allows Secondary 
contributions to be certified for employers with no active members who have 
not paid their cessation termination value in full. The Regulation allows the 
Secondary contributions to be subject to review at formal Fund valuations and 
the DDA must set out the period over which the arrangement will run. This 
offers similar employer flexibilities to spreading exit payments. However, the 
key difference is that the employer remains invested within the Fund and its 
funding position will ultimately change at subsequent valuations – which may 
positively or negatively affect the employer. Given the level of prudence 
established in all funding plans, the expectation is that this arrangement would 
benefit the employer through positive investment performance and the ability 
to wind down some of its liabilities over time. 
  

20. Continuing the above example; closed employers who chose not to crystallise 
their deficits at the last valuation will now require a DDA. Effectively the Fund 
already allows this, but the review and updates to the FSS will make this more 
explicit.   

 
  
  Recommendation 
 

21.  It is recommended that the Board notes the Employer Risk Regulation 
Changes.  

 
  
 Equality and Human Rights Implications 

 

117



 

None specific 
 

Officer to Contact 
 
Ian Howe  
Pensions Manager  
Telephone: (0116) 305 6945 
Email: Ian.Howe@leics.gov.uk 
 
Declan Keegan  
Assistant Director of Strategic Finance and Property  
Telephone: (0116) 305 6199 
Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

118



 

 

  

 
LOCAL PENSION BOARD – 26 OCTOBER 2020  

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS 

 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Board of any changes relating to the 
risk management and internal controls of the Pension Fund, as stipulated in the 
Pension Regulator's Code of Practice.   

 
Background 

 
2. The Pension Regulator’s (TPR) code of practice on governance and 

administration of public service pension schemes requires that administrators 
need to record, and members be kept aware of ‘risk management and internal 
controls. The code states this should be a standing item on each Pension Board 
and Pension Committee agenda.  

 
3. In order to comply with the code the risk register and an update on supporting 

activity is included on each agenda.  
 

Risk Register 
 

4. The updated risk register has been attached as an appendix to this report. 
There is one new risk, and two changes to risk scores that are set out below:-  
 

 Risk 5 – Fire administration - This risk has reduced as the transfer of the 
Firefighter Pension Scheme administration to West Yorkshire is progressing 
well. The 31 December 2020 remains the intended date of transfer, and 
following a successful transfer of fire pensions data during the testing 
process, all parties are confident this will be achieved. 
 

 Risk 9 – Transfers Out - This is a new risk. Pensions administration is seeing 
a gradual increase in transfer out activity, as people become tempted to use 
their pensions as short-term financial income. Companies are active in this 
market, some with complex Company and scheme sets ups. The Pension 
Manager is working closely with Legal colleagues to protect scheme 
members benefits from potential scam activity in this area. 
 

 Risk 15 – Future Investment Risks – The risk score has increased in this 
area due to current market uncertainties, but the mitigating actions remain in 
place, so has not increased the residual score.  

119 Agenda Item 9



 

 

 
Recommendation 

 
5. It is recommended that the Board notes the revised risk register of the Pension 

Fund.  
 

 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 

 
None 
 
Appendix 
 
Appendix - Risk Register 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199 Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk 
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 
 
Mr I Howe, Pensions Manager 
Tel: 0116 305 6945 Email: Ian.Howe@leics.gov.uk 
 

      

120

mailto:Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Ian.Howe@leics.gov.uk


Leicestershire Pension Fund Risk Register October 2020             APPENDIX 

Risk 
no 

Service Risk Causes (s) Consequences 
Risk 

Owner 
List of current 

controls 
I L 

 
Current 

Risk 
Score 

Risk 

Response; 

Tolerate 

Treat 

Terminate 

Transfer 

Further Actions / 
Additional Controls 

I L 
Residual 

Risk 
Score 

 
 
Action 
owner 

1 Pens 

 If the Pension Fund 

fails to hold all 

pensioner data 

correctly, including 

Guaranteed 

Minimum Pension 

(GMP) data, 

individual member’s 

annual Pensions 

Increase results 

could be wrong. 

 

From 2018 the 

pensions section has 

had responsibility for 

GMPs creating the 

need to ensure that 

this is accounted for in 

the pensions increases  

Overpaying 

pensions (i.e. for 

GMP cases pension 

increases are lower) 

Reputation 

Ian 

Howe 

 

Checking of HMRC 

GMP data to 

identify any 

discrepancies. 

Internal Audit run 

an annual Pensions 

Increase result test 

and provide an 

annual report of 

findings 

3 3 9 Treat 

HMRC to provide final 

GMP bulk upload results  

Officers run the HMRC 

GMP check on a case by 

case basis and input the 

results into member 

records at retirement 

2 1 3 

 
 
 

 

Ian Howe 

 
 
 

 

2 Pens 

The Pension Section 

is unable to meet its 

statutory 

requirements on the 

production of annual 

benefit statements 

and pension taxation 

saving statements  

Coronavirus has closed 
some employers, so 
they are unable to 
provide year-end 
information. 
 
Staff sickness could 
increase so resource to 
complete year-end 
reduces 
 

Unable to provide 
annual benefit 
statements by the 
31 August 
 
Unable to provide 
pension taxation 
saving statements 
by the 6 October 
 
Reputation 
 
Pension breaches 
 
Reports TPR 
 
Possible fines 
imposed on the 
Fund and scheme 
members  
 

Ian 

Howe 

 

Written to 

employers 

requesting their 

year-end 

information or a 

date when this can 

be expected 

Informed the 

Pension Board 

Liaising nationally 

with the LGA on the 

national picture  

TPR maintaining a 

proportionate and 

fair approach to 

breaches 

3 4 12 Treat 

 

Develop a two-stage 

approach for annual 

benefit statements 1. 

For employers than 

meet the deadline for 

their return submission 

and 2, for those that 

cannot. 

 

3 1 3 

 
 
Ian Howe 

 

3 Pens 

If the pensions fund 

fails to receive 

accurate and timely 

data from 

employers, scheme 

members pension 

A continuing increase 

in Fund employers is 

causing administrative 

pressure in the Pension 

Section. This is in terms 

of receiving accurate 

Late or inaccurate 

pension benefits to 

scheme members 

Reputation 

Ian 

Howe 

Training provided 

for new employers 

Guidance notes 

provided for 

3 3 9 Treat 

Implement IConnect 

with employers so they 

provide monthly data in 

a secure and timely 

manner 

3 2 6 Ian Howe 

121



Risk 
no 

Service Risk Causes (s) Consequences 
Risk 

Owner 
List of current 

controls 
I L 

 
Current 

Risk 
Score 

Risk 

Response; 

Tolerate 

Treat 

Terminate 

Transfer 

Further Actions / 
Additional Controls 

I L 
Residual 

Risk 
Score 

 
 
Action 
owner 

benefits could be 

incorrect or late  

 

 

and timely data from 

these new employers 

who have little or no 

pension knowledge 

 

Increased appeals 

Greater 

administrative time 

being spent on 

individual 

calculations 

employers 

Amended SLA and 

communication and 

administration 

guide distributed to 

employers making   

IConnect a 

statutory 

requirement by 

31/3/2021) 

Inform the Local 

Pension Board each 

quarter on progress 

made 

 

4 Pens 

 

If the Pensions 

Section fails to meet 

the 

information/cyber 

security and 

governance 

requirements, then 

there may be a 

breach of the 

statutory 

obligations. 

 

Pensions database now 

hosted outside of LCC. 

Employer data 

submitted through 

online portal. 

Member data 

accessible through 

member self-service 

portal (MSS). 

Data held on third 

party reporting tool 

(DART). 

Greater awareness of 

information rights by 

service users. 

 

Diminished public 

trust in ability of 

Council to provide 

services. 

Loss of confidential 

information 

compromising 

service user safety. 

Damage to LCC 

reputation. 

Financial penalties. 

 

Ian 

Howe 

Regular LCC 

Penetration testing 

and enhanced IT 

health checks in 

place. 

LCC have achieved 

PSN compliance. 

New firewall in 

place providing two 

layers of security 

protection in line 

with PSN best 

practice. 

5 2 10 Treat 

Work with LCC ICT and 

Aquila Heywood 

(software suppliers) to 

establish processes to 

reduce risk, e.g. can 

Aquila Heywood 

demonstrate that they 

are carrying out regular 

penetration testing and 

other related processes 

take place. 

Liaise with Audit to 

establish if any further 

processes can be put in 

place in line with best 

practice. 

5 1 5 

Stuart 

Wells 

5 Pens 

Retaining the 

administration of the 

Firefighter Pension 

Schemes until Dec 

2020 could 

negatively impact on 

the Pensions Section. 

The three Fire 

Authorities have opted 

to undergo a full 

tender process for the 

pensions 

administration, 

meaning that the initial 

plan to for LCC to cease 

In addition to 

dealing with regular 

casework with less 

resource; 

2020 is a valuation 

year for Fire, which 

will result in extra 

Ian 

Howe 

Provide a reduced 

service – agreed 

with the 3 Fire 

Authorities 

Do not do the new 

modified retained 

exercise, leaving it 

4 3 12 Treat 

Additional resource, e.g. 

overtime; 

Fire Team Manager to 

spend more time on 

casework; 

Checking of some areas 

4 1 4 Ian Howe 

122



Risk 
no 

Service Risk Causes (s) Consequences 
Risk 

Owner 
List of current 

controls 
I L 

 
Current 

Risk 
Score 

Risk 

Response; 

Tolerate 

Treat 

Terminate 

Transfer 

Further Actions / 
Additional Controls 

I L 
Residual 

Risk 
Score 

 
 
Action 
owner 

 administration in April 

2020 has ceased. 

Following the original 

plan to cease 

administering Fire 

Pensions, a member of 

the team has decided 

to resign, reducing staff 

from three to two. 

 

work; 

There is a 

potentially new 

area of Fire work 

pending relating to 

the new modified 

retained exercise; 

The remedy for the 

McCloud situation 

could be confirmed 

before the end of 

the contract period; 

Fire Team staff will 

not be able to 

transfer to the LGPS 

administration 

teams 

for the next 

administrator, with 

the exception of 

any statutory areas. 

It is felt unlikely 

that McCloud will 

be resolved by 

December 2020, 

though remains a 

possibility. 

of work to move to 

Pensions Manager; 

Fire Authorities to 

request support from 

their Pension Boards to 

reduce estimate 

requests from fire-

fighters, thereby 

reducing work coming 

into the Pension Section 

Fire Authorities 

colleagues to help 

provide resource and 

assistance for the 

Pension  

West Yorkshire (the 

new provider) are 

actively working with us 

on the data migration  

 

6 Pens 

The resolution of the 

McCloud case could 

increase 

administration 

significantly resulting 

in difficulties 

providing the 

ongoing pensions 

administration 

service  

The liabilities of the 

Fund are expected to 

increase for all 

employers 

Mr McCloud winning 

his appeal on age 

discrimination on 

public sector pension 

schemes and the 

protection afforded to 

older members during 

the move to career 

average benefits, 

followed by 

Government losing 

their right of appeal. 

Ultimate outcome 

currently unknown 

but likelihood is; 

Increasing 

administration 

Revision of previous 

benefits 

Additional 

communications 

Complaints/appeals 

Increased costs 

Ian 

Howe 

Guidance from LGA, 

Hymans, Treasury  3 3 9 

Treat 
once 
details 
are 
confirmed 

Employer bulletin to 

employers making them 

aware of the current 

situation 

Await proposed 

resolution from the 

employment tribunal 

Assisting the LGA on the 

employer McCloud data 

template (missing hours 

April 2014 to date) 

No statutory deadline to 

be set for completion of 

2 3 6 Ian Howe  

123



Risk 
no 

Service Risk Causes (s) Consequences 
Risk 

Owner 
List of current 

controls 
I L 

 
Current 

Risk 
Score 

Risk 

Response; 

Tolerate 

Treat 

Terminate 

Transfer 

Further Actions / 
Additional Controls 

I L 
Residual 

Risk 
Score 

 
 
Action 
owner 

the work 

Set up a team in the 

Pension Section to deal 

with McCloud casework 

7 Pens 

If contribution 

bandings and 

contributions are not 

applied correctly, the 

Fund could receive 

lower contributions 

than expected 

Errors by Fund 

employers payroll 

systems when setting 

the changes 

Lower contributions 

than expected. 

Incorrect actuarial 

calculations made 

by the Fund. 

Possibly higher 

employer 

contributions set 

than necessary  

Ian 

Howe 

Pension Section 

provides employers 

with the annual 

bandings each year. 

Pension Section 

provides employers 

with contributions 

rates (full and 

50/50) 

Internal audit check 

both areas annually 

and report their 

findings to the 

Pensions Manager 

4 2 8 Treat 

 

 

Pension Officers check 

sample cases at year-

end 

Pension Officers to 

report major failings to 

internal audit before 

the annual audit 

process  

Major failings to be 

reported to the 

Pensions Board 

 

4 1 4 
 
Ian Howe 
 

8 Pens 

If immediate 

payments are not 

applied correctly, 

scheme members 

one off payments 

could be wrong 

Human error when 

setting up immediate 

payments 

System failures 

Unable to meet weekly 

deadlines 

Reputation 

Complaints/appeals 

Time resource used 

to resolve issues 

Members one off 

payments, not paid, 

paid late, paid 

incorrectly 

 

Ian 

Howe 

Benefit Team 

Tracker process 

Benefits checked 

and authorised by 

different Officers  

Additional Assistant 

Team Manager 

resource provided  

 

5 2 10 Treat 

Working with the 

system provider to 

enhance the system to 

allow a more 

automated process 

Internal audit to review 

the process 

Officers re-engineering 

the retirement process  

Structure of the Pension 

Section to resource the 

5 1 5 Ian Howe 

124



Risk 
no 

Service Risk Causes (s) Consequences 
Risk 

Owner 
List of current 

controls 
I L 

 
Current 

Risk 
Score 

Risk 

Response; 

Tolerate 

Treat 

Terminate 

Transfer 

Further Actions / 
Additional Controls 

I L 
Residual 

Risk 
Score 

 
 
Action 
owner 

area sufficiently  

Officers requested 

further system security 

checks on immediate 

payments (bank 

account checks) 

9 Pens 

If all the transfers 

out checks are not 

completely fully 

there could be future 

bad advice 

challenges brought 

against the Fund’s 

pension 

administration  

Increasing demand for 

transfers out from 

members  

Increased transfer out 

activity from 

Companies interested 

in tempting people to 

transfer out their 

pension benefits 

Increased complexity 

on how the receiving 

schemes are set up 

Reputation 

Future bad advice 

claims brought 

against the Fund  

IDRP appeals 

(possible 

compensation 

payments) 

Ian 

Howe 

TPR checks 

Follow LGA 

guidance 

Queries escalated 

to Team Manager 

then Pensions 

Manager 

3 3 9 
Treat 
 
 

Escalation process to 

Internal Legal 

Colleagues to check IFA, 

Company set up, alleged 

scam activity 

Further escalation 

process to external 

Legal Colleagues  

3 2 6 Ian Howe 

10 

Invs 
 
 
 
 
 

Employer and 

employee 

contributions are not 

paid accurately and 

on time 

Error on the part of the 

scheme employer 

CV19 may reduce some 

employer’s income so 

they are unable to 

make payment  

Potentially 

reportable to The 

Pensions Regulator 

as late payment is a 

breach of The 

Pensions Act. 

Ian 

Howe 

 

Receipt of 

contributions is 

monitored, and late 

payments are 

chased quickly.  

Communication 

with large 

commercial 

employers with a 

view to early view 

of funding issues. 

 

2 4 8 Treat 

Late payers will be 

reminded of their legal 

responsibilities. 
2 3 6 

 
 
Declan 

Keegan 

 

11 Invs 

Assets held by the 

Fund are ultimately 

insufficient to pay 

benefits due to 

Ineffective setting of 

employer contribution 

rates over many 

consecutive actuarial 

 

Significant financial 

impact on scheme 

employers due to 

the need for large 

Chris 

Tambini 

 

Input into actuarial 

valuation, including 

ensuring that 

actuarial 

assumptions are 

5 2 10 Treat 

Actuarial assumptions 

need to include an 

element of prudence, 

and Officers need to 

understand the long-

4 2 8 

 
 

Bhulesh 

125



Risk 
no 

Service Risk Causes (s) Consequences 
Risk 

Owner 
List of current 

controls 
I L 

 
Current 

Risk 
Score 

Risk 

Response; 

Tolerate 

Treat 

Terminate 

Transfer 

Further Actions / 
Additional Controls 

I L 
Residual 

Risk 
Score 

 
 
Action 
owner 

individual members valuations increases in 

employer 

contribution rates.  

 

 reasonable and the 

manner in which 

employer 

contribution rates 

are set does not 

bring imprudent 

future financial risk 

 

 

term impact and risks 

involved with taking 

short-term views to 

artificially manage 

employer contribution 

rates.  The 2019 

valuation will assess the 

contribution rates with 

a view to calculating 

monetary contributions 

alongside employer 

percentages of salaries 

where appropriate.  

Regular review of 

market conditions and 

dialogue with the 

schemes biggest 

employers with respect 

to the direction of 

future rates. 

Kachra 

 

12 
Pens/ 
Invs 

Sub-funds of 

individual employers 

are not monitored to 

ensure that there is 

the correct balance 

between risks to the 

Fund and fair 

treatment of the 

employer 

Changing financial 

position of both sub-

fund and the employer 

 

 

Significant financial 

impact on 

employing bodies 

due to need for 

large increases in 

employer 

contribution rates. 

Risk to the Fund of 

insolvency of an 

individual 

employer. This will 

ultimately increase 

the deficit of all 

other employers.  

 

Ian 

Howe/ 

Declan 

Keegan 

 

Ensuring, as far as 

possible, that the 

financial position of 

each employer is 

understood. On-

going dialogue with 

them to ensure that 

the correct balance 

between risks and 

fair treatment 

continues. 

 

5 2 10 Treat 

Dialogue with the 

employers, particularly 

in the lead up to the 

setting of new employer 

contribution rates. 

Include employer risk 

profiling as part of the 

Funding Strategy 

Statement update. To 

allow better targeting of 

default risks 

Investigate 

arrangements to de-risk 

funding arrangements 

for individual 

employers. 

4 2 8 

 
Ian 

Howe/ 

Declan 

Keegan 

 

126



Risk 
no 

Service Risk Causes (s) Consequences 
Risk 

Owner 
List of current 

controls 
I L 

 
Current 

Risk 
Score 

Risk 

Response; 

Tolerate 

Treat 

Terminate 

Transfer 

Further Actions / 
Additional Controls 

I L 
Residual 

Risk 
Score 

 
 
Action 
owner 

Ensure that the 

implications of the 

independent, non-

public sector status, of 

further education, sixth 

form colleges, and the 

autonomous, non-public 

sector status of higher 

education corporations 

is fully accounted for in 

the Funding Strategy 

 

13 Invs 

 Market investment 

returns are 

consistently poor, 

and this causes 

significant upward 

pressure onto 

employer 

contribution rates 

Poor market returns 

most probably caused 

by poor economic 

conditions and/ or 

shocks e.g. CV19. 

Significant financial 

impact on 

employing bodies 

due to the need for 

large increases in 

employer 

contribution rates 

Chris 

Tambini 

Ensuring that 

strategic asset 

allocation is 

considered at least 

annually, and that 

the medium-term 

outlook for different 

asset classes is 

included as part of 

the consideration 

5 2 10 Treat 

Making sure that the 

investment strategy is 

sufficiently flexible to 

take account of 

opportunities and risks 

that arise but is still 

based on a reasonable 

medium-term 

assessment of future 

returns. 

4 2 8 

Bhulesh 

Kachra 

 

14 Invs 

Market returns are 

acceptable, but the 

performance 

achieved by the Fund 

is below reasonable 

expectations 

Poor performance of 

individual managers 

including LGPS Central, 

or poor asset allocation 

policy.   

 

Opportunity cost in 

terms of lost 

investment returns, 

which is possible 

even if actual 

returns are higher 

than those allowed 

for within the 

actuarial valuation. 

Lower returns will 

ultimately lead to 

higher employer 

contribution rates 

than would 

Chris 

Tambini 

Ensuring that the 

causes of 

underperformance 

are understood and 

acted on where 

appropriate 

Shareholders’ 

Forum, Joint 

Committee and 

Practitioners’ 

Advisory Forum will 

provide significant 

influence in the 

event of issues 

3 3 9 Treat 

After careful 

consideration, take 

decisive action where 

this is deemed 

appropriate.  It should 

be recognised that 

some managers have a 

style-bias and that 

poorer relative 

performance will occur.  

Decisions regarding 

manager termination to 

consider multiple 

factors including 

performance versus 

2 2 4 

 
 

Bhulesh 

Kachra 

 

127



Risk 
no 

Service Risk Causes (s) Consequences 
Risk 

Owner 
List of current 

controls 
I L 

 
Current 

Risk 
Score 

Risk 

Response; 

Tolerate 

Treat 

Terminate 

Transfer 

Further Actions / 
Additional Controls 

I L 
Residual 

Risk 
Score 

 
 
Action 
owner 

otherwise have 

been the case 

arising. 

Appraisal of each 

LGPS Central 

investment product 

before a 

commitment to 

transition is made 

 

mandate and reason for 

original inclusion. 

The set-up of LGPS 

Central is likely to be 

the most difficult phase. 

The Fund will continue 

to monitor closely how 

the company evolves 

Programme of LGPS 

Central internal audit 

activity, which has been 

designed in 

collaboration with the 

audit functions of the 

partner funds 

15 Invs 

Failure to take 

account of ALL risks 

to future investment 

returns within the 

setting of asset 

allocation policy 

and/or the 

appointment of 

investment 

managers 

Some assets classes or 

individual investments 

perform poorly as a 

result of incorrect 

assessment of all risks 

inherent within the 

investment. 

Opportunity cost 

within investment 

returns, and 

potential for actual 

returns to be low. 

This will lead to 

higher employer 

contribution rates 

than would 

otherwise have 

been necessary. 

Chris 

Tambini 

Ensuring that all 

factors that may 

impact onto 

investment returns 

are taken into 

account when 

setting the asset 

allocation.  

Only appointing 

investment 

managers that 

integrate responsible 

investment (RI) into 

their processes. 

Utilisation of 

dedicated RI team at 

LGPS Central and 

preparation of a RI 

plan for the fund. 

3 4 12 Treat 

Responsible investment 
aims to incorporate 

environmental, social 

and governance (ESG) 

factors into investment 

decisions, to better 

manage risk and 

generate sustainable, 

long-term returns. 

Annual refresh of the 

Fund’s asset allocation 

allows an up to date 

view of risks to be 

incorporated and avoids 

significant sort term 

changes to the 

allocation. 

Asset allocation policy 

allows for variances 

from target asset 

allocation to take 

2 2 4 

 

 

Bhulesh 

Kachra 

 

128



Risk 
no 

Service Risk Causes (s) Consequences 
Risk 

Owner 
List of current 

controls 
I L 

 
Current 

Risk 
Score 

Risk 

Response; 

Tolerate 

Treat 

Terminate 

Transfer 

Further Actions / 
Additional Controls 

I L 
Residual 

Risk 
Score 

 
 
Action 
owner 

advantage of 

opportunities and 

negates the need to 

trade regularly where 

investments under and 

over perform in a short 

period of time. 

16 Invs 

Investment decisions 

are made without 

having sufficient 

expertise to properly 

assess the risks and 

potential returns  

The combination of 

knowledge at 

Committee, Officer and 

Consultant level is not 

sufficiently high 

Poor decisions likely 

to lead to low 

returns, which will 

require higher 

employer 

contribution rates 

Chris 

Tambini 

Continuing focus on 

ensuring that there is 

sufficient expertise 

to be able to make 

thoughtfully 

considered 

investment decisions  

3 3 9 Treat 

On-going process of 

updating and improving 

the knowledge of 

everybody involved in 

the decision-making 

process 

2 2 4 

 

Bhulesh 

Kachra 

 

17 Invs 

The transition of 

investment assets to 

LGPS Central is not 

successful 

Pooling does not 

reduce the on-going 

management costs of 

assets 

Transition costs are 

significantly higher, for 

example the cost of 

selling the existing 

investments and 

buying new ones.  

Savings available do 

not justify the 

transition costs and 

on-going cost of 

running LGPS 

Central 

Chris 

Tambini 

Central maintains 

the flexibility to run 

funds internally. 

Specialist transition 

manager being 

appointed, with 

independent 

specialist oversight. 

Formal review 

follows each 

transition. 

Implementation 

being phased, 

allowing capacity to 

be managed and 

lessons learned. 

2 3 6 Treat 

Approach for each 

transition assessed 

independently. 

Views from 8 partners 

sought throughout the 

transition process.  

LGPS Central’s Internal 

Audit plan includes an 

assessment of the 

governance surrounding 

the transition 

2 2 4 

 

Bhulesh 

Kachra 

 

 

 

129



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Risk Impact Measurement Criteria 
 

Scale Description 
Departmental Service 

Plan Internal                   Operations  People Reputation 
Financial                          

per annum / per loss 

1 Negligible 
Little impact to objectives 
in service plan 

Limited disruption to operations and 
service quality satisfactory 

Minor injuries 
Public concern 
restricted to local 
complaints 

Pension Section 
  <£50k 
Investments 

Losses expected to be 
recovered in the short 
term 

2 Minor 
Minor impact to service as 
objectives in service plan 
are not met 

Short term disruption to operations 
resulting in a minor adverse impact 
on partnerships and minimal 
reduction in service quality. 

Minor Injury to those in 
the Council’s care 

Minor adverse local / 
public / media 
attention and 
complaints 

Pension Section 
£50k-£250k Minimal 
effect on budget/cost 

Investments 
Some 
underperformance, but 
within the bounds of 
normal market volatility 

3 Moderate 
Considerable fall in 
service as objectives in 
service plan are not met 

Sustained moderate level disruption 
to operations / Relevant partnership 
relationships strained / Service 
quality not satisfactory 

Potential for minor 
physical injuries / 
Stressful experience 

Adverse local media 
public attention 

Pension Section 
£250k - £500k Small 
increase on 
budget/cost: Handled 
within the team/service 

 
Investment 

Underperformance by a 
manager requiring 
review by the 

130



Scale Description 
Departmental Service 

Plan Internal                   Operations  People Reputation 
Financial                          

per annum / per loss 

Investment Sub-
committee 

4 Major 
Major impact to services 
as objectives in service 
plan are not met.  

Serious disruption to operations with 
relationships in major partnerships 
affected / Service quality not 
acceptable with adverse impact on 
front line services. Significant 
disruption of core activities. Key 
targets missed. 

Exposure to 
dangerous conditions 
creating potential for 
serious physical or 
mental harm 

Serious negative 
regional criticism, with 
some national 
coverage 

Pension Section 
£500-£750k. Significant 
increase in budget/cost. 
Service budgets 
exceeded 

 
Investment 

Underperformance of 
significant proportion of 
assets leading to a 
review of the 
Investment or Funding 
strategy 

5 
Very 
High/Critical 

Significant fall/failure in 
service as objectives in 
service plan are not met 

Long term serious interruption to 
operations / Major partnerships under 
threat / Service quality not acceptable 
with impact on front line services 

Exposure to 
dangerous conditions 
leading to potential 
loss of life or 
permanent 
physical/mental 
damage. Life 
threatening or multiple 
serious injuries 

Prolonged regional 
and national 
condemnation, with 
serious damage to the 
reputation of the 
organisation i.e. front-
page headlines, TV. 
Possible criminal, or 
high profile, civil 
action against the 
Council/Fund, 
members or officers 

Pension Section 
>£750k Large increase 
on budget/cost. 

 
Investment 

Employer contributions 
expect to increase 
significantly above 
Funding Strategy 
requirement 

 
Risk Likelihood Measurement Criteria 

 

131



Rating Scale Likelihood Example of Loss/Event Frequency Probability % 

1 Very rare/unlikely EXCEPTIONAL event. This will probably never happen/recur. <20% 

2 Unlikely Event NOT EXPECTED. Do not expect it to happen/recur, but it is possible it may do so. 20-40% 

3 Possible LITTLE LIKELIHOOD of event occurring. It might happen or recur occasionally. 40-60% 

4 Probable /Likely Event is MORE THAN LIKELY to occur. Will probably happen/recur, but it is not a 
persisting issue. 

60-80% 

5 Almost Certain Reasonable to expect that the event WILL undoubtedly happen/recur, possibly frequently. >80% 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Risk Scoring Matrix 
     

       

 
Impact 

     

 
5 Very High/Critical 5 10 15 20 25 

 
4 Major 4 8 12 16 20 

 
3 Moderate 3 6 9 12 15 

 
2 Minor 2 4 6 8 10 

 
1 Negligible 1 2 3 4 5 

  
1 2 3 4 5 

  
Very Rare/Unlikely Unlikely     Possible/Likely 

         
Probable/Likely    Almost certain 

  

Likelihood of risk occurring over lifetime of objective (i.e. 12 mths) 

132



 

 

133



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 
LOCAL PENSION BOARD - 26 OCTOBER 2020   

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
PENSION SECTION - COMPLAINTS POLICY  

 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. To inform the Board of the Complaints Policy for the Pension Section. 
 
 Background 
 
2. Although formal complaints brought by scheme members or their representatives, 

against the calculation or administration of their pension benefits, are dealt with 
through the Local Government Pension Scheme Internal Dispute Resolution 
Procedure (IDRP), most issues are caused by general misunderstandings or human 
error, and are usually resolved without the need to invoke IDRP.  

 
3. As part of the Pension Section’s commitment to good governance, a complaints 

policy has been created to ensure that the Pension Section handle these specific 
complaints in a consistent, appropriate and timely fashion. 

  
 The Process 
 
4. When a complaint is received, these are to be passed to the relevant Pensions 

Team Manager to consider; 
 

Complaints must be submitted in writing, either by letter or email; 
 

If it is not possible to reply within three working days, then an acknowledgement 

letter must be sent by the Pensions Team Manager, and a full written reply will 

follow. 

 

5. The standard timeline for a reply is ten working days, from receipt of the complaint, 

but can be longer if circumstances dictate, e.g. further information is required from a 

third party (for example - the scheme members employer). 

 

6. A written reply must be sent to the complainant which must include where 

appropriate: 

 

135 Agenda Item 10



 A summary of the complaint and where appropriate, a timeline of events 

leading up to the complaint; 

 Advise the complainant of the Pension Section’s proposed resolution to the 

issue, and where appropriate the reasons for the decision; 

 Advice on next steps if the complainant is still unhappy with the decision. The 

wording below* should be included. However, there maybe exceptional 

cases where a complaint cannot be taken to IDRP (for example – a 

complaint lodged years after the event). 

 

7. If the complainant is still dissatisfied and they feel the issue cannot be resolved 

informally, they can within six months of receiving this letter, appeal in writing 

formally under the Internal Disputes Resolution Procedure. This is shown in the 

Appendix A. 

 

*If you are dissatisfied with any decision given in this notification you may, within 6 
months of receiving this letter, appeal in writing under the approved Internal 
Disputes Resolution Procedure. It is suggested however, that any points of 
difference should be addressed with the Pensions Office on an informal basis 
initially.  
 
Should you still then be unhappy, you would be provided with the name and 
address of the "Specified Person" nominated by your employer or former employer, 
who would formally investigate your complaint. In the unlikely event of a 
disagreement progressing beyond this stage, details to enable an appeal to the final 
stage two "Appointed Person" nominated by the pension scheme's administering 
authority, would be provided with the decision reached by the "Specified Person." 
 

  Recommendation 
 
8. It is recommended that the Board notes the Pension Sections Complaints policy.  
 
  
 Equality and Human Rights Implications 

 
None specific 
 
Appendix 
 
Appendix A - Internal Disputes Resolution Procedure 
 
Officer to Contact 
 
Ian Howe  
Pensions Manager  
Telephone: (0116) 305 6945 
Email: Ian.Howe@leics.gov.uk 

 
Declan Keegan  

136



Assistant Director of Strategic Finance and Property  
Telephone: (0116) 305 6199 
Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 
 

137



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Appendix A 

 

Leicestershire County Council 
Pension Fund 

 
 
 

A Guide to the Local Government Pension Scheme 
Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

These notes explain the Internal Dispute 
Resolution Procedure (IDRP) for the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) as 

administered by Leicestershire County Council. 
These notes give general guidance only and 

cannot be treated as a statement of law. 

139



 2 

 
Decisions 
 
From the day you join the scheme, various decisions are being made about your 
pension. These include things like: 
 

 The benefits you can have and how much they will be 
 

 Explaining how you are affected by the various Scheme rules 
 

 Applying any discretions we have as a Fund 
 
To find out more about the Local Government Pension Scheme visit the national 
website www.member.org.uk or contact the Leicestershire County Council Pension 
Section. 
 
When you are notified of a decision you should check, as far as you can, that it is 
based on the correct details and that you agree with the decision.  An informal 
enquiry of this kind may save you a lot of time and trouble.  If you remain dissatisfied 
following this initial enquiry, you are entitled to complain, and this is why you have 
been sent this leaflet. 
 
 
Who can complain? 
 
You can use the complaints system if you are: 
 

 a member: in other words you are paying into the Fund, or you have retired and 
draw a pension from us, or you have a deferred pension with us 

 

 a prospective member: in other words, you are not a member yet could become 
one if your employer brings you in or you ask to join 

 

 a dependant: that is a widow, widower, civil partner or child of a member or 
prospective member 

 
 
Using someone else to represent you 
 
You might feel happier with someone else representing you or you may not be able 
to put your case yourself. In this case you can choose someone else to represent 
you.  
 
This can be whoever you like - a friend, relative, solicitor, union representative etc.  
 
You will have to give the person your written authority to act for you. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Who do I complain to?  

140

http://www.member.org.uk/


 3 

 
There is a two stage process, as outlined further on this page.  
 
Stage 1  
 
Your initial complaint will be handled by a person nominated by the body that took 
the decision against which you wish to complain. This guide calls them the ‘Specified 
Person’ as the employer has specified that they are nominated to deal with this level 
of enquiry. 
 
You should complain in writing using the attached form.  This should be sent to the 
‘’Specified Person’ at your employer/former employer. Their contact details have 
been provided for you at the end of this leaflet.  Your complaint will be considered 
carefully and you will be given their decision in writing. 
 
Stage 2  
 
If you are unhappy with the employer's ‘Specified Person's’ decision you may take 
your claim to Stage 2. You may ask the Leicestershire County Council Pension 
Fund's ‘Appointed Person’ to take a fresh look at your case.  His/her details will be 
provided to you by the ‘Specified Person’ when they write to you with their decision. 
 
 
How does it work? Stage 1: The Initial complaint 
 
You must make your initial complaint within six months of the problem taking place. 
 
The ‘Specified Person’ will look at the facts of your case, along with the Scheme 
rules and any other legislation or information, to help understand your complaint. 
 
He/she will make a decision on your complaint, wherever possible, within the period 
of two months of receiving your complaint.  If no decision can be given within that 
time, you should be told of the reasons for the delay and the date when it is expected 
that a decision can be made. 
 
You can go to Stage 2 if… 
 

 You have not heard from the Specified person within three months of making 
your complaint 

 You have not had a decision within one month of the date they said they would, 
or 

 You have had a decision but are unhappy with it. 
 
How does it work? Stage 2: Appeals 
 
If you are unhappy with the Stage 1 decision, you should complain within six months 
of receiving it. 
 
The Stage 2 ‘Appointed Person’ will re-examine your case, once again looking at the 
Scheme rules etc.  He/she may also need to ask you or your employer for more 
details. 
 
 
He/she should reply to you within two months of receiving your complaint. This will 
be either… 
 

141



 4 

 To give their decision, which will confirm or replace the stage 1 decision, or 
 

 To acknowledge your complaint, explain the reasons for delay and let you know 
when you will have a decision. 

 
 

 

Getting outside help 
 

 
There are also two outside bodies who may be able to help: 
 
Money and Pension Service (previously known as TPAS) 
 
At any time if you are having difficulties in sorting out your complaint, you may wish 
to contact them at: 
 
Money and Pension Service 
11 Belgrave Road 
London 
SW1V 1RB 
 
Email: enquiries@pensionsadvisoryservice.org.uk 
 
Helpline 0800 011 3797 
 
They can provide free advice and information to explain your rights. 
 
If you have received a Stage 2 decision under the LGPS internal dispute resolution 
procedure, are not satisfied with that decision, and still think your complaint is well 
founded, the Money and Pension Service may be able to help resolve your pensions 
complaint or dispute. Before asking for the Money and Pension Service' help though, 
you must have already tried to resolve it using the internal dispute resolution 
procedure.  
 
The Money and Pension Service would need copies of all relevant documents. They 
cannot force a pension scheme to take a particular step, but they will try to resolve 
the problem through conciliation or mediation. 
 
 
 
 
 
Pensions Ombudsman Service 
 
The Pensions Ombudsman Service can investigate any type of complaint about your 
pension, but before you contact them the Pensions Ombudsman's Office would 
normally have expected you to have… 
 

 been through Stages I and 2 of the internal dispute resolution procedure. 
 

 asked for the help of the Money and Pension Service 
 
 
 
 

142



 5 

 
 
 
 
The Pensions Ombudsman is completely independent and acts as an impartial 
adjudicator. The role and powers have been decided by Parliament.  They can be 
contacted at: 
 
The Pensions Ombudsman 
11 Belgrave Road 
London, SW1V 1RB 
 
Email: enquiries@pensions-ombudsman.org.uk 
 
Website: www.pensions-ombudsman.org.uk 
 
Tel 020 7630 2200 
 
There is no charge for using the Pensions Ombudsman's services. 
 
You can complain to the Ombudsman about the way any of the referees have 
handled your case and do not have to wait until your case has been completed. 
Complaints must be made within three years of the event about which you are 
complaining, or within three years of becoming aware of the problem. 
 
The Ombudsman's decision is final and binding on all the parties, subject to any 
appeal made to the High Court on a point of law. 
 
 
 
 
Thank you for taking the time to read this leaflet.  If you feel that you wish to 
complain using the Internal Disputes procedure, then you should complete the 
enclosed form (please keep a copy of the completed form), and return it, along 
with copies of any relevant paperwork to the ‘Specified Person’ at your 
employer/former employer: 
 
 

 
 
His/her details are: 
 
 
Name          
     
Address 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

143

mailto:enquiries@pensions-ombudsman.org.uk
http://www.pensions-ombudsman.org.uk/


 6 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 
Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure 

 

Stage 1 Complaint Form 
 
Employer/ Former Employer   _____________________________________ 
 
PERSONAL DETAILS OF COMPLAINANT 
 
Full name    ______________________________________________ 
 
Payroll Number or Job Title    _______________________________________ 
 
Date ceased relevant pensionable employment   _______________________ 
 
Date of Birth     _____________________________ 
 
Full Address and Postcode   ________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________ 
 
Telephone number in case of queries   ________________________________ 
 
E-mail address (optional)   __________________________________________ 
 
 
Are you? Please tick the category that applies to you  
 

A member?  (  )   A dependant?   (  ) 

 

Their representative?   (  )   If so, please complete the following: 

 
Your name   ____________________________________________________ 
 
Your address   ___________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________ 
 

Whose address should letters go to?  Yourself?  (  ) 

 

     The person you are representing?  (  ) 

 
 

Please state your relationship to member?   (  ) 

144



 7 

 
 
DETAILS OF COMPLAINT        
 
Please give full details of the complaint in this section, including any dates which you 
think are relevant. 
 
If you run out of space, please attach a separate sheet marked with your/the 
complainant’s name and National Insurance number.  Please number the sheets, 
and state the total number of pages in the space provided. 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 

145



 8 

 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

 
Declaration 
 
I would like the ‘Specified Person’ to look into this complaint and make a decision 
about it 
 
Signed    ___________________________________ 
 
 
Dated  ___________________________________ 
 

Total number of pages including this one:  (    ) 
 

 

146


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 10 August 2020.
	5 Governance Review.
	Appendix A - 2020 October Governance Review for Committee V2 FINAL
	Appendix B draft LPC TOR

	6 Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2019/20.
	Appendix - Pension Fund Annual Report 2019-20 v2
	Appendix to the Pension Fund Annual Report - SUMMARY VALUATION OF FUNDS PERFORMANCE

	7 Pension Fund Administration Report July to September 2020 - Quarter Two.
	APPENDIX A - KPI July to September 2020
	APPENDIX B - Leicestershire LGP Fund Reply - McCloud Consultation September 2020
	APPENDIX C -  Bulletin 14 Reforming Local Government Exit Pay (f)
	APPENDIX D - LGPS_Briefing_Note_-_Exit_pay_reform October 2020
	APPENDIX E- Data improvement plan Oct 20 - IConnect

	8 Pension Section - Employer Risk.
	9 Risk Management and Internal Controls.
	Pensions Risk Register amended October 2020

	10 Pensions Section - Complaints Policy.
	Appendix - Complaints Policy October 2020




